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Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”),
I am pleased to present the annual report of Jiyi Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (“FY2020" or the
“Reporting Period”), together with the comparative figures for the
corresponding year ended 31 December 2019 (“FY2019").

BUSINESS REVIEW

The outbreak of the novel coronavirus (“COVID-19") epidemic
throughout the year 2020 had adversely affected both the business
segments of sale and distribution of merchandise and the provision
of interior design and building engineering services to different
extents. In the second half of 2020, the management team spent a
great deal of effort in fostering its existing businesses and actively
looking for new business opportunities, recovering and catching
up with the Group’s revenue and net profits being affected by the
epidemic. As a result, despite the fact that there was a decrease
in revenue and gross profit of the business segment of provision
of interior design and building engineering services, the sale and
distribution of merchandise had recorded an overall increase in
revenue and gross profit by the end of the year. In FY2020, the
provision of interior design and building engineering services
segment accounted for 54% of the total revenue (2019: 65%),
while the sale and distribution of merchandise segment accounted
for 46% of the total revenue (2019: 35%).

Provision of interior design and building engineering
services

The closure of construction sites under the prevention and control
measures imposed by the local governments in the PRC in the
first half of 2020 had delayed the progress of various interior
design and building engineering projects and led to a decrease in
revenue in the provision of interior design and building engineering
services segment. The revenue generated from the provision of
interior design and building engineering services decreased by
approximately RMB129.3 million or approximately 34.8%, from
approximately RMB371.2 million in FY2019 to approximately
RMB241.9 million in FY2020. The Group also recorded a decrease
in gross profit of approximately RMB11.4 million or approximately
20.8%, from approximately RMB54.9 million in FY2019 to
approximately RMB43.5 million in FY2020. The gross profit margin
increased from approximately 14.8% in FY2019 to approximately

18.0% in FY2020.
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CHAIRLADY’S STATEMENT
FEBREE

Sale and distribution of merchandise

The sale and distribution of merchandise remained a stable source
of revenue to the Group. The management team worked very
hard to meet sales and distribution targets in order to recover
the significant drop in revenue and gross profit in the first half of
2020. In FY2020, the Group experienced an overall increase of
approximately RMB2.5 million or approximately 1.2% in revenue
from the sale and distribution of merchandise from approximately
RMB202.5 million in FY2019 to approximately RMB205.0 million in
FY2020, in particular, the revenue generated from sale of building
materials had an increase of approximately 16.7%, and there is
new stream of revenue generated from the provision of online
distribution and electronic marketing of approximately RMB8.6
million arising from our newly acquired subsidiaries during the
Reporting Period.

Overall, the Group recorded a consolidated net profit of
approximately RMB10.5 million for FY2020, representing a
decrease of approximately RMB2.6 million or approximately
19.8% as compared with consolidated net profit of approximately
RMB13.1 million for FY2019. Such decrease was mainly resulted
from the net effect of the decrease in gross profit generated
from the business segment of the provision of interior design and
building engineering services of approximately RMB11.4 million,
offset by the reversal of impairment losses under expected credit
loss model of approximately RMB6.9 million, as well as the increase
in the other income of approximately RMB8.4 million.
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PROSPECTS

The global economy and local consumption expenditures in the
year 2020 were negatively affected by the outbreak of COVID-19
and the prevention and control measures implemented by local
governments around the world. Many businesses, including the
Group, have been seriously impacted by the epidemic. Despite
the decline in revenue, the Group has maintained a healthy net
profit in FY2020, thanks to the efforts of the management team
in safeguarding the existing businesses and expanding into new
markets, as well as the implementation of successful cost control.

Throughout the year 2020, the Group has adopted a pragmatic and
enterprising approach in our business strategies. Externally, in order
to catch the opportunities arising from the business and economy
recovery after COVID-19, the Group will continue to leverage its
extensive experience and cost advantages on the development of
the sale and distribution of the building and home improvement
materials as well as furnishing products and in the provision of
interior design and engineering services. The Group will also
proactively seek for new project tenders and business opportunities
with our corporate and governmental clients.

Internally, the Group will focus on reviewing and restructuring
its business process, business and departmental functions,
product-mix, and sales strategies to enhance efficiency in terms
of management, strategy implementation, cost controls and
effectiveness on sales and distribution, customer servicing and
retention etc.
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CHAIRLADY’S STATEMENT
FEBREE

The Group will continue to expand and further develop its retail
and domestic interior design and home decoration market in
the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area. In order
to achieve this strategic objective, the Group established offices
in Guangzhou and Shenzhen in 2020, enabling the Group to
fully leverage these offices to expand the business of the sale
and distribution of the building, home improvement materials
and furnishing products, bulk material trades, supply chain
management and financing services, online and e-marketing
distribution consulting and advisory services, as well as the provision
of internal design and engineering services, etc.. Furthermore,
the Group is also considering relocating its PRC headquarter
from Meizhou to Shenzhen by the end of 2021, with an aim to
obtain more project tenders and business opportunities in the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area.

The Group strive to invest on building online distribution and
e-marketing channels, on top of the traditional retail and wholesale
distribution channels, to sell and distribute its building materials,
home improvement materials and furnishing products. The Group
is looking for investment opportunities to improve the Group’s
service capabilities and capacity of the business segment of sale
and distribution of merchandise through enhancing the Group's
digital transformation on its traditional distribution channels, and to
enlarge the market share and scale of sales of the Group, which is
beneficial to the Group and the shareholders as a whole in the long
run.
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Moreover, in view of the growing demand for digital health
management platform that consolidates healthcare big data
and provides meaningful solution and advice to personal health
management and monitoring, the Group is eager to make an effort
to contribute to the growth of the healthcare sector by investing
into health management platform projects and initiatives. The
Group seeks to build the business of “Healthy Household” market
by including an element of healthcare in its household projects.
The Group is looking for investment opportunities to improve
access and experience of healthcare for household consumers
of the Company, create substantial value across the “Healthy
Household” ecosystem and enable the Company to offer higher
quality, personalized, technology-enabled longitudinal services
that improves outcomes at lower costs across the full spectrum of
household projects.

The Group is also actively seeking for business breakthrough and
transformation with the use of information technology. The Group
is currently investing resources in the development of a full-scale
home design and renovation platform that provides ecological and
one-stop solutions to customers from interior design, sourcing of
building materials and furnishings, renovation management, to
post-renovation repairs and maintenance, etc.. It is expected that
the investment in information technology will enable us to deliver a
better experience to our existing and potential customers and bring
positive impact to the Group's businesses.
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CHAIRLADY’S STATEMENT
FEBREE

To facilitate the Group's rapid growth and development, the Group
is also focusing on capital raising and also actively looking into
cooperation with external strategic investors.

With the implementation of the above initiatives, despite the
business challenge brought by the outbreak of COVID-19, the
Group will continue to build on from the existing businesses, and
will actively look for new investment opportunities to enhance the
Group's profitability and maximize the returns and benefits for our
shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
thank our management and all committed staff members for their
contributions to the Group and the shareholders, valued customers,
suppliers, and other business partners for their continuous support.
Our success would not have been possible without their dedication,
contributions, efforts, time and confidence.

Yours sincerely,

Hou Wei
Chairlady

Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue by business operations

The Group is a well-established integrated building and home
improvement materials and furnishings supplier and interior design
and building engineering services provider in the PRC. The Group is
mainly engaged in the sale and distribution of merchandise and the
provision of interior design and building engineering services.

The following table sets forth the breakdown of revenue by the

Group's business segments for the Reporting Period with the
comparative figures of FY2019:

Sale and distribution of merchandise  $HE KR #HE &

— Building materials — &M

— Home improvement materials —REBREME

— Furnishings —fRE

— Online distribution and electronic — R E D IH R RS
marketing

Provision of services AR

— Interior design services —EANRETIRTS

— Building engineering services —BETIER

Total M5

EEE &S

A #5501 8
BREBEEINDIHEA

FEERTHEARBRNGGERERREEE
MEURKREHEIREARS RERETR
REBHER FERTENFHERDFEH M
RRHERR R TRERT

RN EHB A EBEF D EE D
W ABRM BRI T -AMBEEZLERH

=a .

¥

For the year ended
31 December

#E+_BA=+—HIEE

2020 2019 Changes
—E-TE | —T—hfF ;1)
RMB’000 RMB’000 %
AREFT | ARETT

178,719 153,107 16.7
9,040 33,136 (72.7)
8,639 16,238 (46.8)
8,610 - N/A
205,008 202,481 1.2
3,748 8,249 (54.6)
238,159 362,945 (34.4)
241,907 371,194 (34.8)
446,915 573,675 (22.1)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EREANWE DR

Total revenue of the Group decreased by approximately RMB126.8
million or approximately 22.1% from approximately RMB573.7
million for FY2019 to approximately RMB446.9 million for FY2020.
Such decrease was mainly attributed to the decrease in revenue
from the provision of building engineering service, and was partially
offset by the increase in revenue from sale and distribution of
building materials during the Reporting Period.

Revenue from sale and distribution of merchandise

Revenue of the Group from sale and distribution of merchandise,
comprising (i) sale of building materials; (ii) sale of home
improvement materials; (iii) sale of furnishings; and (iv) online
distribution and electronic marketing, recorded an overall slight
increase by approximately RMB2.5 million or approximately 1.2%
from approximately RMB202.5 million for FY2019 to approximately
RMB205.0 million for FY2020. The overall increase was a combined
result of the followings:

Sale of building materials

Revenue generated from the sale of building materials increased
by approximately RMB25.6 million or approximately 16.7% from
approximately RMB153.1 million for FY2019 to approximately
RMB178.7 million for FY2020. Such increase was mainly due to the
increase in sales of metallic material, offset by the decrease in sales
of steel and cement during the Reporting Period.

Sale of home improvement materials

Revenue generated from the sale of home improvement materials
decreased by approximately RMB24.1 million or approximately
72.8% from approximately RMB33.1 million for FY2019 to
approximately RMB9.0 million for FY2020. The decrease was
mainly due to the decrease in sales of board and plate, and ceramic
products during the Reporting Period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Sale of furnishings

Revenue generated from the sale of furnishings decreased by
approximately RMB7.6 million or approximately 46.9% from
approximately RMB16.2 million for FY2019 to approximately
RMB8.6 million for FY2020. Such decrease was mainly due to
the decrease in sales of electronic products and home decoration
products during the Reporting Period.

Online distribution and electronic marketing

Revenue generated from the newly acquired subsidiaries through
the provision of online distribution and electronic marketing
services was approximately RMB8.6 million for FY2020. For further
information of the said acquisition, please refer to the section
headed “Material Investment, Acquisition and Disposal” below in
this announcement.

Revenue from provision of services

Revenue from provision of interior design and building engineering
services decreased by approximately RMB129.3 million or
approximately 34.8% from approximately RMB371.2 million for
FY2019 to approximately RMB241.9 million for FY2020. Such
decrease was due to a decline in the scale of corporate projects,
as well as a delay in the stage of completion of some construction
engineering projects as a result of COVID-19 during the Reporting
Period. However, the Board is optimistic in continuing to expand
this business segment in the coming years, given the number and
scale of future projects that are currently under negotiation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBARADN

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The following table sets forth the breakdown of gross profit and
gross profit margin by the Group’s business segments for the
Reporting Period with the comparative figures of FY2019:

Sale and distribution of merchandise

Provision of interior design and

building engineering services

Total

014
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For the year ended 31 December

#E+ZA=+-HLEE

2020

k- Jauk- 32
Gross profit
Gross profit margin
] ERE
RMB000 %

AEBFT

12,617 6.1
43,454 18.0
56,071 12.5

2019

“BNE
Gross profit
Gross profit margin
E7 ERE
RMB'000 %

NEEFT

22,023 10.9
54,865 14.8
76,888 13.4



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The revenue of the Group decreased by approximately RMB126.8
million or approximately 22.1% from approximately RMB573.7
million for FY2019 to approximately RMB446.9 million for FY2020,
the Group’s overall gross profit decreased by approximately
RMB20.8 million or approximately 27.0% from approximately
RMB76.9 million for FY2019 to approximately RMB56.1 million for
FY2020. The decrease in the Group’s overall gross profit was mainly
due to the increase in the proportion of revenue generated from
sale and distribution of merchandise with a comparatively lower
gross profit margin during the Reporting Period.

The gross profit margin of provision of interior design and building
engineering services increased from 14.8% for FY2019 to 18.0%
for the Reporting Period, owing to better management and
monitoring of construction progress which reduced construction
costs. With the increasing volume of corporate projects and the
expansion of market share, the Group believed that the gross profit
margin of this business will gradually rise and become more stable.

The gross profit margin of the business of sale and distribution
of merchandise decreased from 10.9% for FY2019 to 6.1% for
FY2020, owing primarily to lower merchandise prices to retain old
customers and attract new customers during the Reporting Period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EREANWE DR

Distribution and selling expenses

The Group's selling expenses decreased by approximately RMB1.9
million or approximately 14.5% from approximately RMB13.1
million for FY2019 to approximately RMB11.2 million for the
Reporting Period. Such decrease was due to reduced transportation
costs in relation to bulk material trades, employee benefit expenses
and advertising expenses during the Reporting Period.

Administrative expenses

The Group's administrative expenses increased by approximately
RMB3.3 million or approximately 15.4% from approximately
RMB21.4 million for FY2019 to approximately RMB24.7 million
for the Reporting Period. The increase was mainly due to an
increase in other rental and management fee expenses and general
administrative costs.

Finance costs — net

The Group’s net finance costs increased by approximately RMB9.8
million or approximately 59.8% from approximately RMB16.4
million for FY2019 to approximately RMB26.2 million for the
Reporting Period. The increase was mainly due to the increase in the
finance costs arising from the convertible loan notes and bank and
other borrowings during the Reporting Period.

Profit for the year

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s profit for the year slightly
decreased by approximately RMB2.6 million or approximately
24.8% from approximately RMB13.1 million for FY2019 to
approximately RMB10.5 million for the Reporting Period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total cash and bank
balances of approximately RMB4.7 million (2019: RMB24.2 million)
mainly denominated in RMB and HK$. The decrease in total cash
and bank balances was mainly due to payments incurred into the
construction projects during the Reporting Period.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had net current assets of
approximately RMB617.0 million, as compared to approximately
RMB419.3 million as at 31 December 2019.

BORROWINGS AND PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had unutilised banking
facilities for short term financing of approximately RMB2.6
million (2019: RMB10.6 million) and total bank borrowings of
approximately RMB169.2 million (2019: RMB113.4 million).

The bank borrowings of the Group were secured by property, plant
and equipment, investment properties and right-of-use assets as
at 31 December 2020 and 2019. The bank borrowings were also
jointly guaranteed by Ms. Hou Wei and Mr. Deng Jianshen, husband
of Ms. Hou Wei.

Details of the Group’s capital structure, in terms of among other
things, the maturity profile of debt and obligation and types of
capital instruments used as at 31 December 2020, are set out in
note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The Group has no material capital expenditure during the Reporting
Period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL RATIO

Current ratio™ FREN LR

Quick ratio? RE X @
Gearing ratio (%)? ERN=V- =
Net debt to equity ratio (%)“ SBEBRE S LR

(1)  Current ratio is calculated as total current assets divided by total current
liabilities.

(2)  Quick ratio is calculated as total current assets less inventories and divided
by total current liabilities.

(3) Gearing ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total equity and
multiplied by 100%.

(4)  Net debt to equity ratio is calculated as total borrowings net of cash and
cash equivalents and restricted cash, and divided by total equity and
multiplied by 100%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITION AND
DISPOSALS

On 4 June 2020, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Lin Shunwei* (#8)[§f&) and Chen Yiting* (B
%2), pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed to
acquire (the "Acquisition”) the entire issued share capital of Sino
Legacy Investments Limited (“Sino Legacy”) and its subsidiaries.
Xinjiale Cloud-based Decoration Technology Co., Limited* (%
YT REZRELERFLHBRAE) (“Xinjiale”), the operating
subsidiary of Sino Legacy, is principally engaged in the business of
online distribution and electronic marketing service and provision of
interior design and home decoration services in the PRC. The Group
completed the Acquisition on 26 August 2020.

The Group aims to restructure and consolidate its business
segment of the provision of interior design and engineering
services through the Acquisition. After the Acquisition, the home
decoration businesses will be centralised and primarily undertaken
by Xinjiale. The Group considers the restructuring will enhance
the management efficiency and effectiveness in developing its
home decoration businesses. Moreover, the Group also aims to
expand and diversify its sales and distribution channels through the
acquisition of Sino Legacy, where Xinjiale is also specialised in online
distribution and e-marketing activities through various internet
broadcasting and live streaming channels and platforms. Since May
2020, Xinjiale has already established the first online broadcasting
and live streaming distribution centre in Meizhou and has already
entered into a number of service contracts, which demonstrated a
rapid development and prosperous future of the Target Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Group considers that the new distribution model under Sino
Legacy will provide the Group with greater business development
and customer accessibility, lower business overhead and operating
costs, and improved communications channels with suppliers,
vendors and potential customers.

The financial results of Sino Legacy and its subsidiaries has been
consolidated into the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for FY 2020.

For further details of the Acquisition, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 4 June 2020, 9 June 2020,
27 July 2020 and 26 August 2020.

UPDATES ON THE ISSUE OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND
THE USE OF PROCEEDS

On 22 April 2019, the Company entered into eight (8) subscription
agreements with the subscribers (the “Subscribers”) respectively,
pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed to issue
and the Subscribers has respectively and conditionally agreed to
subscribe for the convertible bonds in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$102,100,000 (the “Convertible Bonds”). The issue
of the Convertible Bonds was completed on 25 June 2019. The
net proceeds from the issuance of the Convertible Bonds, which
amounted to approximately HK$101.6 million after deducting
the related professional forms and an related expenses, have
already been fully utilised during FY 2019. As of 31 December
2020, Convertible Bonds in the amount of HK$37,429,167
have been converted into 37,429,167 conversion shares by the
bondholders, and the remaining Convertible Bonds in the amount
of HK$64,670,833 were outstanding (“Outstanding Convertible
Bonds”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

According to the terms of the Convertible Bonds (details are set
out in the circular of the Company dated 10 May 2019), the
Convertible Bonds should mature on the date falling eighteenth
(18th) month after the date of issue thereof (i.e. 24 December
2020), and such maturity date could be extended to the date
falling second (2nd) anniversary of the date of issue thereof (the
“Extended CB Maturity Date”) as the bondholder(s) and the
Company might mutually agree (the “Extension”).

After arm’s length negotiations, the Company and the outstanding
bondholders have reached consensus on the Extension, pursuant
to which the maturity date of the Outstanding Convertible Bonds
was extended by six (6) months from 24 December 2020 to the
Extended CB Maturity Date (i.e. 24 June 2021). Save for the above,
all other terms and conditions of the Convertible Bonds (including
the terms of conversion price) have remained unchanged and have
been in full force and effect.

The Extension was arrived at after arm’s length negotiations
between the Company and outstanding bondholders. The
extension of the maturity date would allow the Company to enjoy
more flexibility when planning its financial resources, as it would
enable the Company to apply its financial resources to fund its
operation and/or business development instead of repayment of
the Outstanding Convertible Bonds by 24 December 2020 so as to
maximise returns to the Shareholders.

The Extension and the transactions contemplated above (including
but not limited to the allotment and issue of outstanding conversion
shares under the specific mandate) has been passed and approved
by the Shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting (the
"EGM") of the Company held on 22 February 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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For further details in relation to the Extension, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 24 December 2020, 31
December 2020, the circular of the Company dated 25 January
2021 in respect of the EGM, and the poll result announcement
dated 22 February 2021 in respect of the EGM.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Apart from those disclosed in the above paragraphs, there were no
material investments or additions of capital assets authorised by the
Board at the date of this annual report.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group mainly earns revenue in RMB and also incurs cost in
HK$ and RMB. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk with
respect mainly to HK$ which may affect the Group’s performance.
The management is aware of the possible exchange rate exposure
due to the continuing fluctuation of HK$ and will closely monitor
its impact on the performance of the Group to see if any hedging
policy is necessary. The Group currently does not have any foreign
currency hedging policy.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2020 (2019: Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group had no significant outstanding capital commitment as at
31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2020, the employee headcount of the Group
was 130 (2019: 126) and the total staff costs, including Directors’
remuneration, amounted to approximately RMB9.0 million for the
Reporting Period (2019: RMB10.0 million). The slight decrease
in total staff cost was due to the reduction in headcount of
the construction engineering function, of which the Group has
outsourced some of the construction engineering work to external
sub-contractors and the reduction in headcount of sales and
distribution function during the Reporting Period.

The Group offers competitive remuneration packages
commensurate with industry practice and provides various fringe
benefits to employees. The Group conducts induction training for
all of its new employees and on-going training from time to time
during their employment. The nature of training offered depends
on their specific field of operation.

The objective of the Group’s remuneration policy is to maintain
fair and competitive packages based on business requirements and
industry practice. In order to determine the level of remuneration
paid to its employees (including directors and senior management),
the following factors are considered:

workload, responsibility and job complexity;

e business requirements;

individual performance and contribution to results;

e company performance and profitability;
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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e retention considerations and the potential of individuals;
e  corporate goals and objectives;

e market rates and changes in relevant markets, including
supply and demand fluctuations and changes in competitive
conditions; and

e general economic situation.
KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, businesses
and prospects may be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties. The followings are the key risks and uncertainties
identified by the Group. There may be other risks and uncertainties
in addition to those shown below which are not known to the
Group or which may not be material now but could turn out to be
material in the future.

Business Risk

Future growth of the Group relies, to a certain extent, on the
successful maintenance and expansion of the Group’s sales to key
customers. As a result, any loss of key customers or substantial
reduction in the amount of purchase by them could significantly
and adversely affect the business, results of operations, financial
condition and prospects of the Group. Further, the business of
the Group is currently concentrated in Meizhou of Guangdong
Province. Any adverse economic or market development in this
region or any other regions that the Group operates may materially
and adversely affect the demand for the merchandise of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Operational Risk

Most of the Group's sale and distribution of merchandise are
derived from merchandise procured from its suppliers. Any
adverse change of the Group's relationship, including termination
or change in requirements as imposed by the suppliers, with its
suppliers may adversely affect the business operation of the Group.
Further, the Group’s operation can also be adversely affected if
there occur any material delay in product delivery by the Group's
suppliers.

Industrial Risk

The products and services offered by the Group are mainly used
for or closely related to building or home improvement purposes.
Accordingly, business, results of operations and prospects of the
Group are driven, to a considerable extent, by the growth of the real
estate market and the relevant government policies in China.

Financial Risk

The business and operation of the Group are exposed to financial
risks on currency, interest rates, credit and impairment assessment
and liquidity.

Details of financial risk management of the Group are set out in
note 38(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

Manpower and Retention Risk

The competition for talents in the cities that the Group operates
leads to the risk that the Group may not be able to attract and retain
key personnel and talents with the most appropriate and required
skills, experience and competence which would meet the business
objectives of the Group from time to time. The Group will continue
to evaluate our remuneration system and policy from time to time
and target to provide attractive remuneration package to attract,
retain and motivate suitable candidates and personnel.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESREREEERE

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Ms. Hou Wei (f%#%), aged 51, was appointed as a Director on
2 February 2015 and was re-designated as an executive Director
on 5 June 2015. Ms. Hou is also the chairlady and chief executive
officer of the Group. She is primarily responsible for the overall
management, strategic planning, business development and
cooperation of the Group. In September 1999, Ms. Hou joined
Guangdong Jiyi Household Building Materials Chain Co., Ltd.
("Jiyi Household™) as the manager of Jiyi Household and she
was later appointed as the executive director of Jiyi Household
in May 2004, primarily responsible for the overall management,
operation, strategic planning and the supervision of the finance
and purchase department. She has about 19 years of experience
in retail chain store operation and distribution of housewares and
building materials. Prior to joining the Group, from July 1989 to
July 1999, Ms. Hou served as a teacher of Meizhou Middle School
of Meizhou (8N 48N 22) . From October 2011 to December
2016, Ms. Hou served as a member of CPPCC Guangdong
Province Meixian Committee (MIpEREIBHEZES). In
November 2011, she received the title of “Guangdong Province
Outstanding Entrepreneurs” (B & EFH BEZEZ) jointly awarded
by Guangdong Entrepreneurs Council (B KRIEBES)and
Guangdong Province Economists and Entrepreneurs Association
(BRERBEZREEREET). In November 2012, she
received the title of “Green Brand Advocates of Chinese Household
Building Materials” (FEIEM K B4 B mIEEEE) awarded by
China Real Estate Society (FEIFE#ZEZ®)and China Building
Materials Daily (FEI#E+#R) . Ms. Hou received her diploma in
English from Guangdong Jiaying College (RS 2 EZ %) in the
PRC in June 1989 and her graduate certificate in the advanced
class of business strategy (48 75 B& /= &R FHETE) from the Peking
University (A5 A28) in the PRC in January 2013. Ms. Hou is the
sister of Mr. Hou Bo, a non-executive Director, the mother of Ms.
Deng Yiyi, a senior management of the Group and the sister-in-
law of Ms. Deng Haiming, who is also a senior management of the
Group.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Liu Xianxiu (1B %), aged 48, was appointed as an executive
Director on 5 June 2015. He is primarily responsible for overall
internal control and internal audit affairs of the Group. He joined
the Group in July 2011 and served as an account manager and
warehouse logistics manager of Jiyi Household until February 2013,
primarily responsible for accounting and auditing and management
of warehouse logistics. He was re-designated as a deputy chief
financial officer of Jiyi Household from March 2013 to June 2013,
and was appointed as the chief financial officer of Jiyi Household
in July 2013, primarily responsible for the overall management of
financial affairs. He was re-designated as the chief internal audit
officer of Jiyi Household in September 2017, primarily responsible
for the overall internal control and internal audit affairs. Prior to
joining the Group, from July 1995 to November 2001, he served
as the accountant of Meizhou Gas Company Limited (i8N &
BEIERRF),
supply of towngas in Meizhou, where he was primarily responsible

a company which is principally engaged in

for accounting. From November 2001 to November 2004, he was
the finance manager of Meizhou Yanming Lake Tourist Resorts
Company Limited (1854 fE PSR E RN B RAE]), a company
which is principally engaged in the management of Yanming Lake
Tourist Resorts (FEIS#IREE ERAT),
accounting and finance of such company. From November 2004

primarily responsible for

to July 2011, he served as the head of finance of Meizhou New
Weima Ceramics Company Limited (@M EEMEEBREA
&]), a company which is principally engaged in the production of
ceramics, primarily responsible for accounting and finance of such
company. Mr. Liu received his diploma in financial management and
computer application from South China Agricultural University (Z
B2 K2)in the PRC in July 1995. He received his qualification
certificate of specialty and technology (intermediate accounting)
(BEERMEKRZE (PRE
the PRC in May 2002.

1)) from the Ministry of Finance of
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Mr. Yang Baikang (## ), aged 55, was appointed as our
executive Director on 7 November 2018. He has been the vice
president of the Company since 1 November 2017 and is primarily
responsible for overseeing the engineering services business of
the Company’s subsidiary in the PRC. Mr. Yang served in various
positions in different government departments in Meizhou City,
Guangdong Province, PRC. He served as the deputy mayor of the
People’s Government of the Triangle Town of Meijiang District in
Meizhou City (&M L& = AiE AR BFT) from December
1995 to March 1999; he served as the deputy secretary of the
Party Committee (EZ&IZE50) of the People’s Government of the
Triangle Town of Meijiang District in Meizhou City (i M 181 &
= AEARBUF) from March 1999 to July 2002; he also served
as the mayor of the People’s Government of the Triangle Town of
Meijiang District in Meizhou City (8N M8 I & =AEARIK
Jf¥) from December 2000 to July 2002; he served as the deputy
director of the Meizhou Municipal Real Estate Administration Bureau
(BMNTEESEIER) from July 2002 to June 2007; he served as
deputy director of the Meizhou Municipal Construction Bureau ({8
MR
deputy director of Meizhou Municipal Housing and Urban-Rural
Development Bureau (18N B MM 4B 2 % /5) from February
2010 to July 2016. He obtained his diploma in political history
from Jiaying Normal College (ZZFEEMEBZERIE4R) in July 1986.
He obtained his graduation certificate in economic management
from CPC Guangdong Provincial Party School (PHERZZEK)
in December 2000 and obtained his graduation certificate of the

=) from June 2007 to February 2010; and he served as

postgraduate course for world economy and political majors from
Graduate School of Renmin University of China (FFE] A R A2 Hf
ZL4 B in June 2002.
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hou Bo (f%ig), aged 53, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 5 June 2015. He is primarily responsible for the risk
management and providing supervision in the business of the
Group. From September 2010 to December 2011, he has been the
supervisor of Jiyi Household and from December 2011 onwards,
was then appointed as the non-executive director of Jiyi Household,
primarily responsible for the risk management and providing
supervision in the business of Jiyi Household. Since June 2002, he
has been the managing director of Meizhou Xikang Real Estate
Investment Company Limited (I8N 1EREEMEREBR AR,
a company which is principally engaged in property investments,
where he is primarily responsible for the overall business
management. From October 2011 onwards, he has also served
as the managing director of Meizhou Xikang Estate Management
Company Limited (8NTHEEYZEEIRBRAF]), a company
which is principally engaged in estate management, where he is
primarily responsible for the overall business management. He
received a diploma in electronics from Meizhou West Vocational
and Technical College (#8135 78 B 2 2 11T 224%) in the PRC in July
1984. Mr. Hou is the brother of Ms. Hou Wei. He was qualified
as a senior industrial construction engineer (L#REES 4K T2
BM) recognised by the Department of Personnel of Guangdong
Province (B8R & A ZEEE) in March 2006, and was registered as
an architect with the Department of Housing and Urban Rural
Construction of Guangdong Province (&5 & £ = A 15 40 72 5% BE)
in August 2010.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ye Yihui (B2 #8), aged 57, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 6 October 2015. He has been the
independent director of Jiyi Household from July 2013 onwards,
primarily responsible for providing independent view and advice to
the board of directors of Jiyi Household including the effectiveness
of the internal control system and the audit process of Jiyi
Household. Mr. Ye has over 29 years of experience in areas of
finance, audit and tax. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ye served in
various positions where he was primarily responsible for the overall
management of financial affairs, operation and audit management.
He worked with the Audit Bureau of Meizhou Province ({85425
/@) from 1988 to 1998, during 1995 to 1998, he served as the
supervisor, where he was primarily responsible for the audit of
finance and infrastructure projects; the deputy manager of Zhuhai
Huacheng Certified Public Accountants (k78 EE 2 51 EM = #5FT)
from February 2001 onwards, where he was primarily responsible
for the management of financial affairs and operation; and the
manager of Meizhou Zhengde Tax Agent Office (1§ IE 1B 75 75 £
ET5F) from November 2010 onwards, where he was primarily
responsible for the overall management and operation. He received
his diploma in economics and industrial enterprise management
from Guangdong Radio and TV University (BE5R BB B IR AZ)
now known as the Open University of Guangdong (/& 58 B8 iU 22)
in the PRC in July 1986 and his diploma in economic management
from CPC Guangdong Provincial Party Committee Party School
(FRHEEREZER)in the PRC in July 2005 through a distance
learning course. He is an auditor registered with the National Audit
Office of the PRC (R A R H M EEE 51E) since November 1992
and an accountant registered with Ministry of Finance of the PRC
(FhEE A R HFIE R EER) since December 1992. He has been
admitted as a registered certified public accountant of Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (FFEIsE M & 5tEM 1% &)
since April 1996 and a registered tax agent of Management Center
of Certified Tax Agent of Guangdong Province (B & & st 075
EM1#7 &) since June 1999. He has been a member of the Council of
Management Center of Certified Tax Agent of Guangdong Province

(BHE B FMRFEENHE) since March 2011.
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Mr. Ho Hin Yip (fI$7%), aged 47, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 6 October 2015. Mr. Ho
has more than 23 years of financial and auditing experience.
Since April 2012, he is the financial controller and joint company
secretary of Dukang Distillers Holdings Limited (stock code: BKV),
a company listed on the Singapore Exchange Limited, where he
is responsible for the finance and accounting functions, statutory
compliance and corporate governance affairs. Mr. Ho has been
serving as an independent non-executive director of China Ever
Grand Financial Leasing Group Co., Ltd (formerly known as PME
Group Limited) (stock code: 379), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, since December 2012. Mr. Ho was
also appointed as an independent non-executive director of Xinhua
News Media Holdings Limited (Stock code:309) from December
2012 up until April 2020, where he resigned from the directorship
due to personal reasons. Mr. Ho received his bachelor’s degree in
business administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong
in December 1997. He was admitted as a member and a fellow
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
in August 2000 and August 2005, respectively. He has also been
registered as a certified public accountant (Practising) of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since February 2005.
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Mr. Hou Lianchang (ZH{&), aged 53, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 6 October 2015. He has
over 19 years of experience in legal work focusing on corporate
finance practice. Since April 2000, Mr. Hou has been a lawyer
with Jing Tian Law Office of Guangdong (BER&XEMEHE
FIT), specializing in areas such as foreign investment, mergers and
acquisitions, venture capital financing, asset and shareholding
restructuring, and initial public offerings in overseas markets. He
is also well versed in corporate structure and governance matters.
From March 2012 onwards, he serves as a board member of
Shenzhen Association of Trade in Services GRIITH IRFS E 5 17
BiEE).
law and his graduate certificate in the professional graduate
course of economic law (8 A F 2 I8 4 ERIZZEIEHD) from
Wuhan University (B2 A22) in the PRC, in December 1989 and
December 2003, respectively. He is a lawyer registered with the
Ministry of Justice of the PRC (FZE AR HFME BAER) since
September 1995.

Mr. Hou received his bachelor’'s degree in international

Mr. Hou was a director of New Heng Ye Investment Development
Limited GTIEX£KEERBRAE), a limited liability company
incorporated in Hong Kong with a principal business of investment
holding and dissolved by deregistration by the Registrar of
Companies in Hong Kong as a defunct company pursuant to
section 291 of the Predecessor Companies Ordinance. The
aforesaid company was inactive prior to its dissolution and was
dissolved in 2009.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Deng Yiyi (81#2%8), aged 28, was appointed as our chief
executive officer of the Company on 29 November 2019. She is
responsible for the Company’s strategic management, investor
relations, business development, corporate finance and legal and
regulatory compliance of the Group. Ms. Deng obtained a bachelor
degree in Laws from the University of International Business
and Economics, a master degree in Laws from the University of
California, Berkeley and a Juris Doctor from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong. Ms. Deng has extensive experience and knowledge
in the cross-border of legal and regulatory compliance, merger
and acquisition transactions, investor relations, corporate finance,
private equity and in advising on initial public offerings (“IPOs”) in
Hong Kong and in the United States. Prior to joining the Group, Ms.
Deng worked at two leading U.S. law firms, Skadden, Arps, Slate,
Meagher & Flom LLP and Cooley LLP, respectively. She has worked
on over 10 successful high profile IPOs in the U.S. and Hong Kong
capital markets and represented a number of leading new economy
companies in their cross-border merger and acquisition transactions
during her tenure with these two U.S. law firms. Ms. Deng is the
daughter of Ms. Hou, who is the Chairlady, an executive director,
and a substantial shareholder of the Company.
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Mr. Lo Wai Siu (Z&{&JK), aged 33, was appointed as our chief
financial officer and company secretary of the Company on
19 February 2019. He is responsible for the financial and audit
management, corporate finance, investment management,
investor relations, administration and company secretarial matters
of the Group. Mr. Lo holds a bachelor’s degree in business
administration in accountancy and management information
systems from the City University of Hong Kong and is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lo
has extensive experience and knowledge in the areas of financial
markets, corporate and management accounting, investment
management and auditing. Prior to joining the Group, he worked
in the audit and assurance department of PricewaterhouseCoopers
Hong Kong, and later he served key managerial roles in the regional
finance department (Asia Pacific region) of two multinational asset
management companies. He also served as vice president of the
investment management department of a financial group before
joining the Company.

Mr. Ling Yongshan (& L), aged 49, was appointed as the
executive vice president of the Group on 1 January 1999, primarily
responsible for managing human resources, warehousing logistics
and information technology of the Group. Since January 1999,
he has been the deputy general manager of Jiyi Household and
is primarily responsible for its overall management, including
human resources management, sales and marketing, warehouse
logistics and customer services. Since 9 January 2015, Mr. Ling has
been a director of Meizhou Jisheng Household Building Materials
Company Limited, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. Mr. Ling received his graduate certificate in the advanced
class of innovative entrepreneur ((E# X B T AIF = HKFHELD)
from the School of Continuing Education, Tsinghua University G&
FERBUEHEZP7) in the PRC in August 2012.
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Ms. Deng Haiming (8B;808), aged 64, was appointed as the
chief purchasing officer of the Group on 1 February 2012 and was
re-designated as the vice president of the Group in June 2016.
She is primarily responsible for managing and coordinating the
procurement of raw materials and equipments of the Group. From
October 1998 to January 2012, she served as the general manager
of various branches of Jiyi Household and was primarily responsible
for its overall operation and management. From February 2012
onwards, Ms. Deng serves as the chief purchasing officer of
Jiyi Household and is primarily responsible for supervising the
procurement of building materials and the selection of suppliers.
Since 6 April 2015, Ms. Deng has been a director of Jiyi Household.
She has nearly 15 years of experience in procurement and trading
of building materials. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Deng served
as the labour statistics officer of Dongfeng Enterprise Group of
Guangdong Meizhou Province (BERIgMNE R PEER) from
October 1979 to May 1998, where she was primarily responsible
for personnel administration. Ms. Deng received her diploma in
Financial Accounting from Guangdong Radio and TV University
(BHEEEHRAZE) (currently known as the Open University of
Guangdong (BEEEBIHAZR) in the PRC in July 1991. Ms. Deng is
the sister-in-law of Ms. Hou Wei.
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Mr. Liang Weizhen (2BEE), aged 35, was appointed as
the chief sales officer of the Group on 1 January 2019. He is
mainly responsible for the sales and marketing management of
the Group. He joined the Group in June 2013 and worked as
a construction engineer in the engineering department of Jiyi
Xinya until September 2013, and was mainly responsible for
supervising construction engineering work. From September 2013
to June 2014, he served as the deputy manager of the purchasing
department of the Company, and was mainly responsible for
managing and coordinating the Group’s procurement. From
June 2014 to January 2015, he was re-designated as the deputy
director of the General Office, and was mainly responsible for
the Group’s internal administration affairs and corporate legal
work. From January 2015 to January 2016, he served as the
company'’s representative, and was mainly responsible for assisting
the company secretary in handling listing-related matters and
coordination between various internal departments of the Group.
Since January 2016, He served as the assistant to the Chairlady and
was mainly assisting the Chairlady in managing the coordination
between internal departments, and was in charge of managing the
Group’s administration, logistics, human resources, legal affairs,
warehousing and other tasks. Mr. Liang obtained a bachelor’s
degree in law from Guangzhou University of China in June 2009.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Board are pleased to present their report and the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A review of the business of the Group and a discussion and analysis
of the Group’s performance during the year under review and a
discussion on the Group's future business development and outlook
of the Company’s business, possible risks and uncertainties that the
Group may be facing and important events affecting the Company
occurred during the year ended 31 December 2020 are provided in
the sections headed “Chairlady’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 5 to 10 and pages 11 to 25
of this annual report. An account of the Company’s relationships
with its key stakeholders is included in the paragraph headed
“Relationships with Employees, Suppliers and Customers” of the
report of the Directors on page 59 of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year ended 31
December 2020 using financial performance indicators is provided
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 11 to 25 of this annual report.

An analysis of the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the
Group and the particulars of events affecting the Group since
the end of the Reporting Period are set out respectively in the
paragraph headed “Key Risks and Uncertainties” on pages 24 to
25, and the paragraph headed “Event after the Reporting Period”
on page 62 of this annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERS

In addition, more details regarding the Group’s performance by
reference to environmental and social-related key performance
indicators and policies, as well as compliance with relevant laws
and regulations which have a significant impact on the Company
are provided in the section headed “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” of the on pages 84 to 116 of this annual
report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Reporting Period are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 131 to 132 of this report.

The Board does not recommend any payment of final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil). The Board has
adopted a dividend policy on 31 December 2018. Details of which
is set out of page 39 of this annual report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2020,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law, Chapter 22
(Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands
(the “Companies Law"”) amounted to approximately RMB604.9
million.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Reporting Period are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy on 31 December
2018 (the “Dividend Policy”), pursuant to which the Company
may declare and distribute dividends to the shareholders of the
Company to allow shareholders to share the Company’s profit and
for the Company to retain adequate reserves for future growth.

Under the Dividend Policy, provided the Group is profitable
and without affecting the normal operations of the Group, the
Company may consider to declare and pay dividends to the
shareholders of the Company. In deciding whether to propose a
dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board shall
take into account, among others, the operating results, cash flow,
financial condition, capital requirements of the Group, the interests
of the shareholders and any other factors that the Board may
consider appropriate. Declaration of the dividend by the Company
is also subject to the Companies Laws, the articles of association of
the Company and any applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Dividend Policy will continue to be reviewed from time to
time and shall in noway constitute a legally-binding commitment
by the Company in respect of its future dividend. There can be
no assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any
specific periods.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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BORROWINGS

Details of the Group’s borrowings as at 31 December 2020 are set
out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association and there is no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Executive Directors
Ms. Hou Wei (Chairlady)
Mr. Liu Xianxiu

Mr. Yang Baikang

Non-executive Director

Mr. Hou Bo
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Ye Yihui
Mr. Ho Hin Yip
Mr. Hou Lianchang

In accordance with article 108(a) of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Hou Lianchang, Mr. Yang Baikang and Mr. Liu
Xianxiu will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considered
all of the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors had engaged in or were interested in any
business which competed or was likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group during the Reporting
Period.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save for disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company,
or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or an
entity connected with a Director had or is having a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

The controlling shareholders of the Company entered into a deed
of non-competition in favour of the Company dated 6 October
2015 (“Deed of Non-competition”) as set out in the paragraph
headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” in the
Prospectus, pursuant to which the controlling shareholders of the
Company have undertaken to the Company that she/it will not,
and will procure her/its close associates (other than members of
the Group) not to directly or indirectly be involved in or undertake
any business (other than our business) that directly or indirectly
competes, or may compete, with our business or undertaking, or
hold shares or interest in any companies or business that compete
directly or indirectly with the business engaged by the Group from
time to time. The controlling shareholders have provided an annual
declaration and confirmed their compliance of all the undertakings
provided under the Deed of Non-competition. There are no matters
which required to be deliberated by the independent non-executive
Directors in relation to the compliance and enforcement of the
Deed of Non-competition and it is considered that the terms of the
Deed of Non-competition have been complied by the controlling
shareholders.
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CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTOR

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management”in this annual report, there
are no other changes in the information of Directors, which are
required to be disclosed pursuant to rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and senior management of
the Group are set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” section on pages 26 to 36 of this annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of
each director and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong, the “SFO")), which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of the SFO; as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the "Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules,
were as follows:

EFEHRS

EEERZE8

RAFREFKREREEERE | —&K
BEI BERE LHRABI35IBMFRET
WKEZHMESEREE-

ESkSREREBRERE

rEEEERSREEBRBEHNAERS
26E36EEEREREEEREI—H-

ESRESITHABREAERG RIEH
Rin z Em KRR E

AN _ECEF+"RA=+—H A RIRE
EREBTHRABRARBHEEAEEE
(EEREBEOIFESTERSRBERG
(MEEF B HRE &A1) EXVER) BIRRD ~ HEREMR
NRERETEERBEISSRPERAET &
SRR E BN EARNE] MBI ARz Ko %
B NN IRRE S BB RAIFE352F A
NEIBFEZERMBIERAXE  HiRE L
mRAM SR E EMETAESETES
RZWNRZETR] (MR2ETR])) BREAR AT
BT ER ROR BT ¢

E—IERERAR
"“ECTEFR

043



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EFEHRS

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the

Company

Name of Director

EElA

Ms. Hou Wei (“Ms. Hou") (Note 2)

Ekwt+ (MEkt)) (#zZ2)

Mr. Hou Bo (“Mr. Hou") (Note 3)

R E (MREE)) (HaZ3)

Mr. Liu Xianxiu (Note 4)
RNEHLE (Hat4)

Mr. Yang Baikang (Note 4)
WIRRREE (Hfat4)

Mr. Ye Yihui (Note 4)
EREBEE (Wit4)

Mr. Ho Hin Yip (Note 4)
EITTEEE (Hfat4)

Mr. Hou Lianchang (Note 4)
B Sk E (Hat4)
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Nature of interest

EEtE

Interest in a controlled

corporation

ERE

Beneficial owner (Note 4)
EmEA A (H15#4)

Interest in a controlled

corporation
REELE R

Beneficial owner (Note 4)

Bm#ER A (Wat4)

Beneficial owner
Bm#EREA
Beneficial owner
Bm#EREA
Beneficial owner
Bm#EREA
Beneficial owner
Bm#EREA
Beneficial owner

EmEAA

RE2E RS REMRGZEE

Number of
shares

RZHE

449,198,363

449,198,363
200,000

5,562,000

5,562,000
300,000

200,000

300,000

300,000

200,000

300,000

Approximate
percentage
of the issued
share capital
HEBITRE
B E 2L
(Note 1)
oz,
55.10%

55.10%
0.02%

0.68%

0.68%
0.04%

0.02%

0.04%

0.04%

0.02%

0.04%
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Notes:

1. The percentage figures were calculated based on 815,275,321 ordinary
shares (“Shares”) of the Company having a par value of HK$0.1 each in

issue as of 31 December 2020.

2. Ms. Hou was beneficially interested in 100% of the issued share capital
of Xinling Limited (“Xinling”). Xining was the registered holder of
449,198,363 Shares. Under Part XV of the SFO, Ms. Hou was therefore
deemed to have interests in 449,198,363 Shares in which Xinling was
interested.

3. Mr. Hou was beneficially interested in 100% of the issued share capital
of Jiesi Global Investments Limited (“Jiesi Global”). Jiesi Global was the
registered holder of 5,562,000 Shares. Under Part XV of the SFO, Mr. Hou
was therefore deemed to have interests in 5,562,000 Shares in which Jiesi

Global was interested.

4. Asat 2 November 2018, the Company granted Share Options of 300,000
to each of the members in the Board. For details of the exercise period and
vesting period of the Share Options, please refer to the paragraph headed

“Share Option Scheme” in this section on page 48 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company had or was
deemed to have any interests or short positions in any Shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of the SFO or which
were required to be kept pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, DEBENTURES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, the following persons (other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would be required to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO:

Aggregate long positions in the Shares and underlying
shares of the Company

Name of Shareholder Nature of interest

RRERBTE R EEeE

Xinling (Note 2) Beneficial owner

48 (Hiat2) Em#EA A

Brainy Economist Investment Ltd. (Note 3) Beneficial owner

ERKEBRAR (WWaE3) EmEAA

Liaw Lin Hsiang (“Mr. Liaw") (Note 3) Interest in a controlled
corporation

BER (L% (BaE3) A EER

Yiju Holdings Limited (”Yiju Holdings”) Beneficial owner
(Note 4)

wHIEERARAR (DREERI) BEmEAA
(Htzt4)
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Approximate

percentage

Number of of the issued
shares share capital
HERTRE

LiabE4=] BAEaL
(Note 1)

(HraE1)

449,198,363 55.10%
449,198,363 55.10%
69,100,000 8.48%
69,100,000 8.48%
69,100,000 8.48%
69,100,000 8.48%
55,263,000 6.78%
55,263,000 6.78%
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Name of Shareholder Nature of interest

RERBTE R EmeE

Mr. Liu Shui (“Mr. Liu”) (Note 4) Interest in a controlled
corporation

Bk (MR %E)) (WHat4) S AEER

Mr. Lin Shun Wei Beneficial owner

MIBEEE Em#EEA

Notes:

1. The percentage figures were calculated based on 815,275,321 Shares
with a par value of HK$0.1 each in issue as of 31 December 2020.

2. Xining was the registered holder of 449,198,363 Shares.

3. Mr Liaw was beneficially interested in 100% of the issued share capital
of Brainy Economist Investment Ltd. Brainy Economist Investment Ltd was
the registered holder of 69,100,000 shares. Under Part XV of the SFO,
Mr. Liaw was therefore deemed to have interests in 69,100,000 Shares in
which Brainy Economist Investment Ltd was interested.

4. Mr. Liu was beneficially interested in 100% of the issued share capital
of Yiju Holdings. Yiju Holdings was the registered holder of 55,263,000
Shares. Under Part XV of the SFO, Mr. Liu was therefore deemed to have
interests in 55,263,000 Shares in which Yiju Holdings was interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Company
had not been notified of any other persons (other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would be required to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted on 6 October 2015
("Share Option Scheme”), the Company may grant share options
to any directors, employees, advisers, consultants, suppliers,
customers and distributors who in the sole discretion of the Board,
will contribute or have contributed to the growth and development
of the Group so as to provide incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the success of the Group's operation. As at 2
November 2018, the Company granted share options to subscribe
for a total of 36,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the
Share Capital of the Company under the Share Option Scheme to
certain eligible participants. Details of the grant of share options are
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 2 November
2018.

Summary of the terms of the Share Option Scheme is as follows:
(a) Purposes

The purposes of the Share Option Scheme are to enable
the Group to grant options to the eligible participants to: (i)
motivate them to optimise their performance efficiently for
the benefit of the Group; and (i) attract and retain or maintain
on-going business relationship with the eligible participants
whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-term
growth of the Group.
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(b) Eligible Participants

(o)

Any employees (whether full time or part time), directors
(including executive, non-executive and independent non-
executive directors), advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers
and distributors of the Group (”Eligible Participants”) who,
in the sole opinion of the Board, will contribute or have
contributed to the growth and development of the Group.

Maximum number of Shares available for issue

The maximum number of Shares which may be allotted and
issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company must not,
in aggregate, exceed 30% of the total number of Shares in
issue from time to time. The total number of Shares in respect
of which options may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue as
at the date of listing of the Shares, being 36,000,000 Shares,
unless the Company obtains the approval of the shareholders
in general meeting for refreshment.
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(d) Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Participant

(e)

(f)

050

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options (whether exercised or outstanding) granted
in any 12-month period to:

(i) each Eligible Participant must not exceed 1.0% of the
total number of Shares in issue; and

(i) a substantial shareholder of the Company or an
independent non-executive director must not exceed
0.1% of the total number of Shares in issue and not
exceed HK$5.0 million in aggregate value.

Period within which the Shares must be taken up under
an option

An option must be exercised within 10 years from the date on
which it is granted or such shorter period as the Board may
specify at the time of grant.

Minimum period, if any, for which an option must be
held

No minimum period for which the option has to be held before
it can be exercised is specified in the Share Option Scheme.
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(h)
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Period open for acceptable of an option and amount
payable upon acceptance

An offer of grant of an option may be accepted by an Eligible
Participant within 21 days from the date of the offer of grant
of the option. A consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on
acceptance of the offer of grant of an option.

Basis of determining the subscription price of an option

The exercise price must be at least the highest of: (i) the
closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheet on the date of grant; (ii) the average
closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Share.

(9)

(h)

EFEHRS

MERR M T R 2 IR R R R R (S
Z2EHH

REBREZZNTHSERSEAR
BRHBREZNEFE21IBARER I
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() Validity of the Share Option Scheme (i) FRRRESIZHEME

The Share Option Scheme has a life of 10 years and will expire
on 5 October 2025 unless otherwise terminated in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

On 2 November 2018, the Company granted a total of
36,000,000 share options (the “Share Options”) under the
Share Option Scheme to subscribe for a total of 36,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company. The details of such grant of
the Share Options are set out as follows:

BRESEZAMHASTF RN _-F
“HE+ATBER BRIFREBRES
B 2 RSB TRLE-

RZEBE-NFE+—BZH ' A27R
ERERES 8 R H 5 3£36,000,000%
etk (TEkE) URBELATGH
36,000,000 EEAR - ARAERER L Z
SIBEEIINT ¢

Total number of 36,000,000

Share Options granted 36,000,0001%3

BRI EAH

Exercise price of the Share Options HK$0.704 per share, as stated in the daily quotations sheet

granted issued by the Stock Exchange, the closing price of the date of
B BRENTEE grant and the date immediately before the grant were HK$0.69.
FREH0.7048 T B EMRNES HRBERAR

PO B HA R B4R AT B HARI U (B 40.6978 7T ©
Exercise period and vesting period of (@) approximately 1/3 of the Share Options offered, i.e. Share

the Share Options
fERRE 2 1T ERA R R B A

Options to subscribe for 1,833,334 Shares, shall become
vested in the 7th month of the date of this offer letter (the
“1st Vesting Date”) and shall be exercisable at any time
during the period commencing on the 1st Vesting Date
and ending on the day immediately preceding the 1st
anniversary of the 1st Vesting Date (both dates inclusive);

(a) BRHBREZHN=72— BI0E1,833,334K RN VE
R BN ABEARHHIRRESE7ER (BEHEBE)
BE URPEEREHRAEENEZEEEREH
HzBUBFRERRL (BEEEREWA) BEARZEM
BRI TATME S
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(b)
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approximately 1/3 of the Share Options offered, i.e. Share
Options to subscribe for 1,833,333 Shares, shall become
vested in the 19th month of the date of this offer letter
(the "2nd Vesting Date”) and shall be exercisable at any
time during the period commencing on the 2nd Vesting
Date and ending on the day immediately preceding the 1st
anniversary of the 2nd Vesting Date (both dates inclusive);
and

HEBEREN=72— BI0E1,833,333 DAV
BeHE) BN AZLQREBHARE19E A (MFHE2MEEE B
HA)) BRI WAL 52185 8 H HAR A R BRI 5528 57
BHEZFVEFRIER AL (BEEEMA) iR
I RFE R F1T6E 5 &

approximately 1/3 of the Share Options offered, i.e. Share
Options to subscribe for 1,833,333 Shares, shall become
vested in the 31st month of the date of this offer letter
(the “3rd Vesting Date”) and shall be exercisable at any
time during the period commencing on the 3rd Vesting
Date and ending on the day immediately preceding the 1st
anniversary of the 3rd Vesting Date (both dates inclusive)
RUEBEREZN=72— (BI5381,833,333 R AV
) B AZNRGBRESIVEAR (IFE3EFEH
HA)) 8RB WA SE3E R E H AR R R B E3ME R
BHBMZFVEFRERAL (BEEEMA) BEAZ
R F1T6E

E—IERERAR
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EFEHRS

Out of the 36,000,000 Share Options granted, 2,700,000
Share Options were granted to the Directors or substantial
shareholders of the company, or any of their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), details of which are

as follows:

Name of grantee

RIRAYS
Ms. Hou Wei
EH L

Mr. Liu Xianxiu

BBEHIE
Mr. Yang Baikang
sl e
Mr. Hou Bo
BT E

Mr. Ye Yihui
EXRERE

Mr. Hou Lianchang
=B RE

Mr. Ho Hin Yip
(EERE PSS

Ms. Deng Haiming

il g
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Position(s) held with the Company
R QE)REZ B

Chairlady of the Board, executive Director and
substantial shareholder of the Company

EFEIR FRARTEERTERE

Executive Director of the Company

RABATES

Executive Director of the Company
(appointed on 7 November 2018)

AABATEE R ZE-N\F+—-ALtRHEZD

Non-executive Director and the brother of the chairlady of
the Board and substantial shareholder of the Company

RABFATEF UREFTTIRATERFZAE

Independent non-executive Director of the Company

RABBIUIFAITES

Independent non-executive Director of the Company
ARBEBUIFRNTES

Independent non-executive Director of the Company
RRABVBIUIIFRNTES

Sister-in-law of the chairlady of the Board and substantial
shareholder of the Company

AABDEFEETEREERRZ AL

RE#EH 236,000,000 ER
2,700,000 BEREERFTAABZES
FEERFRFEZEZEAHEA (E
ZR EMRA) > HFBuT .

Number of
options granted

iz EiRERR

300,000

300,000

300,000

300,000

300,000

300,000

300,000

300,000



The following table disclose details of the Company’s
share options held by Directors and other employees and

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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TEREREEREMEEREZER
SERENARZEBRENBE S

movements in such holding during the year ended 31 ZFE+RA=+—HILFEZEFHFE
December 2020:
Outstanding Outstanding
and and
exercisable exercisable
at the beginning at the end of
of the year Exercised Cancelled Lapsed the year
RENHE REREK
Date of grant =HAN TERATRE B B 35 FERATE
Granted to Directors ~ [EEREF
2 November 2018 “E-N\F+—-BZH 1,900,000 (200,000) - (300,000) 1,400,000
(Note)
Granted to senior HAeREEERT
management 300,000 (100,000) 200,000
2 November 2018 —Z-\F+—-FZH
Granted to employees [F{EE#ET
2 November 2018 “E-N\F+—-BZH 1,200,000 - - (400,000) 800,000
Granted to consultants [EEERI#EF
2 November 2018 —E-N\F+—BZH 16,300,000 - - (5,433,333) 10,866,667
Granted to customers EZEEF
2 November 2018 —Z-\F+—-FZH 16,100,000 - - (5,366,667) 10,733,333
Total st 35,800,000 (200,000) - (11,600,000) 24,000,000

Note: The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately before
the dates on which the options were exercised was HK$0.69 and the

exercise price per share was HK$0.704.

Kzt REBEERERETE BB ZRMGM
HEHWHER0.9EBTKRERITHES
0.704%8 7T °
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The following table disclose details of the Company’s
share options held by Directors and other employees and

TREEHEEFRAMEEREZARRRB
REURZEBRERBE_Z-—NE+Z

movements in such holding during the year ended 31 B=+—HIEFEZ#&HE15
December 2019:
Outstanding Outstanding
and and
exercisable exercisable
at the beginning at the end of
of the year Exercised Cancelled Lapsed the year
RE K RERHEEK
Date of grant BB TERATE Bi7fe B BEH TERATE
Granted to Directors ~ [EEREF
2 November 2018 N = | 2,100,000 (200,000) - - 1,900,000
Granted to senior REREEERT
management
2 November 2018 “E-N\E+—AZH 300,000 - - - 300,000
Granted to employees [F{EE#EF
2 November 2018 “E-N\E+—AZH 1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000
Granted to consultants [FEERIIEF
2 November 2018 “E-N\F+—BZH 16,300,000 - - - 16,300,000
Granted to customers [EEFEF
2 November 2018 “E-N\E+—AZH 16,100,000 - - - 16,100,000
Total st 36,000,000 (200,000) . - 35,800,000
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The fair values of the Share Options granted under the Share Option
Scheme were determined and measured using the Binomial Model
on 2 November 2018. The significant inputs into the model were
the exercise price shown above, risk-free interest rates of 2.02%
to 2.25%, volatility of 43.4% to 46.1% and dividend yield of 0%.
As any changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially
affect the fair value estimates, the valuation models for the Share
Options granted do not necessarily provide a reliable single measure
of the fair value of the Share Options. The related accounting policy
for the fair value of the Share Options granted is disclosed at note
3 to the consolidated financial statements.

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value
of the Share Options are based on the Directors’ best estimate.
The value of an option varies with different variables of certain
subjective assumptions.

For details of the Share Option Scheme, please refer to the
paragraph headed “Statutory and General Information — D. Other
Information — 1. Share Option Scheme”
prospectus dated 27 October 2015.

in Appendix IV to the

EFEHRS

RIZE—N\F+—BZHRBEEREEE
HHNEREZ ATFENLERBZEBERAEANETE
KEtE - ZEANERBAES LR
TEE EREFIZER2.02%E2.25%  HIES
43.4%F46.1% > B EUNEE0% - AN F#Ea A
BRENEANEEEHATFEGBSEEEKR
FE EREBERENGEEIRNIRHER
BATFENIFE—AZ -BIREBEREAT
ENHAEHBRREERN RS M BRKRMF
30

SAEBREATEMERNERAEERRR
DBDEREFZREMS -BREBEREET
TERRROTRAEEMAEPNRE-

ERBRESEZFBE F2REBHERAT
—£¢+H_+tEWEH§&WﬁEWR£
ER—MRER D HEtER —1.BRES S —
B
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ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the
date of this report was the Company, its holding company, any of its
subsidiaries or follow subsidiaries or a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts by which any person undertook the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business
of the Company were entered into between the Company and
any person who is not a Director or not engaged in the full-time
employment of the Group or existed during the Reporting Period.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the Reporting Period, the Group's five largest customers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 59.05% of the Group's
total turnover. The largest customer accounted for approximately
27.93% of the Group's total turnover.

During the Reporting Period, the Group's five largest suppliers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 43.42% of the Group's
total purchases. The largest supplier accounted for approximately
16.08% of the Group’s total purchases.

To the best of the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors,
their respective associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had an interest in any of the five largest suppliers or
customers.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The Group understands that employees are valuable assets. The
Group provides competitive remuneration package to attract
and motivate the employees. The Group regularly reviews the
remuneration package of employees and makes necessary
adjustments to conform to the market standard.

The Group's business is built on a customer-oriented culture, and
are focused on establishing relationships with customers. The
Group also understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with its suppliers and customers to fulfil its immediate
and long-term goals. To maintain its market competitiveness within
the industry, the Group aims at delivering constantly high standards
of quality in the service to its customers. During the Reporting
Period, there was no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its suppliers and/or customers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group had continuing connected
transactions with certain connected persons, details of which have
been disclosed in the Prospectus. Certain continuing connected
transactions are exempt from one or more of the reporting,
announcement, shareholders’ approval and annual review
requirements for the purpose of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

On 31 December 2020, the continuing connected transaction
between Jiyi Household and Meizhou Xikang Construction
Company Limited (“Meizhou Xikang”) in relation to supply of
merchandise has been discontinued.

EFEHRS

BlES - (EE R EFIRGF

rEEROEEAEEEE - AEEREAER
FNHFHFMMFBURS KBRS - AEEE
RS ESNFM GBI FROZREURT

aTipEE.

AEFREBNEUAUERRHERANEEN
Bz b THENREFRBUSIFRE A&
ETBRREHERRERRERITFEAFRE
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NS5 FE 1 AEERNFESTRIRM
BERB -NKREHE AEERAHEEE KR
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RER S
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Meizhou Xikang is principally engaged in property development
and engineering work for institutional and public facilities in the
PRC. Pursuant to the renewal master supply agreement dated 12
December 2017 entered into between Jiyi Household and Meizhou
Xikang, Jiyi Household agreed to supply merchandise including
building materials, home improvement materials and furnishings
to Meizhou Xikang for a term of three year commenced from 1
January 2018 to 31 December 2020. The renewal master supply
agreement governed, among other things, the sale and purchase of
merchandise between Jiyi Household and Meizhou Xikang after the
expiry of the previous master agreement.

For the three years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019 and 2020,
the total amount of sales to Meizhou Xikang were as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2018 HE
_|_
Year ended 31 December 2019 HE
_|_
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE
_|_

None of the amounts of sales to Meizhou Xikang for the three years
ended 31 December 2020 exceed the annual cap of RMB7,953,000
(exclusive of taxes) as disclosed in the announcement of the
Company on 12 December 2017.

In light of the declining amounts of sales to Meizhou Xikang,
Jiyi Household did not enter into any renewal agreements with
Meizhou Xikang after the expiry of the master supply agreement
dated 12 December 2017.

JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2020

060

J0 F J0 F ao <

BINEEEZERNPFERERBER ALK
MERERTREIF-RBE—REBHEBMNE
BN ZzBAHA_T—+tE+_B+_-HzZ
EMEHERZ E—XEREREMNER
HEmR (BEEM RBEEEMEREKER) »
B2 N\E—B—HBEZ-_ZH+_H
=t+—HIEAB=F -ZEMBEERZRE
(E e E—REEEINERZBR LA
iR ERESR-

BE_Z-\FR-ZF-NFURZZE_ZF
F+ZA=+—H Ll::TIfEF; » B RAE N R
ZIHERTRENT ¢

Amount of sales
HEEE
(exclusive

of taxes)
(Fah)
RMB’000
ANEEFT

|
=
i

1,590

I
+

—HLEFE

i

79
—HIEFE

+ g+
b
o

—HLEFE

HBOARABN _E—tE+BA+HZA
SFEE REE_S-EF+°-HA=+—H
E=RBEER  BREBMNEERZHEERERL
BEE LR ARKE7,953,00070 (FERH) o

ERRENEEZHESBRE TR £—5
EREMA-S—tET A+ H2@M
P 4 5 2 S 4 4 ) 9 T 12 £ )
i3



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken
in the normal course of business are set out in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements, of which certain transactions
also constitute connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules but were exempted from disclosure requirements
under the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Each Director or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to
be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses
or liabilities which he or she may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his or her office or otherwise in relation
thereto in accordance with the Articles of Association.

Directors and officers liability insurance are currently in force and
in place to protect the Directors, officers and/or the directors of
the associated corporation of the Company against potential costs
and liabilities arising from claims brought against them. Permitted
indemnity provision are set out in such insurance contracts.

EFEHRS
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December
2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principle corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company is set out in the “Corporate Governance Report”
on pages 65 to 83 of this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the Board is aware, there was no material breach of or
non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the
Group that has a significant impact on the business and operation
of the Group during the Reporting Period.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There is no material subsequent event undertaken by the Company
or by the Group after 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this
annual report.
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AUDITORS

During the three years immediately preceding this annual report,
the Company has undergone the following changes of auditors:

Name of former auditors

A BNz 5T

Date of resignation

FERH

PricewaterhouseCoopers 20 September 2019

e RIS ER == “E-NAFENAABZ+H

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu 11 November 2020

("Deloitte”)
=Y AR B EtA T “EIEF+—HA+—H
(M=#))

The Board, with the recommendation from the Audit Committee,
has resolved to appoint Moore Stephens CPA Limited as the auditor
of the Company with effect from 12 November 2020 to fill the
casual vacancy following the resignation of Deloitte and to hold
office until the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 11
November 2020 and 12 November 2020 for more details.

EFEHRS

B REm

REBRFHRAZ =ZEFE > A RBZHENE
ES L

Reasons for resignation

FHEIEH

The Company and PwC could not reach an
agreement on the audit fee for the financial
year ended 31 December 2019.

AABRBEIBKEENRBE_ZE—NEF
T R=+—HUIEMBEEZEZERA
HRBEERN—BER-

The Company and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
could not reach an agreement on the audit
fee for the financial year ended 31 December
2020.
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The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020 have been audited by Moore Stephens CPA
Limited, who will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Hou Wei
Chairlady

Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard of
corporate governance to safeguard the interests of the shareholders
of the Company and to enhance corporate value and responsibility.
The Board comprises three executive Directors, one non-executive
Director and three independent non-executive Directors. The Board
has adopted the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code ("CG Code") set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
During the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date
of this annual report, the Company has complied with the code
provisions under the CG Code.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE

The Directors have adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuer (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
for Directors in dealing in the Company’s securities. Specific
enquiries have been made to all Directors and all Directors have
confirmed that they have fully complied with the required standard
of dealings as set out in the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2020. Relevant employees who are likely to
be in possession of unpublished inside information of the Group
are also subject to compliance with written guidelines or no less
exacting terms than the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2020.

EXEBRKRS
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ETEEBRKRS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Directors, individually and
collectively, must act in good faith in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders. The Board has established three
board committees, being the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee (each a “Board
Committee” and collectively the “Board Committees”), to oversee
different areas of the Company’s affairs.

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors, namely
Ms. Hou Wei (chairlady), Mr. Liu Xianxiu and Mr. Yang Baikang, one
non-executive Director, Mr. Hou Bo and three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Ye Yihui, Mr. Ho Hin Yip and Mr.
Hou Lianchang.

Their biographical details and (where applicable) their family
relationships are set out in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 26 to 36
in this annual report. A List of Directors identifying their roles and
functions is available on the Stock Exchange’s and the Company'’s
website.

Save as otherwise disclosed, there is no relationship between any
members of the Board, and no information relating to the Directors
is required to be disclosed pursuant to rules 13.51(2) and 13.51(B)
(1) of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board sets the Group's overall objectives and strategies,
monitors and evaluates its operating and financial performance
and reviews the corporate governance standard of the Group.
It also decides on matters such as annual and interim results,
major transactions, director appointments or re-appointments,
investment policy, dividend and accounting policies. The Board
has delegated the authority and responsibility for implementing
its business strategies and managing the daily operations of the
Group's businesses to the executive Directors and members of
senior management. The functions and power that are so delegated
are reviewed periodically to ensure that they remain appropriate.

All Directors are required to declare to the Board upon their
first appointment, the directorships or other positions they are
concurrently holding at other companies or organisations. These
interests are updated on an annual basis as and when necessary.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
Directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election, whereas code provision A.4.2 states that all directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment and
that every director, including those appointed for a specific term,
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years.

In accordance with article 108(a) of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Hou Lianchang, Mr. Ye Yihui and Mr. Liu Xianxiu
will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. Details of the re-election
are set out in the AGM circular as despatched together with this
annual report.
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Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company and is appointed for a specific term of three
years unless terminated by not less than three months’ notice in
writing served by either the executive Director or the Company.

The non-executive Director and the independent non-executive
Directors have each signed an appointment letter with the
Company and is appointed for a specific term of three years.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Company's corporate governance function is carried out by
the Board pursuant to provision D.3.1 of the CG Code, which
include: (a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance; (b) to review and monitor the
training and continuous professional development of the Directors
and senior management of the Group; (c) to review and monitor
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop, review and monitor
the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees of the Group and the Directors; and (e) to review the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and relevant disclosure
in the corporate governance report of the annual report of the
Company.

The Board has performed the abovementioned corporate
governance functions during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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BOARD MEETINGS

The Board held 16 Board meetings during the year ended 31
December 2020, and a tentative schedule for four regular Board
meetings for 2021 has been provided to the Directors at the
beginning of the year. The attendance of each Director at the Board
meetings is set out on page 77.

Between scheduled regular Board meetings, Directors may approve
various matters by way of passing written resolutions. Additional
Board meetings may be arranged if required. In addition, at least
14 days’ notice of a regular Board meeting shall be given and the
Company aims at sending the agenda and the accompanying board
papers to Directors at a reasonable time before the intended date
of a Board meeting.

The Company Secretary assists in preparing the agenda for the
Board meeting and ensures that all applicable rules and regulations
regarding Board meetings are complied with. Minutes of the
Board and Board committees’ meetings are kept by the Company
Secretary, which are available to all Directors for inspection.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the
responsibilities of the external auditor to the shareholders are set
out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 117 to 130.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES INSURANCE

Appropriate insurance coverage has been arranged in respect
of indemnification against costs, charges, losses, expenses and
liabilities that may be incurred by the Directors and officers of the
Company in the execution and discharge of their duties.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. For the year ended
31 December 2020, each of the Directors has been given relevant
guideline materials to ensure that they are apprised of the latest
changes in the commercial, legal and regulatory requirements
in relation to the Company's businesses, and to refresh their
knowledge and skills on the roles, functions and duties of a listed
company director.

New Directors, on appointment, will be given an induction package
containing all key legal and Listing Rules’ requirements as well as
guidelines on the responsibilities and obligations to be observed
by a director. The package will also include the latest published
financial reports of the Company and the documentation for the
corporate governance practices adopted by the Board.

The Company also continuously updates Directors on the latest
developments regarding Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. Circulars or
guidance notes are also issued to Directors where appropriate to
ensure their awareness of best corporate governance practices.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The role of the independent non-executive Directors is to provide
independent and objective opinions to the Board, giving adequate
control and balances for the Group to protect the overall interests
of the shareholders and the Group. They serve actively on the Board
and its committees to provide their independent and objective
views.

In compliance with rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, representing more than one-third of the Board. Two of
the independent non-executive Directors namely, Mr. Ye Yihui and
Mr. Ho Hin Yip, have the appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise as required
by rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. The Company has received
from each of the independent non-executive Directors a written
confirmation of his independence and has satisfied itself of such
independence in accordance with the independent guidelines as set
out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is supported by three Board Committees, namely
the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. Each Board Committee has its defined
and written terms of reference approved by the Board covering
its duties, powers and functions. Their terms of reference are
available on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

All Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties, including access to management or
professional advice if considered necessary.
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Audit Committee

As at 31 December 2020 and the date of this report, the Audit
Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Ye Yihui, Mr. Ho Hin Yip and Mr. Hou Lianchang. Mr.
Ye Yihui, who has appropriate professional qualifications and
experience in accounting matters, was appointed as the chairman
of the Audit Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board
by providing an independent view of the effectiveness of the
financial reporting process, risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, to oversee the external and internal audit
processes, to develop and review the Group’s policies and to
perform other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

There were 5 meetings of the Audit Committee held during the
year ended 31 December 2020. The attendance of each Director at
the Audit Committee meetings is set out on page 77. During the
year under review, the members of the Audit Committee reviewed
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group,
reviewed the consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2019 and for the six months ended
30 June 2020, reviewed the risk assessment results, the internal
audit activities for 2020 and discussed the change of auditors and
audit plans for the year ended 31 December 2020 with the external
auditor.

In addition, the Audit Committee held one meeting in March 2021.
The Audit Committee reviewed the Group’s annual results for the
year ended 31 December 2020.
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The Audit Committee monitors the audit and non-audit services
rendered to the Group by the external auditor and ensures that the
engagement of external auditor in non-audit services will not impair
its audit independence or objectivity.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the fees in respect of the
audit and non-audit services provided to the Group by Moore
Stephens, is set out as follows:
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Fee
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RMB

AR

Statutory audit services EE B LIRS 1,000,000

Non-statutory audit services IEEEBILARTS 219,000
Remuneration Committee hNES g

As at 31 December 2020 and the date of this report, the
Remuneration Committee comprises two independent non-
executive Directors and one executive Director, namely Mr. Hou
Lianchang, Mr. Ye Yihui and Mr. Liu Xianxiu. Mr. Hou Lianchang is
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The primary duties
of the Remuneration Committee include (but without limitation):
(i) making recommendations to the Directors regarding the Group's
policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policies; (ii) making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
our Directors and senior management; (iii) reviewing and approving
the management’s remuneration proposals with reference to
the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; and (iv) considering
and approving the grant of share options to eligible participants
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.
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There was one meeting of the Remuneration Committee held
during the year ended 31 December 2020. The attendance of
each Director at the Remuneration Committee meeting is set out
on page 77. During the year under review, the members of the
Remuneration Committee reviewed the existing remuneration
policy and package of all existing Directors and senior
management.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31
December 2020 are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The emoluments paid to each of four members of senior
management of the Company was between RMBO to RMB1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Nomination Committee

As at 31 December 2020 and the date of this annual report, the
Nomination Committee comprises two independent non-executive
Directors and one executive Director, namely Mr. Hou Lianchang,
Mr. Ye Yihui and Ms. Hou Wei. Ms. Hou Wei is the Chairlady of
the Nomination Committee. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee is to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select, or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships.

There was one meeting of the Nomination Committee held during
the year ended 31 December 2020. The attendance of each
Director at the Nomination Committee meeting is set out on page
77. During the year under review, the members of the Nomination
Committee reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board and reviewed the objectives set for implementing the board
diversity policy.
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The Company believes that diversity of Board members can
be achieved through consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge,
length of service and the legitimate interests of the Company’s
principal shareholders. All Board's appointment are based on the
merits of the candidates and the Board believes that doing so will
be consistent with achieving a diversity of perspectives.

Meeting with Independent Non-executive Directors

Code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code states that the chairman of
the board of directors of a listed issuer should hold meetings with
the independent non-executive directors at least annually without
the presence of other directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, one meeting was
held between the Chairlady and the independent non-executive
Directors, with each of the independent non-executive Directors
present. The Chairlady will continue to make arrangements for
holding at least one meeting with the independent non-executive
Directors for every subsequent year.

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee has developed a nomination policy.
Such nomination policy is established with the aims of ensuring
the Board maintains a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the business of the
Group.

To assess and evaluate whether an individual candidate is suitably
qualified to be appointed as a Director, the Nomination Committee
shall take into account, among other things:

—  the qualifications, skills, knowledge, ability and experience of
the individual candidate;
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—  the potential time commitment and attention to perform
duties as a director under the Listing Rules and the applicable
laws and regulations;

—  the potential contributions that the individual candidate can
make to the diversity of the Board, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service;

—  the personal ethics, integrity and reputation of the individual
candidate (and where appropriate, adequate background
checks and other verification processes shall be conducted
against the individual candidate);

—  the current structure, size and composition of the Board and
the Company’s corporate strategy;

—  Board succession planning considerations and the long-term
needs of the Company;

—  (in case of a candidate for an independent non-executive
Director), the independence of such candidate with reference
to, among other things, the independence criteria as set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules; and the guidance and
requirements relating to independent non-executive directors
set out in Code Provision A.5.5 of Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules; and

— any other factors and matters as the Nomination Committee
may consider appropriate.

The Nomination Committee will review the nomination policy at
least annually and discuss any revisions and updates that may be
required, and recommend the same to the Board for approval.
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The individual attendance records of each Director at the
physical meetings of the Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee and at the general meeting
of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set

out below:

Name of Director

EEit4

Executive Directors
Ms. Hou Wei

Mr. Liu Xianxiu

Mr. Yang Baikang

Non-executive Director
Mr. Hou Bo

Independent non-executive
Directors

Mr. Ye Yihui

Mr. Ho Hin Yip

Mr. Hou Lianchang

HiTES
EHExL
HERRE
BRRLE

FHTES
ER%EE

BUFRTES
REERL

TS
RHERE
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Number of physical meetings attended/held during his/her tenure

Board
Exg
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Audit
Committee

BHEAE

N/A T
N/A R
N/A T

N/A R

5/5
5/5
5/5

Remuneration
Committee

FHERE

NA FER
1”n
NA FER

NA R

11
NA FER
11

Nomination
Committee

ReZAE

N
N/A R
NA T

N/A R

17
NA &R
17
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Group’s
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the Group's
state of affairs, results and cash flows for the year and in accordance
with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
The Group has selected appropriate accounting policies and
has applied them consistently based on prudent and reasonable
judgements and estimates. The Board considers that the Group
has adequate resources to continue in business for the foreseeable
future and not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may affect the business of the Group or cast
doubts on its ability to continue as going concern.

The responsibilities of the Company’s external auditors with
respect to financial reporting are set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2020

078

MBS

EXCHBEEASEERREEZEGSALE
BHENEEMBREEIREBATKRAZ
RERERRTEBYHRE MABRKEA
BEEATRBAEENRATFEENEBRR X
EhkRENE - ~EBEREFERSEX E
G EZEGENESBRRLEMKB-ER
ERNAERREREE RN A RARRES
MEEE BT ANER R ELAEERBES
UBLAEBRFEEEREDNRE 2 S M4 30R
MEBNEAERTEERAR-

RABINEIZHBEN L 75 R IRAEEEH
RAFRBIUIZHBENR S —H



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board recognises its responsibility to ensure the Group
maintains a sound and effective internal control and risk
management system. However, risk-taking is an inherent
element of the Group's business and operation. The Group’s
risk management and internal control systems are designed to
management rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. It
is also designed to safeguard assets against misappropriation
and unauthorised disposition and to manage operational risks.
Review of the Group's internal controls covering major financial,
operational and compliance control as well as risk management
functions. The Group’s risk management framework includes the
following elements:

e identify significant risks in the Group's operation environment
and evaluate the impacts of those risks on the Group’s
business;

e develop necessary measures to manage those risks; and

e monitor and review the effectiveness of such measures.

The implementation of risk management framework of the Group
was assisted by the Group's internal audit department which was
responsible for the internal audit function so that the Group could
ensure new and emerging risks relevant to the Group's operation
are promptly identified by management, assess the adequacy of
action plans to manage these risks and monitor and evaluate the
effectiveness of the action plans.
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With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Group: i) carries out
its daily operation with regards to the “Guidance on Disclosure
of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong; and ii) closely communicates with its
legal advisor regarding whether the relevant information is likely
to have impact on the price of the shares of the Company or their
trading volume and thus is considered as inside information that
needs to be disclosed pursuant to the Inside Information Provisions

under Part XIVA of the SFO and the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reporting to the Board the
implementation of the Group’s risk management, internal control
policy which among other things, included the determination
of risk factors, evaluation of risk level the Group could take and
effectiveness of risk management measures. During the Reporting
Period, a review was conduct by the Audit Committee together
with the Group’s internal audit department in compliance with
Code Provision C.2 of the CG Code. The Board acknowledges
the review of the effectiveness of the risk management and risk
control systems should be an on-going process and plans to
conduct reviews quarterly commencing from the coming financial
year. For resolving defects and weaknesses of internal controls and
accounting procedures of the Group which the external auditors
and the Group's internal audit department have identified and
reported to the Company, the Company would pay full attention
to the recommendations made by the external auditors and
the Group’s internal audit department and make appropriate
improvements. Based on the reports from the Group’s internal
control department and the Audit Committee, the Board considers
the Group's risk management and internal control system is
adequate and effective and the Group has complied with the
provisions on risk management and internal controls as set out in
the CG code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lo Wai Siu has been appointed as company secretary of the
Company on 19 February 2019. He fulfills the requirements under
rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules. The biographical details of Mr. Lo
Wai Siu is set out in the paragraph headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

During the Reporting Period, Mr. Lo took no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training in compliance with rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. The
Company shall in each year hold a general meeting as its annual
general meeting. All general meetings other than annual general
meetings shall be called extraordinary general meetings (“EGM").

Right to convene EGM

Any two or more members of the Company, at the date of the
deposit of a written requisition holding not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting
at general meetings, shall at all times have the right to require an
EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition.

The written requisition must specify the objects of the meeting,
signed by the requisitionists and deposit it with the Company
Secretary of the Company at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Unit 912, 9th Floor, Tai Yau Building, 181
Johnston Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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EXELRHRS

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene the EGM to be held within
a further 21 days, the requisitionists themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may convene the EGM, but any EGM shall not be held after
the expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the
requisition.

An EGM so convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in the
same manner, as nearly possible, as that in which meetings are to
be convened by the Board.

Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may, at any time, direct questions or requests
for information to the Directors or management through the
communication channel provided in “Contact Us” section in the
Company'’s website at www.jiyiholdings.com or in writing and sent
by post to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

Right to put forward proposals at general meetings

As a matter of Cayman Islands law, no shareholders are permitted
to propose new resolutions at the general meetings if the intention
to propose the new resolutions is not specified in the notice
convening the general meeting. However, procedures for proposing
candidate(s) for election as Directors at a shareholder’s meeting
are set out in the Corporate Governance section of the “Investor
Relations” section of the Company’s website at www.jiyiholdings.

com.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company believes that communicating with its shareholders,
investors and other stakeholders by electronic means, particularly
through its website, is an efficient way of distributing information
in a timely and convenient manner. The Company’s website has
a dedicated "Investor Relations” section which publishes the
following information:

the Board, committee charters, key corporate governance
policies and constitutional documents;

— announcements, press and release made to the market and
media;

— annual and half yearly reports and all material information
lodged with the Stock Exchange; and

—  notices of general meetings and explanatory materials, if any.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there had been no
significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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R - HERELBHRS

REPORT
ABOUT THIS REPORT

The Group is pleased to present this Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (the “Report”) to provide an overview of
the Group’s management and efforts in terms of maintaining
sustainable developments our stakeholders in respect of
environmental, social and governance aspects.

ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Group is committed to ethical corporate citizenship and to
promoting sustainability in all of its activities. We demonstrate these
commitments through transparent and responsible management
of our environment and social values. These values respect and
are informed by those of all of our stakeholders, including the
communities with which we interact. The requirements listed below
apply to the Group's operations. Every subsidiary, each manager
and employee, as well as any contractor performing work on behalf
of the Group must support this policy.

The Board is responsible for establishing the Group's ESG strategies,
and for ensuring the effectiveness in the control of ESG risks and
internal control mechanism. The internal audit department is in
charge of the overall implementation of the Group's ESG strategies.
The Head of internal audit department organized periodical
meeting with other department heads and is responsible for
collecting relevant information on its ESG aspects for preparing the
ESG Report. The Head of internal audit department reports to the
board of directors (the “Board”), which assists in the identification
and evaluation of the Group’s ESG risks and the effectiveness of
the internal control mechanism. The Head of internal audit also
examines and evaluates the Group's performances in different areas
such as environment, safety production, labour standards, and
product responsibilities in the ESG aspects.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Scope of reporting

Reporting framework

This report has been prepared in compliance with Appendix 27 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”)
— "Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” and is
presented under two categories, namely environmental and social.

For the Group's corporate governance practices, please refer to
pages 65 to 83 for the section “Corporate Governance Report”
contained in this annual report.

Reporting period

This Report demonstrates our sustainability initiatives during the
reporting period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020.

Contact us

The Group welcomes stakeholders to provide their opinions
and suggestions on our sustainability initiatives. You can
provide valuable advice in respect of this Report or the Group’s
performances in sustainable development by post at Unit 912, 9th
Floor, Tai Yau Building, 181 Johnston Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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R - HERELBHRS

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group understands the importance of developing long-term
relationships and constant dialogues with various stakeholders.
We seek to balance the views and interests of these various
constituencies through constructive conversation. Through
collaborating with the stakeholders, the Group strives to further
improve its ESG initiatives to create greater value for the community
on a continuous basis.

Shareholders

The Company has established a number of efficient channels of
distributing information to its shareholders. The Company regularly
reviews these channels to ensure its effectiveness and ensure
effective and timely dissemination of relevant information to its
shareholders at all times. Shareholders are also encouraged to raise
any question to the Company Secretary.

Customers

The Group is committed to providing quality services and products
to achieve customer satisfaction. Customer feedback is invaluable
as the Group operates in extremely competitive markets. Under
different product categories, we have designated teams serving
key customers. We also have experienced sales attendants on site
who would introduce brands and products based on customers’
requirement, and assist the customers by offering advice and
guidance on product functions, features, dimensions and
installations. To better serve our customers or potential customers
who do not visit our sales outlets, we have service hotlines and
website for handling inquiries from them.

JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Employees

The Group had 130 employees as at 31 December 2020. The
Group offers competitive remuneration packages commensurate
with industry practice and provides various fringe benefits to
employees. The Group conducts induction training for all of its
new employees and on-going training from time to time during
their employment. The nature of training offered depends on their
specific field of operation. As the Group continues its expansion,
opportunities are always available for hardworking employees.

Suppliers

The Group is committed to upholding laws and regulations that
are relevant to its business and closely monitor the Group's policies
relating to maintaining of business ethics.

Government

The Group is mainly engaged in the sale and distribution of
merchandise and the provision of interior design and engineering
services. These activities are mainly subject to the jurisdictions of
laws of the PRC. Along with different government laws, rules and
regulations, each operating company makes tremendous effort to
ensure that it is complied with the relevant laws and regulations.
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R - HERELBHRS

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The management and staff of the Group’s respective major
operations have participated in the preparation of the Report
to assist the Group in reviewing its operations and identifying
relevant ESG issues and assess the importance of related matters
to its businesses and stakeholders. The Group had compiled
guestionnaires to collect information from relevant departments,
business units, and stakeholders of the Group to identify key ESG
issues.

The Group has taken into account the feedback from relevant
stakeholders in determining the significant ESG aspects covered
in the Report. A summary of significant ESG issues for the Group
based on relative importance is displayed below:

The ESG Reporting Guide
RIB-HERERREIESI

Environmental

IRIR
A1. Emissions
Al BERY EEAHK

A2. Use of Resources
A2. EHER

EEEHETE

FEERTIEBENEEERETHESHA
MAEAERS U EERR HEFBE IR
EHRRRE - HERELREE LT EHERH
EEHAERNEBURSFNENEEZ M-
FEECRUARAHNEZRE - HLEREAR
FZENBE > WREEREP  EHEA KA
PENER -
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Material ESG issues

EXRE -HEREREE

No material emission issues

]

Paper consumption
MRFEARE

Electricity consumption

B

Water consumption

Bk

A3. The Environmental and Natural Resources
A3. IRIBERKAER

A4. Climate Change
Ad. RIREAE
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The ESG Reporting Guide
BRI -HEREBERSHES

Social

e
B1.
B1.

B2.
B2.

B3.
B3.

B4.
B4.

B5.
B5.

B6.
B6.

B7.
B7.

BS.
BS.

Employment

(=4

Health and Safety
RERZE

Development and Training
ERRIE

Labour Standards

Pk T 4T
% TR

Supply Chain Management
e EIE

Product Responsibility
EmEE

Anti-corruption
R&5

Community Investments
HtersE

RIE-HERELBRS

Material ESG issues

EXRIR -HEREGEE

Recruitment, promotion and dismissal
B SHKRRE

Compensation and benefits
M R f& F)

Safety management measures
T2 EIRIEFE

Development and training
ERRIE

Prevention of child and forced labour
FrIEEE T Kagmlss T

Suppliers sourcing and selection mechanism

fH P 720 2RI s B 8 1

Product quality and safety
EmnERkZE

Customer satisfaction

BERmEE

Customer data protection and privacy

ERERMRERALR

Anti-corruption
R&E5
Whistle-blowing mechanism

ZE Y il

Corporate social responsibility
TrEHEER

In FY2020, the Group confirmed that it has established appropriate R -Z - ZHHEE » KAEBRREMIRE
and effective management policies and internal control systems for HE8MEAETERIGBME MW EERBEK
ESG issues and confirmed that the disclosed contents comply with EERGF UHEIRAEENSHTEIRE 1T

the requirements of the ESG Reporting Guide.

BREARSIESINEK.

E—IERERAR
—s-szzu 089



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

18 15

‘HEREREBS

A. ENVIRONMENTAL

A1l.

090

Emissions

Environmental conservation remains a key focus for
the Group. Therefore, we are dedicated to maintaining
our energy consumption and emission at low level in
every single step. The conscientious use of resources
and adoption of best practices across the Group's
businesses underlie its commitment to safeguarding
the environment. The Group encourages environmental
protection, complies with relevant environmental
legislations and promotes awareness towards
environmental protection to the employees.

In light of the nature of business and operation, the
Group does not involve in production of related air,
water, land pollutions, greenhouse gas, hazardous waste
and non-hazardous waste and does not have any direct
or significant impact on the environment and natural
resources. Nevertheless, the Group is aware that the daily
operation of the office and warehouse consume paper,
electricity and water. The Group recognises the impact
caused by these consumptions and the production of
waste. For the past several years, the Group has been
putting emphasis in energy conservation, rolling out IT
initiatives to help decrease unnecessary wastage and
reduce carbon emission and adopting different policies on
use of resources with an aim to reduce the impact on the
environment.
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A2. Use of Resources

The Group is committed to protecting the environment
by enhancing our operational efficiency and energy
efficiency to reduce energy, water, paper and waste by
following initiatives:

Paper

e Using E-fax to minimise printing needs

e Handling documents electronically except for formal

Documents

e Using recycled paper and double-sided printing
except for formal and confidential documents

Paper Consumption: 0.9 tonnes (2019: 1.1 tonnes)

Total consumption of paper of the Group was about 0.9

tonnes (FY2019: 1.1 tonnes).

Electricity

e The use of electricity in the office of the Group must
comply the principles of power saving, safety first,
high efficiency and low consumption

e Light and electronic appliances like air-conditioners,

computers, photocopy machines, printers in
workplace must be turned off when not in use
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Electricity Consumption: 695,301 kwh (FY2019:
484,293 kwh)

Total consumption of electricity at the Group's
headquarter and other subsidiaries in the PRC was
625,192 kWh (kilowatt-hour) (FY2019: 359,916 kWh)
and 70,109 kWh (FY2019: 124,377 kWh) respectively,
which produced about 491 tonnes carbon (FY2019:
283 tonnes carbon) and 55 tonnes carbon (FY2019: 98
tonnes carbon) respectively (Assuming that 0.785 kg
(kilogram) of carbon will be produced by 1 kWh electricity
consumption).

Water

Posting notices at common areas of the office reminding
staff members to reduce water consumption and the
importance of water saving.

Water Consumption: 15,484 m’ (FY2019: 4,538 n¥)

Total consumption of water at the Group’s headquarter
and other subsidiaries in the PRC was 6,643 m? (cubic
meter) (FY2019: 3,621 m3) and 8,842 m? (FY2019:
917 m?) respectively. The Group had not encountered any
issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose.

The consumption of electricity and water reported above
are stated in the total amount of their measuring units.
As the Group is operating a variety of store portfolios,
intensity data (e.g per store or per gross sales area)
were not prepared because such indicators may not be
meaningful.

Stationery and Furniture
Reusing stationery, furniture and equipment among

offices and branches instead of buying new ones or
disposing of such materials.
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Waste

Encouraging recycling through installation of plastic,
paper and aluminum recycling boxes at the headquarters.

Packaging

During the course of the Group's business operation, it
does not generally involve the use of packaging materials
and thus its impacts on the environment are considered
to be minimal.

The Environment and Natural Resources

During the year, the Group consumed more electricity
and water with the increased office cleaning, sanitization
and ventilation as a result of COVID-19, the consumption
of electricity increased by approximately 36%, and
the consumption of water of the Group increased
by approximately 2.4 times during the year ended
31 December 2020. On the other hand, the Group
continued its campaign to promote paperless working
practice, of which the paper consumption dropped by
18% during the Reporting Period.

Save as disclosed above, the Group’s business has no
direct or significant impact on the environment and
natural resources.

Climate Change

The Group is actively studying the strategies and
policies of the PRC government and agrees that the
environment and climate change will pose risks to the
Group, such as extreme weather that could damage the
Group's operating equipment and increase the Group's
operating costs. In addition, the Group has also identified
opportunities for quality operations, committed to
improving the competitiveness and anticipated potential
risks to resist force majeure.
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B. SOCIAL
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Employment

The Group adopts fair and open recruitment mechanism
with all positions being openly recruited regardless of
age, gender, race, nationality, religion, marital status
or disability. Apart from internal transfers, all vacancies
are published to public via different recruiting channels
such as advertisement, online recruitment channels,
recruitment fairs, recruitment through Personnel
Exchange Center and recommendation.

A formal induction together with a tour of the
workplace is provided to all employees on the first day of
employment. This aims to welcome the new employees
and give them a better understanding of the Group. A
brief introduction of employee handbook is provided
to ensure new employees are aware of relevant policies
and code of conduct. Employee handbook together
with various guidelines and benefits are uploaded on
the Group’s intranet network for the access for all staff
members

As at 31 December 2020, the Group complied with the
Labour Law of the PRC, the Employment Ordinance
(Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and all other
relevant Hong Kong/PRC employment laws and
regulations that deal with working hours and rest period
and had a total of 130 (as at 31 December 2019: 126) full
time employees. Breakdowns of the current employees by
position and gender, age and years of service are set forth
below respectively:
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The Group achieved relatively lower turnover rate in general
frontline positions and young workforce, as well as expanded its
total headcount due to business expansion. The total number of
employees remained flat as compared to last year, with an increase
of approximately 3.2% for the Reporting Period. The turnover
rate for the management team was comparatively low which was
reflected by the steady number of senior management employees.

The Group strives to provide a work environment with equal
opportunities regardless of gender and age. As at 31 December
2020, the Group’s male to female employee maintained at nearly
1:1. The Group had also recruited from a diverse age group. Around
68% of our workforce were fell in the age group of 30-50, while
around 15% and 16% were in the age groups of below 30 and 51
or above, respectively.
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B2. Health and Safety

The Group strives to promote safety awareness, improve
occupational environment and reduce occupational risks.
The Group continuously promotes safety awareness
among employees and committed to providing a healthy
and safe working environment for our employees and
complies with the relevant laws and regulations. The
Group has dedicated adequate resources and effort to
uphold and improve the Group’s safety management
measures in order to reduce the risks relating to labour
safety, such as:

Guidelines

e  Adopting and reviewing from time to time written
guidelines and policies for work safety and
occupational health safety

e Ensuring a healthy and safe workplace and
compliance with all relevant workplace health and
safety laws
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Insurance

Maintaining various insurance policies of
endowment insurance, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, industrial injury
insurance, maternity insurance, and housing
accumulation fund for employees’ compensation
and liability

Other safety Measures

Conducting fire drill regularly and demonstration of
the use of fire extinguisher so as to enhance the fire
safety awareness

Providing regular training sessions on accident
prevention and management to the employees

Work Related Injury

There was no fatality or injury case related to work
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019
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B3. SRR E:

B3. Development and Training

The Group believes that investing in employees is
essential to the future strength and success of its
business. The Group conducts various internal trainings
for different level of staff members. There is a general
regular training section to all employees once a month
during the morning meeting. For new employees, they
are required to take a one-week training on specific job
duty. The managers of each department will take turns
to different departments to provide training on product
knowledge, sales skills, store management, market
development and business operation etc.

Besides, the Group also encourages and offers the
opportunities for its staff members to take external
training from the suppliers.

All these trainings are designed to enhance and broaden
employees’ skill sets.

The Group encourages communication and interaction
of the staff members with the management. The Group
provides a wide spectrum of informal communication
platforms regularly. There are advisory boxes in the
office, and regular experience sharings between middle
and senior management. Through these gatherings,
management is alerted to the issues raised by staff
members and can carry out responsive measures to
improve operations if appropriate. Besides, this enhanced
the sense of belongs of staff members.
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Furthermore, the Group arranged some regular and irregular
activities to facilitate as communication platforms for the
management and staff members such as follows:

e Chinese New Year Gathering ("¥i&EBEFFE")is the most
prestigious event of the year, attended by all staff in the Group.
Lots of lucky draws and games make the evening full of energy
and excitement. This event provided chances to appreciate all
of the staff members with for the effort during the year.

e The Group believes that happy staff makes happy customers
and endeavor to provide happy working environment. The
Group promotes the relationship between staff to make them
like family members. To promote work life balance, the Group
organised wellness activities like climbing the Baisui Mountain
("BRU"BEXEERRBIEE) and Tianbaigong Mountain
("REAR"EXREERREE)in the past years.
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B4. Labour Standards

102

The Group believes in nurturing and developing top
talents regardless of race, gender, age, religious belief,
pregnancy, marital status, family status or disability. The
Group also respects human rights and oppose to the
abuse of child labour or forced labour in our businesses.
There is no use of child labour or forced labour in the
Group during the Reporting Period.

The Group also has policies to ensure all employees
and job applicants enjoy equal opportunities and fair
treatment. All employees have the right to complain in
case of discrimination, suspected misconduct and illegal
acts via established procedures. The Group will investigate
each complaint thoroughly, resolving it fairly and in the
strictest confidence.

The Group is also in compliance with all relevant laws and
regulations, including but not limited to Labour Contract
Law of the PRC, Provisions on the Prohibition of Using
Child Labour and Employment of Children Regulations
(chapter, 57B of the Laws of Hong Kong) in Hong Kong,
etc.. Recruitment and employment are carried out in full
compliance with relevant laws and regulations such as
the Employment Ordinance, Chapter 57, Laws of Hong
Kong and the guidelines issued by the human resources
department. The Group did not have any cases related to
child labour or forced labour in this year.
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Supply Chain Management

The Group believes that sourcing and selection of
suppliers play a crucial part in enriching our brand
and product mix. The assessment on suppliers places
emphasis on their market positioning, image of
their brand projected, product design, production
capacity, quality and price range, anticipated market
acceptance of their products, supply lead time, reliability,
creditworthiness and past experiences in conducting
business with them. The Group’s procurement team
regularly looks for quality suppliers in the market, and
will engage new suppliers upon their satisfaction of our
internal review and approval, which includes interview
with their responsible personnel and site visit to the
suppliers’ premises.

Product Responsibility

To enhance customers’ satisfaction of the merchandise,
the Group has stringent control over the quality of
merchandise. The Group carefully selects suppliers, and
pursuant to the supply or distribution agreements. The
Group's suppliers shall ensure the quality of products and
may also be required to provide us with the after-sale
services for the products sold to the Group. The Group
conducts inspections on the quality, measurement and
other specifications of the merchandise before accepting
delivery from the suppliers. The Group is entitled to
return or exchange the products to the suppliers if they
are found to be defective or otherwise in unsaleable
condition.
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In general, no products return or exchange by customers
is allowed except for malfunctions of or manufacturing
defects in products. Nevertheless, to foster customer
loyalty and enhance customer satisfaction, the Group
may allow product return or exchange to be made with
a valid receipt within seven days after purchase provided
that the merchandise is in good and saleable condition.
The Group also offers product warranty period of one
to three years depending on the nature of merchandise.
During the warranty period, the Group provides
maintenance and repair services to the customers for free
and will also exchange any defective products for free on
the condition that such products have been installed in
accordance with the manual and were used under normal
conditions. Defective products could be returned to the
suppliers for repair or replacement if the relevant supplier
is found to be liable for such defect.

Customer data protection and privacy

In addition, the Group is dedicated to protecting
intellectual property rights as well as consumer data
and privacy. Without the permission of the customers,
consumer data will not be used for publicity or other
purposes.

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2019, the Group has not identified any non-
compliance cases relating to product responsibility.
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B7. Anti-corruption

The Group takes its fraud prevention or anti-corruption
responsibilities very seriously. In addition to the ongoing
review of the effectiveness of the internal control systems,
the Group has established a whistleblowing policy
to direct employees to report to the Group’s internal
audit department about possible improprieties in any
matter related to the Group. The Group also established
policy and guidelines about fraud prevention. They are
Commercial Bribery Control Rule ({7 85 R&BHESTAD),
Financial Fraud and Complaint Rule and Fraud Prevention
(A B SRR E R AR B E)), Inspection and Reporting
Procedures (R BB & &R ESIZ/F)) and Management
Override Prevention Policy ({Bf LI B IR B BIREEZR)).

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2019, no legal case regarding corruption was
brought against the Group or its employees. Also, there
were no material cases of noncompliance with laws and
regulations on anti-money laundering in the PRC and
Hong Kong.
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106

The awareness of corporate social responsibility has
been increasing in the market. The Group realises the
importance of different stakeholders’ expectations.
In achieving long term, stable and healthy business
prosperity and growth, the Group strives to balance
the interests between stakeholders and is committed to
improve the community’s wellbeing.

The Group encourages the employees to play an active
role in the communities where they live and work. In
the past years, the Group was engaged in different
events with an aim to fulfill its social responsibility. For
example, in the past few years, the Group launched
“Jiyi Inspirational Student Fund” ((e—BIEBIZE %) for
the poor but outstanding students in Meizhou lJiaying
University (181 152 FE K 22), aiming at providing better
environment for those hardworking and ambitious
students to achieve their dreams.

The Group will continue to explore other means to
contribute more to the environment and strive to facilitate
the building of a healthy and sustainable society.
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures
and Key Performance

Indicators (KPIs) Description Section/Declaration
EEHEBE-—R

B RRREANISR s EA 4 L

A. Environmental

A. IRIF

A1: Emissions

Al IR

General Disclosure *A1. Emissions*
— RN ER *A1 BRI
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data | *A1. Emissions*
B SR AE AR 1RATT PR iE 48 K AR R HE IR #E *A1HEEA*

KPI'A1.2

Greenhouse gas emissions in total and, where

Not applicable to the Group's

appropriate, intensity business
RS E IS 1RAT1.2 RERBASIIREER WER) BE TBERARAEBNET

KPI'A1.3

Total hazardous waste produced and, where

Not applicable to the Group’s

appropriate, intensity business
RA SR AR R FE1RAT1.3 FRELEEREEMEER WER) BE ABERARAEENER

KPI'A1.4

Total non-hazardous waste produced and, where
appropriate, intensity

*A1. Emissions*

FRE WIS RA14

PREEBREEEYMRER WER) BE

*A1BER*

KPI'A1.5

Description of measures to mitigate emissions and
results achieved

*A1. Emissions*

BB IS 1RA15

R R B IR & B3 i K S AR R

*A1BER*

KPI'A1.6

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and results
achieved

*A1. Emissions™*

B E WIS IRA1.6

HIREEENREEREYN S A HEELEE
BB I SR RS AR

*A1BER*
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures
and Key Performance

Indicators (KPIs) Description Section/Declaration
TEHEBm-—%
B E K RRENIEE B - P

A2: Use of Resources

A2 ERER

General Disclosure

*A2. Use of Resources*

—ARINER

*A2 BERER*

KPI'A2.1

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in
total and intensity

*A2. Use of Resources*

B SR AR IR 1RA2. 1

REMSDIWEER NEREREBEEREE

*A2 BEIRER*

KPI'A2.2

Water consumption in total and intensity

*A2. Use of Resources — Water*

RSB AE IS IRA2.2

BIEKBREE

*A2 BREHR—K*

KPI'A2.3

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and
results achieved

*A2. Use of Resources —
Electricity*

B SRR R FE1RA2.3

I AR 158 B M 51 B R RIS AR

*A2 BJRIEA—B*

KPI'A2.4

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives
and results achieved

*A2. Use of Resources — Water*

RARAE VIS IRA2.4

I SKEVE R KR PRI B ERREE  URIRT B
K 51 8 K S AR SR

*A2 BEIRER—7K*

KPI'A2.5

Total packaging material used for finished products
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced

*A2. Use of Resources —
Packaging *

RASRAE R FE1RA2.5

N mPTAEEMENEER WER) BEESE
A==

*A2.BIRIEA— %
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures
and Key Performance

Indicators (KPIs) Description Section/Declaration
TEHEBm-—%
B E R RRENIEE B A - P L

A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

A3 [ IRIERBIAER

General Disclosure

—BRRE

KPI'A3.1

Description of the significant impacts of activities
on the environment and natural resources and the
actions taken to manage them

*A3. The Environment and
Natural Resources*

R S48 IS 1ZA3. T

HHEFETHHIRBERRAERNERTERE
REEERRZENTE

*A3IRIBRBRER*

A4: Climate Change

A4 RIREME

General Disclosure

—ARINEE

KPIA.4.1

Description of the significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which may impact,
the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them

*A4. Climate Change*

B E IS RA AL
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HEEE > REHITH-

*Ad R

E—IERERAR
:@:@ﬂiéi& 109



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIE-HERELBERS

Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures
and Key Performance

group and geographical region

Indicators (KPIs) Description Section/Declaration
TE@E EE—R

HERABENIER ] 3L

B. Social

B. #&

B1: Employment

B1: {E(®

General Disclosure *B1. Employment*
—RINEE *B1 BB~

KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age *B1. Employment

— STAFF DISTRIBUTION BY
POSITION AND GENDER

— DISTRIBUTION BY AGE

— DISTRIBUTION BY YEARS OF
SERVICE*

RSB AE IS 1EB1.1

MR B EEE - FRER Rt @B DRI B T4
=

*B1.1E1%

- BRI MERE D
- BRERED

- BIRBEEE D

KPIB1.2

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
geographical region

*B1. Employment*

FHAEWIE1EB1 .2

Bt FleER Rt EE DRESRE X

*B1.{E{E*
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures
and Key Performance

Indicators (KPIs) Description Section/Declaration
TEHEBm-—%
B E R RRENIEE B A - P L

B2: Health and safety

B2 . EEHZLZE

General Disclosure

*B2. Health and Safety*

—RRE

*B2 R B

KPIB2.1

Number and rate of work-related fatalities

R S4B 51282,

B T /ERRATISE A BUR

KPI'B2.2

Lost days due to work injury

B2 4R A5 1%B2.2

HITHBERN TIERE

KPIB2.3

Description of occupational health and safety
measures adopted, how they are implemented and
monitored

*B2. Health and Safety*

BSR4 A5 1%B2.3

TP ER A BV B 2R (R R B 2 24 T LAKAERE R
TRERSE

*B2 . EE

\|

i
Wt
i

B3. Development and training

B3. ZE&IEI

General Disclosure

*B3. Development and Training™*

—RRE

*B3. 2 B K1 HIl*

KPI' B3.1

The percentage of employee trained and employee
category

*B3. Development and
Training*

3 2 48 AN F51%B3. 1

RESEREDHZIEER DL

*B3 8 ;e iR E)l

KPI B3.2

The average training hours completed per employee
by gender and employee category

*B3. Development and
Training*

B2 4R A F51RB3.2

Bith kEEER B D HNEREESTMZIT
R

*B3.2 B KBl

E—IERERAR
i k22224
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures
and Key Performance

Indicators (KPIs) Description Section/Declaration
TEHEBm-—%
B E K RRENIEE #REA - P

B4: Labour Standards

B4 : BT iZ#

General Disclosure

*B4. Labour Standards*

practices to avoid child and forced labour

— RN ER *B4.55 TR A~
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment *B4. Labour Standards*

B S AR A5 1%B4. 1

Rt (R (8 18 B Y38 i LUB o B8 T Ko s il o5 T

*B4.55 T AR %~

KPI B4.2

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices
when discovered

*B4. Labour Standards*

RN TE1RB4.2 HWRERRERBERFEDERBRABERMMRENNS | *B4.5 TRE*
5%
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RIF-HERELBES

Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures
and Key Performance

Indicators (KPIs) Description Section/Declaration
TEHEBm-—%
B E R RRENIEE B A - P L

B5: Supply Chain Management

B5 [ BB EIE

General Disclosure

—RIRE
KPI'B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region *B5. Supply Chain
Management*

2 S AR 2 F5 42 B5. 1 it & 8 DR 2 E *B5. 1 & 3 B 3B *

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, | *B5. Supply Chain
number of suppliers where the practices are being Management*
implemented, how they are implemented and
monitored

A S AR A $E1EB5.2 A RIS R E RS S  mERTHRE S *B5. IR B IE~
HEEEE « UK B REAINNITRERS A

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify *B5. Supply Chain

environmental and social risks along the supply chain, | Management*
and how they are implemented and monitored.
A S AR A $E1FB5.3 BAlA R HEBSERONNIRIERTEREE | *BSAEEEE

BYIE R R ABRAIT B R T A

KPI B5.4

Description of practices used to promote

*B5. Supply Chain

environmentally preferable products and services Management*
when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

A SR AR A 5 1EB5.4 BT REEREREESRIRRE RKRIRERN | *BoHEEHEIE

1B USRI IT R EE TR 5k ©
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures
and Key Performance

Indicators (KPIs) Description Section/Declaration
TEHEBm-—%
B E K RRENIEE B - P

B6: Product Responsibility

B6 ! EmEE

General Disclosure

*B6. Product Responsibility*

—ARINER

*B6. EmBE*

KPI B6.1

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
recalls for safety and health reasons

*B6. Product Responsibility*

B SR AR A5 1%B6. 1

CENCEXERBRTEZ 2 REREHRME
WEYE D EE

*B6.EmET*

protecting intellectual property rights

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints *B6. Product Responsibility*
received and how they are dealt with

AR AE W F518B6.2 RN E m AR 0V SR BB LU B 75 0% *B6.EE mm B £+

KPI B6.3 Description and practices relating to observing and *B6. Product Responsibility*

BSR4 X 51%B6.3

i B AE 5 S RIE D S A BBV IS 6

*B6.EmEE*

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall *B6. Product Responsibility*
procedures

A A XI5 1%B6.4 Rt B 215 E B8 K& E m e E *B6.EE an & 1™

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy | *B6. Product Responsibility*
policies, how they are implemented and monitored

A 4R XI5 12B6.5 HIMUE B & BRHRE RAARBEE » MURBRAHIT *B6.EmmEfE*

BRAE
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RIF-HERELBES

Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures
and Key Performance

Indicators (KPIs) Description Section/Declaration
FEHB EE-—K

HERABENIER e 3L

B7: Anti-corruption

B7 : R&S

General Disclosure *B7. Anti-corruption*
— RN ER *B7.RE5*

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt -

practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
case

B 2 4R A5 1%B7 .1

RESHARETANEESRETEEEHE
S ERER T MR B Ko s ER A

KPIB7.2

Description of preventive measures and whistle-
blowing procedures, how they are implemented and
monitored

*B7. Anti-corruption*

B2 AR A5 1RB7 .2

LR A RRED > URBARTRER

ARz

*B7.REI5*

KPIB7.3

Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products and services
when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

*B7. Anti-corruption*

BSR4 A5 1RB7 3

M REHERREESRRARERMRBERN
18O DURABRI ST R BT 5%

*B7.REI5*

E—IERERAR
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures
and Key Performance

Indicators (KPIs) Description Section/Declaration
TEHEBm-—%
B E K RRENIEE #REA - P

B8: Community Investments

B : H&EE

General Disclosure

*B8. Community Investments*

environmental concerns, labour needs, health,
culture, sport)

— RN ER *BeitBIE*
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, *B8. Community Investments*

A SR 4 2 F51RB8. 1

EIERERE MHBE RREFEE - HITRER &
ERESIN:-3=))

Bt @G E*

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the *B8. Community Investments*
focus area
A 4R X35 12B8.2 AEIBBEFAEMNEIR (8250 RE) *BeIt @ E*
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

K| MOORE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED

E—ERBRAF

(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jiyi
Holdings Limited, formerly known as Jiyi Household International
Holdings Limited, (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 131 to 315, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

5 3L % B R B

Moore Stephens CPA Limited g X
s
801-806 Silvercord, Tower 1, B E
30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, =
Kowloon, Hong Kong 7% =
o
T +852 2375 3180 A
F +85223753828 p IE
n ==
www.moore.hk = =
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code"”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Key audit matter
R ETHRE

5 3L % B R B

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HEMANEAHNARIEMRR SNSRI

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract assets

BRRWREAUREHEEZRETE

We identified the impairment assessment of trade
receivables and contract assets as a key audit matter
due to the significance of trade receivables and contract
assets to the Group's consolidated financial position and
the involvement of significant management judgements
in evaluating the expected credit losses ("ECL") of the
Group's trade receivables and contract assets.
RME#NEZBRBURIERGNEE Z RBENG
ARAREREE REARBZRUARBEBRENE
E¥Y BEBRZGEMBRIMEBEKXR > BIXET
it EEBCEZRURBERENEEZRRAGEE
B8 (FRREEHE) I REREEEH -

Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment of
trade receivables and contract assets included:
BRMMEZRERIERENEE 2 RETEPIEITZE
FEE:

e Obtaining an understanding of the key controls on how
the management estimates the ECL allowance for trade
receivables and contract assets;
THREEEBMHESRRNEBERENEETRBREES
BEEENEEES;

E—IERERAR
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Key audit matter
[ e

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HANBE A NAEERRETRIE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

BRRWREURSNEEZRENE

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's net trade
receivables and contract assets amounted to
approximately RMB101,092,000 and RMB344,170,000,
which represented approximately 9% and 32% of total
assets of the Group, respectively. The management
of the Group estimates the amount of lifetime ECL of
trade receivables and their related contract assets based
on individual assessment for those which had been
determined as significant balance or credit impaired
whereas the remaining balance are assessed by means
of provision matrix through groupings of various debtors
that have similar loss patterns, after considering internal
credit ratings of trade receivables and their related
contract assets, ageing, repayment history and/or past
due status and forward-looking information that is
reasonable and supportable available without undue
costs or effort. Estimated losses are based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the trade
receivables and their related contract assets and are
adjusted for forward-looking information.

N _E_EF+"A=+—H> BEBZEBZRWK
RIEREHNEEFBENSARE101,092,0007TK% A
K 1£344,170,00070° DAl SEEBELBENI%
K32%- EEBEEEREBEEAREAELREE
BEZ B ZRURIEREBRESHNE E @557
EHESREUREBEREEBASNEEZ 2 AEHRE
BRI MBI U BEBES TG TEE
REZRRARBREEASOEENREEETR
IREC BRI/ AR RSB EEBER
HENANE RN PIESHIRIEMERE  H ALEL
REENNSEEFAETOME G5B ELDERE
BERWHREREEBSOEERSFHRNATE
ZFTERENXREL WA BB LR
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Challenging management’s basis and judgement
in identifying of significant or credit impaired trade
receivables and contract assets and grouping of the
remaining balance of trade receivables and contract
assets into different categories in the provision matrix
with reference to ageing, repayment history and/or past
due status of trade receivables and contract assets;
BEREEEHMNABEREHREEREZEZEK
MEBEREHNEEUARGEZBRINHIEBERESNEELR
BN ABEHBERAEEN A ERFE Eh2
ZBIRRARBRENEEZRK -EBREL R,
8381 BAAR T

Assessing the reasonableness in determining i)
estimated loss rate applied for the significant or credit
impaired trade receivables and their related contract
assets, ii) estimated loss rate applied in each category
in the provision matrix and iii) forward-looking
information, with reference to financial information of
debtors (if available), default rates and recovery rates
published by a credit rating agency, historical default
rates and settlement records of debtors, ageing analysis
of trade receivables and contract assets and current
economic conditions;

TEEEUTEEZEEN ERRAERE IR
SERBEZEZRERREBEREBBENEE 2GS
X iVEEBEREERNBRZETEEER ; KAl
BEUEER BER2ZEHFAZHBER (HAIHE
) N BOXKREETREBE QM 2 IREFEEHEA
ZIBFEANXRREMNCSR ERRERRIBERENE
2 BREe i LU B RIABIRIR 5
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Key audit matter
RS EtHEE

5 3L % B R B

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HMANEANARIZMRENSFIAE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

BRRWREURSHEEZRENY (@)

As disclosed in Note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group recognised an allowance for
lifetime ECL amounted to approximately RMB 1,642,000
and RMB2,891,000 of trade receivables and contract
assets during the year ended 31 December 2020,
respectively. The accounting policies and estimation
uncertainty in relation to the impairment assessment
of trade receivables and contract assets are set out in
Notes 3 and 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

AN EMBERERMFI0OMFEE BE_S_TF
+ZA=+—HBLEFE> BEBERIEZEWIIE
RENEEZEHAARCEEEBEAEDINAAR
#&1,642,0007T K AR 152,891,0007T - B R B 5 FEUL
MIERENEEZREN G2 G5t BUR K (5 i
EMDNEN G M BIRRWT3IR4

Testing the integrity of information used by
management to estimate the ECL allowance of
individual debtors and develop the provision matrix,
including trade receivables and contract assets ageing
analysis as at 31 December 2020, on a sample basis,
by comparing individual items in the analysis with the
relevant sales agreements, sales invoices and other
supporting documents;

A EERE BN AsHENEB A ZEREES
HEEATICREERZENZTEY  ARER
BEESRRRERGNEER _E_BF+_8
=t+—HZEREDN BBERS TP ZEREE
BAERAH E R  HEEERAME T XS ;

Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the independent qualified professional valuer and
obtaining an understanding of their scope of work and
terms of engagement; and

AU SEREXMGSMZBESREN ENIRE
B w7 RETFHERTEER ; &

Challenging the valuation technique and
reasonableness of the significant inputs used by the
management and the valuer in the valuations based on
information obtained from the independent sources.
BREEBUBMNRENEZER BREERE &G
B EERIRGER ZRERBARBEZEE
Mo
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Key audit matter
i : = e

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BAINEFNAEEARETEE

Revenue recognition on contract work of interior design and building engineering services

ERRGREEIRRBSHIRENRATER

We identified the revenue recognition on contract work
of interior design and building engineering services as a
key audit matter due to the involvement of significant
management estimation in measuring the progress
for performance obligations of incomplete services
contracts.

RN EBERTEHURBENZBNERTEE I REXR
EEE M MBRMEHENRFT RERIRERT
BRIRZWARDSRHRETEE

The Group recognised contract revenue by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligations at the end of the reporting
period which measured based on the proportion of
contract costs incurred for work performed to date
relative to the estimated total contract costs. The
recognition of contract revenue therefore involves
significant management’s judgements and estimation
of the progress and outcome of the project, particularly
in estimating the budgeted contract costs based on
the agreements, quotations or other correspondences
from time to time provided by the subcontractors,
suppliers or vendors involved and the experience of the
management.
EEEZENREPRTHENBOSTEZHEST
SRR EREERERCEBITIFEE 2SN
REHGS SN FTBEZLEASE AL 25
HMAS R EBEBHIBEEEERGR 2B RFIE K
st LEHZ G BEESNRE HHRIESEE SR
Z2HEm HEDNHEFIAFREHEZHE REXN
HMBAMU R EIRE 2 &EBmihst o
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Our procedures in relation to the revenue recognition on
contract work of interior design and building engineering
services included:

BRI EAR
ETZREREE:

StRBEIRERBEN IR ZWATESIFT

Obtaining an understanding of the key controls over
the processes that the management performed in
relation to the estimation of total contract costs and the
determination of the status of completion of the service
contracts;
THREBEN TSN EEREERTENZ
TR PR EIT Z 12 7 P 2 AR IES

Understanding from project managers about the status
of completion of selected contracts at the end of
reporting period;
MIEEKETRAMEESNNRES AR Z MR
s
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EANEAMAEERBE SR

Revenue recognition on contract work of interior design and building engineering services (Continued)

EARAREEIRRB AN ITENKRARSE @)

Construction revenue and contract assets are estimated
by using the percentage of completion method, which
is calculated based on the costs incurred on each
construction contract at the end of the reporting period
divided by the total estimated costs for the contract and
then multiplied by the estimated construction revenue
expected to be earned.
BEWAKRGSHNEENERATRB DA AETH
BT ERSRERSNNREHBEREELEZK
KRB Z et 4288 > R ATRHAS BRE 2 14
STEREWAGE-

As disclosed in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements, the revenue recognised from provision
of interior design and building engineering services
amounted to approximately RMB241,907,000 during
the year ended 31 December 2020. The accounting
policies and estimation uncertainty in relation to the
revenue recognition on contract work are set out in
Notes 3 and 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

MR B BRRWEASPIRE NEE_SE_EF
+TZR=t—HLEFERIKBREREARSRE
RITRBRBZWALNARE241,907,0007c BRIE
MNIRWAEE 2GSt ERRGSTEESED B
AR E B IR R EE3 4

Evaluating the reasonableness of estimated total
contract costs to be incurred by checking against
the agreements, quotations, invoices or other
correspondences from time to time provided by
subcontractors, suppliers or vendors involved, on a
sample basis; and
FEmE2EAF 2 HOE  HEENHEEE T
R % RE  EEIHEHMBA > ST ERT
EEZEFHRENMEAZEEN , &

Evaluating the reasonableness of the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligations
of service contracts by comparing the percentage
calculated based on costs incurred at the end of the
reporting period against that calculated based on
confirmations from surveyors on a sample basis, and
investigating any significant differences identified.
HEHE TR ERBTRBENBNEETZEEZ
BE% BELEBRREBERSMRFMEEMRETSHEZ
BRLEBRBAEMZEIAEZB D UKkH
BRI ZERELE

E—IERERAR
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Key audit matter
RRREFE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANEAMAEEMREATE

Accounting for acquisition of Sino Legacy Investments Limited (the “Sino Legacy”)
I B&Sino Legacy Investments Limited (TSino Legacy 1) 2 & 5t R IE

As disclosed in Note 36, on 4 June 2020, the Group
and the two independent third parties (the “Vendors”)
entered into the sale and purchase agreement, pursuant
to which the Vendors have agreed to sell and the Group
has conditionally agreed to acquire the sale shares,
representing 100% of the issued share capital of Sino
Legacy (the “Acquisition”) at a total consideration
of approximately HK$99,533,000 (equivalent to
RMB88,513,000) of which is satisfied by 138,240,000
shares issued by the Company. On 26 August 2020, the
acquisition was completed.

MMM EE36PTIRE RS Z2F/ANWH> B&
EEmaBEIIE= (BH))JLBERKZE BRIt
BEFRAEHER EERERGRAERWEHERD
BlSino Legacy2 BRE & 1TRA (NKREEIE)) > BHRE
#3#999,533,000% 7t (FHE 1 AK#88,513,0007T) °
BH BAFE17138,240,0000 K15 FLUSE < 1°
—ECEFNRBZAH WEEEETMK

Goodwill arising from the Acquisition, which represented
the excess of the consideration paid over the Group's
share of the fair value of the identifiable net assets of the
acquired entities.
WEEENEEMEMNREBLY SEEREG
WEBERA A EEREZATEZE D
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inspecting the sale and purchase agreements and
evaluating management’s accounting treatment for the
Acquisition with reference to the terms set out in the
sale and purchase agreements and the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards;

EREEWR L2EZESHEMANKERKRIRT
B ENNRETHEEEHNBEEENGE
i

obtaining and inspecting the valuation assessments
prepared by the external valuers engaged by the Group
and on which management’s assessment of the fair
values of the assets and liabilities acquired was based;
BSTERA SEEPMEBIINSGEMERNEE
S EEEERZOEBEN L TEEBEEK
BENATE;

assessing the external valuer’'s qualifications,
experience and expertise in the assets being valued and
considering their objectivity and independence;
G SMNB L E MRV E R ~ A8 B R ¥ PR 5T B ARV A
HoWERETBEM KB ;
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EANEAMAEERBE SR

Accounting for acquisition of Sino Legacy Investments Limited (the “Sino Legacy”) (Continued)
I B&Sino Legacy Investments Limited (TSino Legacy 1) 2 @52 (&)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
acquired in the Acquisition was assessed by the directors
of the Company based on an independent valuation
prepared by a firm of external valuer. The assessment of
fair values required the exercise of significant judgements
and estimation, particularly in relation to the forecast of
future performance of the businesses acquired.

WEEERFWEIANEEREGZRATED
B BERFESEREBENNEEMSHBMER 2B
HEETHGE T AR TFEREETERAR KRG
5O LHERARMBWEB R RRERITEA

We identified the accounting for the Acquisition as a
key audit matter because the transaction was significant
to the consolidated financial statements and because
assessing the fair values of the assets and liabilities
acquired can be inherently subjective and requires
significant judgements and estimation which increase
the risk of error or potential management bias.
BB EEN S RIEM AREETEE I
TPHRZXZHEEMBREBER ) KA E
FIEEERBENATEFEEEN TR B2
BEARAE R fEst EEEEEEERENERE
me

with the assistance of our internal valuation specialists,
assessing the valuation methodologies adopted by the
external valuers with reference to industry standards
and the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards, and challenging the assumptions and
critical judgements which impacted their valuation by
comparing these assumptions and critical judgements
with market data and the Group’s business plan
supporting the Acquisition;

RPN ABLEEERNHE T BETERER
RITEA R ZRE  SHEINB L EMPIRAB G
BR% @B ERGLENRR &Eﬁ#'ﬂzﬁéﬁ
THBEER SEERRWBSIERNESIE
Bt Bz E R RERFE ;

evaluating the information provided by management
to the external valuer by inspecting the underlying
contracts and relevant underlying documentation; and
BBERARSORERAXT  STEEEERMT
SNEEfLERMZER ; K

assessing the disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the Acquisition with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards.

2ERTEAENNRE TG SHBRERANA
RS ENWE
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:@:@ﬂiéiﬁ 125



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
¥ 3L % BT 3R S

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019 were audited by another auditor who
expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 31 March
2020.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
¥ 3L % BT 3R S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
¥ 3L % BT 3R S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Li Wing Yin
Practising Certificate Number: PO5035

Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Revenue from contracts with
customers
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other losses and gains

Distribution and selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Reversal of/(provision for) impairment
losses under expected credit loss
model, net

Finance costs

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

FHefnkEMEZ2E KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE
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NOTES
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10

11

12

2020 2019
—E_EF —E—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBEFT NEBETFT
446,915 573,675
(390,844) (496,787)
56,071 76,888
16,516 8,114
(4,160) 915
(11,166) (13,123)
(24,748) (21,429)
6,900 (18,272)
(26,194) (16,364)
13,219 16,729
(2,759) (3,659)
10,460 13,070
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SEHEREMGEZERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Other comprehensive income:

Item that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss:

Gain on revaluation upon transfer
from property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
to investment properties, net of
related
income tax

tem that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign operations

Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of income tax

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Profit for the year attributable to:
— Owners of the Company
— Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income for the
year attributable to:
— Owners of the Company
— Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share
— Basic (RMB cents)
— Diluted (RMB cents)
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2020 2019
—E-EE —hE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT | AREFT
1,125 22,590
3,060 (493)

4,185 22,097
14,645 35,167
9,911 13,070

549 -

10,460 13,070
14,096 35,167

549 -

14,645 35,167

1.37 1.89

1.33 1.87




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
rEMBRKRR

AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 R_E_ZTHF+_H=+—H

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Investment properties
Goodwill
Prepayment for acquisition of
investment properties
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Contract assets
Deferred tax assets
Non-current other receivables
and deposits

Current assets

Inventories

Amounts due from related parties

Loan receivables

Trade and other receivables and
prepayments

Contract assets

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Bank balances and cash

Total assets

Current liabilities

Trade and bills payables and
other payables

Bank borrowings

Other borrowings

Lease liabilities

Convertible loan notes

Contract liabilities

Income tax payables
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16
17
18
19

23(1)

20
22
32

23

21
26
24

23
22

20
25

27
28
28
31
29
30

2020 2019
_— 7 -_—= E = _j-l..ﬂz
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT NEETFT
33,027 42,763
12,986 7,886
61,130 59,040
53,208 -
35,810 -
- 19,407
1,363 3,987
2,886 6,122
- 6,722
200,410 145,927
15,920 12,068
9218 24,320
- 125,946
497,277 328,056
342,807 269,404
18,087 -
4,713 24,209
879,722 784,003
1,080,132 929,930
111,739 131,335
56,000 113,400
8.356 -
1,967 1,589
56,248 91,496
10,398 7,541
18,030 19,369
262,738 364,730
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

MEMBRKRR

AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 R-_ZE_Z&FE+_F=+—H

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Bank borrowings

Lease liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity
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The consolidated financial statements on pages 131 to 315 were

approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31
March 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

Ms. Hou Wei

FEHRrt
DIRECTOR
EE
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28
31
32

33

2020 2019
k-t 3 2 “E-hEF
RMB000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT
616,984 419,273
817,394 565,200
113,223 -
8,819 9,996
20,911 19,642
142,953 29,638
674,441 535,562
69,002 58,208
604,866 477,354
673,868 535,562
573 -
674,441 535,562
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Mr. Liu Xianxiu
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DIRECTOR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

AR SR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &ZE_ZE_ZTHF+_A=+—HLFE

Convertible
Contingent loan notes Property Share-based Non-
Share Share  consideration equity Merger  revaluation  Translation ~ payments Statutory Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserves profits Total interests equity
ABRER N
% REER NEEH BR2fR
Bk RBER  RERE [ abER B ERER BF  EEHE RO S FEREZ  BROE
RMBO0 RMBO00 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMBO00 RMBO00 RMBO0 RMBO00 RMBO00 RMB000
ABBTR  ABRTT  ABBFR  AEBTT ABRFT  AREFT  ABEFr  ARBFR  AERTT  ABEFR  ABBTT  ABRFT  ARETR
A1 January 2019 58,190 363,001 - - (54,850) 369 %7 946 15,707 106435 494,081 - 494,081
Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - 13070 13,070 - 13070
Other comprehensive income (expense)
for the year - - - - - 2,590 (493) - - = 0097 = 2,097
Totel comprehensive income (expense)  ERZENE (%) 48
for the year - - - - - 2259 (493) - - 13070 35,167 - 35,167
Issue of convertble loan notes ERRENEE - - - 280 - - - - - - 280 = 280
Transaction costs attibutable tossue of &7
convertible loan notes - - - (16) - - - - - - (16) - (16)
Evercie of share options (Aote 336) ’ﬂ‘f% 36) 18 135 - - - - - (26) - - 1 - ]
Recooniton of equitysetfed shrebesed - E5241 ﬂﬁﬁu&%
payments (Vote 34) st - - - - - - - 3376 - - 3376 - 3376
Transfer to statutory reserve (Aote) - - - - - - - - 1,159 (1,159 - - -
At31 December 2019 RZB-nE
+2A=1-H 58,208 363,136 -+ 2811 (54,850 26,285 4o 4.29* 16,806* 118,346* 535,562 s 535,562
At 1 January 2020 2250 58,208 363,136 S 281 (54,850) 26,285 o4 4.2% 16,866 118346 535,562 - 535,562
Profitfor the year Ew | - - - - - - - - - 9911 9911 549 10460
Other comprehensive income for the year - EREM2ENE - - - - - 115 3060 - - - 4185 - 4185
Total comprehensive income for the year A2 ENELE - - - - - 1125 3,060 - - 9911 14,096 549 14,645
Avising from acquisiton of subsidaries
(Note 36) 7630 47306 3577 - - - - - - - 8,513 U 88,537
Conversion of convertible loan notes
(Note29) 3,146 30,990 S (985) = S & = = 985 34,136 - 34,136
Maodification of convertible loan notes
Note 29) - - - (1,798) - - - - - 1798 - - -
Exercise of share options (Aote 333 18 133 - - - - - (26) - - 125 - 125
Lapse of share options (ore 34) | - - - - - - - (1,499) - 149 - - -
Recognition of equity-ettled share-hased  BEsBA A TWM
payments (Vote 34) BERZAF - - - - - - - 1436 - - 1436 - 143%
Transfer to statutory reserve (Aote/ ERTITREW - - - - - - - - 44 (624) - - -
At 31 December 2020 RZEZ5E
+2B=1-8 B M B L S ¥/ 4 AR E AT . 3 6
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of ~ * ZEHEREOEGREUMBRARANGREH

approximately RMB604,866,000 (2019: RMB477,354,000) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Note:

According to the relevant rules and regulations in the People’s Republic

of China (the "PRC"), each of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries shall
transfer 10% of their net income after tax, based on the subsidiary’s

PRC statutory accounts, as statutory reserves, until the balance

reaches 50% of the respective subsidiary’s registered capital. Further

appropriations can be made at the directors’ discretion. The statutory

reserves can be used to offset any accumulated losses or convert into

paid-up capital of the respective subsidiary.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HMERERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #ZE T _ZFE+_HA=+—HLEE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Loss/(gain) from changes in fair value of
investment properties

Finance costs

(Reversal of)/provision for impairment
losses under expected credit loss
model, net

Interest income

Write-off of property, plant and
equipment

Gain on modification of convertible loan
notes

Provision for/(reversal of) write-down of
inventories

Share-based payment expenses

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
Decrease/(increase) in trade and
other receivables
Increase in contract assets
(Decrease)/increase in trade and
bills payables and other payables
Increase in contract liabilities

Cash used in operations
Income tax paid

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Loan advances to third parties

Advance to related parties

Purchase of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Repayment of loan receivables from
third parties

Interest received

Repayment for rental deposits

Arising from acquisition of subsidiaries

NET CASH GENERATED FROM/
(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES

JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
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2020 2019
—ECEE “E—hE
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFrT NEEFT
13,219 16,729
7,210 7,111
1,669 2,022
560 (1,298)
26,194 16,364
(6,900) 18,272
(15,651) (6,975)
6,535 28
(2,796) =
152 (24)
1,436 3,376
31,628 55,605
(2,170) 29,271
9,691 (26,520)
(73,448) (83,805)
(23,648) 12,815
2,663 4,730
(55,284) (7,904)
(1,000) (3,042)
(56,284) (10,946)
(231,980)
(23,852)
= (11,256)
(4,659) (802)
4,505 98,800

69 2,190

= 75

196 =
111 (166,825)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from bank borrowings
Net proceeds on issue of
convertible loan notes
Net proceeds from exercising of
share options
Repayment of bank borrowings
Interest paid for bank borrowings
Interest paid for convertible loan notes
Repayment of lease liabilities
— interest portion
Repayment of lease liabilities
— principal portion

NET CASH FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
1 JANUARY
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
31 DECEMBER, represented by
bank balances and cash

HERERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

Notes
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2020 2019

k- et 3.3 “T-nE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AEEFT AEBETT
175,296 113,400

= 89,295

125 127
(111,677) (103,000)
(9,641) (7,787)
(6,928) (4,508)
(1.125) (1,200)
(7,641) (1,180)
38,409 85,147
(17,764) (92,624)

24,209 116,391
(1,732) 442
4,713 24,209
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HAEMBERME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #ZE T _ZFE+_HA=+—HLEE

GENERAL

Jiyi Holdings Limited, formerly known as Jiyi Household
International Holdings Limited, (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law (as revised)
of the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The controlling shareholder
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred as to
the “Group”) is Xinling Limited, a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) which is wholly-owned by Ms.
Hou Wei. The address of the Company’s registered office was
changed from Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, PO. Box 1350,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1108, Cayman Islands to Windward 3,
Regatta Office Park, P.O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108,
Cayman Islands with effect from 16 December 2020 and the
address of its principal place of business is Room 1405, 14th
Floor, Jubilee Centre, 18 Fenwick Street, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

With effect from 10 June 2020, the name of the Company
was changed from “Jiyi Household International Holdings
Limited” to “Jiyi Holdings Limited”.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
set out in Note 42.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong dollars
("HK$") while the consolidated financial statements of the
Group are presented in Renminbi (“RMB") to enable the
shareholders of the Company to have a more accurate picture
of the Group's financial position and performance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR S I 5 R R I 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to

HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to Definition of Material
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

Amendments to Definition of a Business
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39
and HKFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

In addition, in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
has early applied the Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19 —
Related Rent Concessions, which are mandatorily effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.

Except as described below, the application of the other
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group's financial positions and performance for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HAEMBERME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #ZE T _ZFE+_HA=+—HLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective

for the current year (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8 Definition of Material

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of

material by including additional guidance and explanations

in making materiality judgements. In particular, the

amendments:

include the concept of “obscuring” material information
in which the effect is similar to omitting or misstating the
information;

replace threshold for materiality influencing users from
“could influence” to “could reasonably be expected to
influence”; and

include the use of the phrase “primary users” rather than
simply referring to “users” which was considered too
broad when deciding what information to disclose in the
financial statements.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have

significant impact on the financial position and performance of

the Group but may affect the presentation and disclosures in

the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR S I 5 R R I 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKFRS 3
Definition of a Business

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in
the current year. The amendments clarify that while businesses
usually have outputs, outputs are not required for an
integrated set of activities and assets to qualify as a business.
To be considered a business, an acquired set of activities and
assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to the ability to
create outputs.

The amendments remove the assessment of whether
market participants are capable of replacing any missing
inputs or processes and continuing to produce outputs. The
amendments also introduce additional guidance that helps to
determine whether a substantive process has been acquired.

In addition, the amendments introduce an optional
concentration test that permits a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a
business. Under the optional concentration test, the acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business if substantially all
of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in
a single identifiable asset or group of similar assets. The gross
assets under assessment exclude cash and cash equivalents,
deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting from the effects
of deferred tax liabilities. The election on whether to apply
the optional concentration test is available on transaction-by-
transaction basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HAEMBERME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #ZE T _ZFE+_HA=+—HLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2. FERMIEAMBREEN (FEEM

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKFRS 3
Definition of a Business (Continued)

The application of the amendments had no impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the current year as similar
conclusion would have been reached without applying the
optional concentration test.

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time
in the current year. The amendments modify specific hedge
accounting requirements to allow hedge accounting to
continue for affected hedges during the period of uncertainty
before the hedged items or hedging instruments affected
by the current interest rate benchmarks are amended as a
result of the on-going interest rate benchmark reform. The
amendments are relevant to entities where they apply hedge
accounting to their benchmark interest rate exposures.

The amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group as the Group does not apply hedge
accounting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR S I 5 R R I 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year (Continued)

Impacts on early application of Amendment to HKFRS 16
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

The Group has early applied the amendment for the first time
in the current year. The amendment introduces a new practical
expedient for lessees to elect not to assess whether a Covid-
19-related rent concession is a lease modification. The practical
expedient only applies to rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 that meets all of the following
conditions:

e the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

e any reduction in lease payments affects only payments

originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

e there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HAEMBERME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #ZE T _ZFE+_HA=+—HLEE
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year (Continued)

Impacts on early application of Amendment to HKFRS 16
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions (Continued)

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for
changes in lease payments resulting from rent concessions
the same way it would account for the changes applying
HKFRS 16 Leases if the changes were not a lease modification.
Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments are accounted for
as variable lease payments. The related lease liabilities are
adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a
corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit or loss in
the period in which the event occurs.

The application of the amendment had no impact to the
opening retained profits at 1 January 2020. The Group has
benefited from two months waiver of lease payments on
one lease from one of the subsidiaries in the PRC. The Group
has derecognised the part of lease liability that has been
extinguished by the forgiveness of lease payments using the
discount rates originally applied to these leases respectively,
resulting in a decrease in the lease liabilities of RMB380,000,
which has been recognised as variable lease payments in profit
or loss for the current year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS M ER R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,

HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and

HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 37
Amendments to HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments?
Reference to the Conceptual Framework?

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2"

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture*

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current and related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)°

Property, Plant and Equipment
- Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts
- Cost of Fulfilling a Contract?
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020?

‘ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HAEMBERME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #ZE T _ZFE+_HA=+—HLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (Continued)

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned

below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the

application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs

will have no material impact on the consolidated financial

statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual

Framework

The amendments:

146

update a reference in HKFRS 3 Business Combinations so
that it refers to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 issued in June 2018 (the “Conceptual
Framework”) instead of Framework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements (replaced by
the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2010
issued in October 2010);

add a requirement that, for transactions and other events
within the scope of HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21
Levies, an acquirer applies HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21
instead of the Conceptual Framework to identify the
liabilities it has assumed in a business combination; and

add an explicit statement that an acquirer does not
recognise contingent assets acquired in a business
combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR S I 5 R R I 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework (Continued)

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position and performance of
the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 relate
to the modification of financial assets, financial liabilities
and lease liabilities, specific hedge accounting requirements
and disclosure requirements applying HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures to accompany the amendments
regarding modifications and hedge accounting.

e  Modification of financial assets, financial liabilities and
lease liabilities. A practical expedient is introduced for
modifications required by the reform (modifications
required as a direct consequence of the interest rate
benchmark reform and made on an economically
equivalent basis). These modifications are accounted
for by updating the effective interest rate. All other
modifications are accounted for using the current HKFRSs
requirements. A similar practical expedient is proposed for
lessee accounting applying HKFRS 16;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47 5 B 5 R R Y 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #ZE T _ZFE+_HA=+—HLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2
(Continued)

e Hedge accounting requirements. Under the amendments,
hedge accounting is not discontinued solely because
of the interest rate benchmark reform. Hedging
relationships (and related documentation) are required to
be amended to reflect modifications to the hedged item,
hedging instrument and hedged risk. Amended hedging
relationships should meet all qualifying criteria to apply
hedge accounting, including effectiveness requirements;
and

e Disclosures. The amendments require disclosures in order
to allow users to understand the nature and extent of
risks arising from the interest rate benchmark reform
to which the Group is exposed to and how the entity
manages those risks as well as the entity’s progress in
transitioning from interbank offered rates to alternative
benchmark rates, and how the entity is managing this
transition.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has not any London
Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR") or Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate ("HIBOR") bank loans which will or may be
subject to interest rate benchmark reform. The Group
expects no significant gains or losses should the interest rate
benchmark for these loans change resulting from the reform
on application of the amendments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR S I 5 R R I 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2.

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

The amendments provide clarification and additional guidance
on the assessment of right to defer settlement for at least
twelve months from reporting date for classification of
liabilities as current or non-current, which:

e specify that the classification of liabilities as current
or non-current should be based on rights that are in
existence at the end of the reporting period. Specifically,
the amendments clarify that:

(i)  What is meant by a right to defer settlement;

(i) That a right to defer must exist at the end of the
reporting period;

(iii) That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that
an entity will exercise its deferral right; and

(iv) That only if an option at the discretion of the
counterparty included in the terms of a convertible
liability is itself an equity instrument in accordance
with HKAS 32 Financial Instrument: Presentation
would not affect the current or non-current
classification of the liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HAEMBERME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #ZE T _ZFE+_HA=+—HLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2. FERMIEAMBREEN (FEEM

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) (Continued)

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised as a
consequence of the Amendments to HKAS 1 to align the
corresponding wordings with no change in conclusion.

The amendments require retrospective application.

The directors of the Company are currently assessing the
impact of the amendments on the consolidated financial
statements and whether existing loan agreement may require
renegotiation.

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

The annual improvements make amendments to the following
standards.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The amendment clarifies that for the purpose of assessing
whether modification of terms of original financial liability
constitutes substantial modification under the “10 per cent”
test, a borrower includes only fees paid or received between
the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or received by
either the borrower or the lender on the other’s behalf.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

The amendment to Illustrative Example 13 accompanying
HKFRS 16 removes from the example the illustration of
reimbursement relating to leasehold improvements by the
lessor in order to remove any potential confusion.

HKAS 41 Agriculture

The amendment ensures consistency with the requirements
in HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement by removing the
requirement in paragraph 22 of HKAS 41 to exclude taxation
cash flows when measuring the fair value of a biological asset
using a present value technique.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position and performance of
the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HAEMBERME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #ZE T _ZFE+_HA=+—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs, which includes all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited ("Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain properties and
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the
end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except
for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions
that are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so
that at initial recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2020. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (l.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:—

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

e the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders

of the investee;

e rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

e The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interest having a deficit balance. All
intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described in the
accounting policy for subsidiaries below.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any investment retained and (i) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
The Group’s share of components previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to the consolidated
income statement or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Effective from 1 January 2020, the Group can elect to apply
an optional concentration test, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, that permits a simplified assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. The
concentration test is met if substantially all of the fair value of
the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable
asset or group of similar identifiable assets. The gross assets
under assessment exclude cash and cash equivalents, deferred
tax assets, and goodwill resulting from the effects of deferred
tax liabilities. If the concentration test is met, the set of
activities and assets is determined not to be a business and no
further assessment is needed.

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
For each business combination, the Group elects whether to
measure non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of
the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
the consolidated income statement.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments, is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss in accordance with HKFRS 9.
Other contingent consideration that is not within the scope of
HKFRS 9 is measured at fair value at each reporting date with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any)
over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after assessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in the consolidated income statement
as a bargain purchase gain.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For
the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units. Impairment is determined by assessing the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating units (group of
cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating units (group of
cash-generating units) is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the unit (group of cash-generating
units) and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on
the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

e the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It
is assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on input method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of the Group's efforts or inputs
to the satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the
total expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance
obligation, that best depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of goods or services.
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Variable consideration FEtE
For contracts that contain variable consideration (variation MESERE RBREIREFIIH) 25
order of construction work), the Group estimates the amount M RPN EETERMIEIAER

of consideration to which it will be entitled using either (a)
the expected value method or (b) the most likely amount,
depending on which method better predicts the amount of
consideration to which the Group will be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is included
in the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly
probable that such an inclusion will not result in a significant
revenue reversal in the future when the uncertainty associated
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Variable consideration (Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates
the estimated transaction price (including updating its
assessment of whether an estimate of variable consideration
is constrained) to represent faithfully the circumstances
present at the end of the reporting period and the changes in
circumstances during the reporting period.

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the
promised amount of consideration for the effects of the time
value of money if the timing of payments agreed (either
explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer or the Group
with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer. In those circumstances, the contract
contains a significant financing component. A significant
financing component may exist regardless of whether the
promise of financing is explicitly stated in the contract or
implied by the payment terms agreed to by the parties to the
contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and transfer
of the services is less than one year, the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the transaction price for
any significant financing component.

For contracts where the Group transferred the associated
goods or services before payments from customers in which
the Group adjusts for the promised amount of consideration
for significant financing components, the Group applies a
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and the customer at contract
inception. The Group recognises interest income during the
period between the payment from customers and the transfer
of the associated goods or services.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. EXEHEBE &
Leases HE
Definition of a lease HEHEZ

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract
are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the
lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of office premises and retail stores that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option. Lease payments on short-
term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis
or another systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received;

e anyinitial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. EXGHHEE®

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities other than adjustments
to lease liabilities resulting from Covid-19-related rent
concessions in which the Group applied the practical
expedient.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) and initially measured at
fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included in the
cost of right-of-use assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS M ER R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

e payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate
the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #ZE T _ZFE+_HA=+—HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

e the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

e the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review in which cases
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS M ER R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease modfications

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in which the
Group applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts for
a lease modification as a separate lease if:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

e  the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-
of-use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

EXREGHER @)
HE @
FEBEBEBA (E)
THEEXH

fRZE E K Covid-19t8RATE £ B EFrFE
MPITHEAEN  HHIBUTIER 8
AEBBHEEBHIARABIUIMEES

s EXNEBMA-ENZREFEE
ZERARMEMEERE ; &

e MHEREZRRELEREMZEBER
BBz BB MUKRZBEBERZ
ERERBRERRFESNZIBE R

MALBARASBUEEZBEEBNMS
FEBRBEEEEZEAEH BB E
RREREN B2 K ETRIR KRR
RETHENRMENFEEERR-

rEBREBHEARACHEEEFLAER
RERENFEHEERAK BEES]
BN SHEEMRED k—HNZIRER
SMEE SRR EEMER D  AEETIRE
HEMERED ZHEEBERNIFEE
EREBoZ BEERBERKEESTSN
Rz REBREESHEERSD -

E—IERERAR
"“ECTEFR 167



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HAEMBERME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #ZE T _ZFE+_HA=+—HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. EXGHHEE®=E

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified
as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured under fair value model.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 to allocate
consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease
components. Non-lease components are separated from lease
component on the basis of their relative stand-alone selling
prices.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS M ER R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to
the original lease as part of the lease payments for the new
lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the date of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Exchange differences relating to the retranslation of the
Group’s net assets in Hong Kong dollars to the Group’s
presentation currency (i.e. RMB) are recognised directly in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in translation
reserve. Such exchange differences accumulated in the
translation reserve are not reclassified to profit or loss
subsequently.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS M ER R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the state-managed retirement benefit schemes
in relation to employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in the
PRC and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme in relation
to employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HAEMBERME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #ZE T _ZFE+_HA=+—HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. KEHE 2@
Share-based payments LR AE RS

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share-based
payments reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment to the share-based payments
reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS M ER R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Share options granted to employees (Continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payments reserve will be transferred
to share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share-based payments
reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

When shares granted are vested, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payments reserve will be transferred
to share premium.

Share options granted to customers/consultants

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at the fair value of the
goods or services received, except where that fair value cannot
be estimated reliably, in which case they are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments granted, measured at the
date the entity obtains the goods or the counterparty renders
the service. The fair values of the goods or services received are
recognised as expenses (unless the goods or services qualify for
recognition as assets).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HAEMBERME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #ZE T _ZFE+_HA=+—HLEE

174

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax because of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences on initial
recognition of the relevant right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised due to application of the initial
recognition exemption. Temporary differences arising from
subsequent revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of
lease liabilities and lease modifications, that are not subject
to initial recognition exemption are recognised on the date of
remeasurement or modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes (other than properties
under construction as described below). Property, plant
and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

Buildings in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

If a property becomes an investment property because its use
has changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair value
of that item (including the relevant leasehold land under
HKFRS 16 or prepaid lease payments under HKAS 17) at the
date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in property revaluation reserve. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of the property, the relevant
revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to retained
profits.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
other than properties under construction less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value,
adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued operating lease
income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-
occupied property becomes and investment property, the
Group accounts for such property in accordance with the
policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation” up to the date of change in use, and any
difference at that date between the carrying amount and the
fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation in
accordance with the policy “Property, plant and equipment
and depreciation” above.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets with finite useful lives to determine whether
there is any indication that these assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In addition, corporate assets are allocated to individual
cash-generating units, when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
established. The Group assesses whether there is indication
that corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication exists,
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of
the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating
units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets other than goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit,
the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of
cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to
that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The
amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have
been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of

completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR S I 5 R R I 5
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

e  the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

e  the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. EXGHHEE®

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial application of HKFRS Y/initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive income if that
equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

e  on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

e itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period. If the
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer
credit-impaired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(i)  Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset and is included in
the “other gains and losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss ("ECL") model on financial assets (including trade
and other receivables, loan receivables, amounts due from
related parties and bank balances), and other items (contract
assets) which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR S I 5 R R I 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result
from default events that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting
date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
and contract assets. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors with significant balances and/
or collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47 5 B 5 R R Y 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #ZE T _ZFE+_HA=+—HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

w8 /R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in
the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for
the debtor;

e existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

e an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HAEMBERME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #ZE T _ZFE+_HA=+—HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(i)

190

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.
A debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk if
i) it has a low risk of default, i) the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers
a debt instrument to have low credit risk when it has an
internal or external credit rating of ‘investment grade’ as
per globally understood definitions.

JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2020

EXREFER &

EMTIA @&

EHMEE (7

THEERRETEEMBEREERFI
FEE TR EF G2 At B 2 BiE (&)

(i)

SERBRKEL (&

im L H ST S RN i AR
BHAEE30E  MAEEEREEFE
[z B9 2 I LURE K £ Bk
FAEESEREAETREENE
BRI IEUNLE > BUVER R o

BE LXFrt AEBERRKRMEEE T
ABERNBREEHMABREER
o AEHBITENGEERARBYSA
PSR LAZR I KR BTt o e B L T 18
nEBIABEERAEAREER
B )EBRARREQERE  iERAR
RN EGERENEITHSNIR
BB xRS R R
AMBERIBEEF —EHISSERMA
BTHENRERAEENEN-BER
HITANANMAISINBEET RS TR
BiRA) RBEKIERVER) 58
FEEERZEF IARBEER

2
Bun o
2



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR S I 5 R R I 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HAEMBERME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #ZE T _ZFE+_HA=+—HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets

192

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

(d) itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR S I 5 R R I 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(iv) Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over five years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HAEMBERME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #ZE T _ZFE+_HA=+—HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(v)

194

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level
may not yet be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on the following basis:

e Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's
certain trade receivables and contract assets are
each assessed as a separate group. Trade receivable
and contract assets with significant outstanding
balances, loan receivables and amounts due from
related parties are assessed for ECL on an individual
basis);

e  Past-due status;

e Nature, size and industry of debtors;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

w8 /R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of trade receivables
and contract assets where the corresponding adjustment
is recognised through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HAEMBERME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #ZE T _ZFE+_HA=+—HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. EXGHHEE®=E

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and bills payable and other
payables, bank borrowings and convertible loan notes are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Convertible loan notes

The component parts of the convertible loan notes
are classified separately as financial liability and equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument. A conversion option that will be settled by
the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is an equity instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS M ER R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Convertible loan notes (Continued)

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
(including any embedded non-equity derivatives features) is
estimated by measuring the fair value of similar liability that
does not have an associated equity component.

A conversion option classified as equity is determined by
deducting the amount of the liability component from the
fair value of the compound instrument as a whole. This
is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax
effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity until
the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred to share premium.
Where the conversion option remains unexercised at the
maturity date of the convertible note, the balance recognised
in equity will be transferred to retained profits. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of
the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible loan
notes are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component are charged directly
to equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible loan notes using
the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HAEMBERME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #ZE T _ZFE+_HA=+—HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. EXEHEER®
Financial instruments (Continued) £MIA @
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued) EHEEREZ (&)
Derecognition of financial liabilities ARIFER M E B

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and bank balances

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flow,
cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand and
cash at bank balances comprise cash on hand and cash at
banks, which are note restricted as to use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR S I 5 R R I 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. When the effect of
discounting is material, the amount recognised for a provision
is the present value at the end of the reporting period of
the future expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance
costs in the consolidated income statement.

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is
initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is measured
at the higher of (i) the amount that would be recognised in
accordance with the general guidance for provision above;
and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the
guidance for revenue recognition.

Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

related to the Group if that person:—

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Group's parent;

or
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HAEMBERME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #ZE T _ZFE+_HA=+—HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:—

200

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a member);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is

a part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group's parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(@) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(c) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the directors of the Company have reviewed the
Group's investment property portfolios and concluded that the
Group's investment properties are not held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time. Therefore, in determining the deferred taxation
on investment properties, the directors of the Company have
determined that the presumption that the carrying amounts
of investment properties measured using the fair value model
are recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted. The
Group recognised additional deferred taxes relating to Land
Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) and Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT")
on changes in fair value of such investment properties as
appropriate.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Significant influence over Xinfeng Culture Media Limited

On 19 February 2019, Jiyi Entertainment Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an investment
agreement with Xinbao Culture Media Limited (“Xinbao
Culture”) as vendor and Tourmaline Investment Holding
Limited (“Tourmaline”) as agent, pursuant to which Jiyi
Entertainment Limited agreed to purchase 510 shares,
representing 51% of the issued shares of Xinfeng Culture
Media Limited (“Xinfeng Culture”), a limited private company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, at an aggregate
consideration of HK$54,366,000. The acquisition consists
of a two-step purchase and sale, including the purchase
and sale of: (i) 200 issued shares of Xinfeng Culture at a
consideration of HK$21,320,000, representing 20% of the
issued shares; and (i) 310 issued shares of Xinfeng Culture at
a consideration of HK$33,046,000, representing 31% of the
issued shares, and the Group will obtain control over Xinfeng
Culture upon completion of the second-step acquisition.
Refundable partial second consideration of HK$26,440,000
was paid to Tourmaline and the amount will be returned
together with first consideration if the second-step acquisition
could not be completed. The investment agreement will
be expired on 31 December 2021 (“Long Stop Date”). The
major assets of Xinfeng Culture include the movie income
right and the right of first refusal of the income right of
another three movies and media projects. Jiyi Entertainment
Limited had acquired 200 issued shares of Xinfeng Culture
and the first consideration of HK$21,320,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB18,826,000) had been paid in February
2019. The second-step acquisition would be compulsory
taken place when the pre-determined movie of that movie
income right release to the public with the achievement of
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Significant influence over Xinfeng Culture Media Limited
(Continued)

the pre-determined targeted net profit and net cash flow
for the financial years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020
(the "Target Net Profit and Net Cash Flow”). If the Target
Net Profit and Net Cash Flow is not met or the second-step
acquisition could not be completed on or before Long Stop
Date, the Group will get full refund of the first consideration of
HK$21,320,000 within the five business days after the request
for the refund. Subsequent to the first-step acquisition, the
Group exercised its contractual right to appoint one out of
three directors to the board of directors of Xinfeng Culture.
However, the director appointed by the Group would only
take a passive director role and has not participated in any
policy-making processes of Xinfeng Culture. Moreover, in
accordance with the Memorandum of Article of Xinfeng
Culture, a maximum of 15 directors could be appointed and
the appointment is subject to the approval by the agreement
of at least 50% of shareholders.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR S I 5 R R I 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Significant influence over Xinfeng Culture Media Limited
(Continued)

The directors of the Company assessed whether or not the
Group has significant influence over Xinfeng Culture based
on whether the Group has the practical ability to participate
in the policy-making processes of Xinfeng Culture. In making
the judgement, the directors of the Company considered the
voting rights of the director appointed by the Group in Xinfeng
Culture would be diluted by the directors appointment by
the controlling shareholder of Xinfeng Culture, which solely
holds 80% shareholding of Xinfeng Culture, up to 15 directors
and the directors of the Company considered the director
appointed by the Group in Xinfeng would only take a passive
director role and has not participated in any policy-making
processes of Xinfeng Culture, as such, the Group has no power
to exercise significant influence in deciding Xinfeng Culture’s
financial and operating policy and accordingly such investment
has accounted for as financial assets at FVTPL under HKFRS 9.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and
contract assets

Trade receivables and contract assets with significant balances
and credit-impaired are assessed for ECL individually. In
addition, the Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for
the trade receivables and contract assets which are individually
insignificant. The Group has engaged an independent
qualified professional valuer to estimate the ECL of the
Group's trade receivables and contract assets. The provision
rates are based on internal credit ratings as groupings of
various debtors that have similar loss patterns. The provision
matrix is based on the Group’s historical default rates taking
into consideration forward-looking information that is
reasonable and supportable available without undue costs
or effort. Estimated losses are based on historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables
and their related contract assets and are adjusted for forward-
looking information. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes in the
forward-looking information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group's trade receivables
and contract assets are disclosed in Notes 38(b), 23 and 22,
respectively.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Revenue recognition on contract work of interior design
and building engineering services

The Group recognised contract revenue by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation at the end of the reporting period which measured
based on the proportion of contract costs incurred for work
performed to date relative to the estimated total contract
costs. The recognition of contract revenue therefore relies
on the management’s estimation of the progress and
outcome of the project, which involves the exercise of
significant management estimation, particularly in estimating
the budgeted contract costs, which are prepared by the
management of the Group on the basis of agreements,
qguotations or other correspondences from time to time
provided by the subcontractors, suppliers or vendors involved
and the experience of the management. In order to keep the
budget accurate and up-to-date, the management of the
Group conducts periodic reviews of the budgets of service
contracts by comparing the budgeted amounts to the actual
amounts incurred. Construction revenue and contract assets
are estimated by using the percentage of completion method,
which is calculated based on the costs incurred on each
construction contract at the end of the respective accounting
period divided by the total estimated costs for the contract
and then multiplied by the estimated construction revenue
expected to be earned.

4,

FEGHHBREHFHEESEZEE
)

At FEESNEERE (&)

EARAREZTIBIRBESHITEZH
BT

rEESERSHARATHNBTROEE
ZEEBRISORmD AREEREZSE
BITITRFIELEZ WM ABEGEES
M ABERZLEBIStE - I > SR G
WomikEEEENRBEEREL Z(E
BRI RITEEREEE MG LH
RESARESHNE BEEBREERER
2HEZHEHE HEBNHER TRIRM
Z & MERHEMBEAUAREEREE 2K
RS - RREREERKEN  ~&E
EEEGERERRZSHRE S
EEREESREBREEE TR - 2RI
mkENEEERTRE S A
ZAEUNERERGHNNESHMBERZ
BEERAE RUGSEONRABE 5
FeLFRERR RN 2 fh TR R 5t B o

E—IERERAR
"“ECTEFR

207



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HAEMBERME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #ZE T _ZFE+_HA=+—HLEE

208

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Revenue recognition on contract work of interior design
and building engineering services (Continued)

Notwithstanding that management reviews and revises
the estimates of both contract revenue and costs for the
construction contract as the contract progresses, the actual
outcome of the contract in terms of its total revenue and costs
may be higher or lower than the estimates and this will have
significant impact on the revenue and profit recognised.

Impairment assessment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. Determining whether goodwill is
impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which goodwill has been allocated. The
value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. As at 31 December 2020,
the carrying amount of goodwill is RMB53,208,000. Details of
the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in Note 19.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed
upon acquisition

In connection with acquisition of subsidiaries, the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed were adjusted to their
estimated fair values on the date of acquisition. The
determination of the values of assets acquired and
liabilities assumed involves management’s judgements and
assumptions. The values of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed were based on valuation report from independent
professional qualified valuer. Such valuations were based on
certain assumptions, which were subject to uncertainty and
might materially differ from the actual results. Any change in
such judgements and assumptions would affect the fair value
of assets acquired and liabilities assumed. Details of the fair
value of identified assets and liabilities are disclosed in Note
36.

Revaluation of investment properties

The Group carries its investment properties at fair values, with
changes in fair values being recognised in the consolidated
income statement. The Group engaged independent valuation
specialists to determine fair values as at 31 December 2020.
The valuers used valuation techniques based on an income
approach by referencing the rental income of comparable
market data. The carrying amount of investment properties at
31 December 2020 was approximately RM61,130,000 (2019:
RMB59,040,000). Further details are disclosed in Note 18.
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5. REVENUE 5. A

() DIHFERSHWA:

(i) Disaggregation of revenue for contracts with

customers:

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z_FE+-A=+—HLEE

Provision of
interior
design and
Sale and building
distribution of engineering
merchandise services Total
RIEER
HER BEthk
AER  EETIRBRRS @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBF7T AREFT
Types of goods and services HmRkiRFEER
Sale and distribution of merchandise & K 85 &
— Building materials — & 178,719 - 178,719
— Home improvement materials —REEEYH 9,040 - 9,040
— Furnishings —RE 8,639 - 8,639
~ Online distribution and — R DI RAEREH
electronic marketing 8,610 - 8,610
Provision of interior design and REENRFTK
building engineering services BETRERS
— Interior design —ERRE - 3,748 3,748
— Building engineering services —BETIRERS - 238,159 238,159
Total Mt 205,008 241,907 446,915
Geographical markets HMETS
The PRC & 205,008 241,907 446,915
Timing of revenue recognition Yo A TR BFRY
At a point in time NS E 196,398 - 196,398
Over time BE Fr 8,610 241,907 250,517
Total @t 205,008 241,907 446,915

JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2020
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REVENUE (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

(i) Disaggregation of revenue for contracts with

customers: (Continued)

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from

contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed in

the segment information.

Sale and distribution of
merchandise

Provision of interior design
and building engineering
services

Total revenue

HE R B

REEARRE K
BE TR

A

WA @)

() DIREREHWA : @

UTHEINERBHWRARDEE K
PR EE -8R 2 $ibRk o

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE—_F-_FF+-A=+—HLEFE
Adjustments
Segment and
revenue eliminations Consolidated
FEUWMA  AERHE a8
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AERBETT

220,225 (15,217) 205,008
245,621 (3,714) 241,907
465,846 (18,931) 446,915
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5. REVENUE (Continued)

0]

212

Disaggregation of revenue for contracts with

customers: (Continued)

Types of goods and services

Sale and distribution of merchandise

— Building materials
— Home improvement materials
— Furnishings

Provision of interior design and
building engineering services
— Interior design
— Building engineering services

Total

Geographical markets
The PRC

Timing of revenue recognition
At a pointin time
Over time

Total

JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
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() DIHFBERGHWA: E)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_E—NF+BE=+—HILEE

Provision of

interior

design and

Sale and building

distribution of engineering
merchandise services Total

REER

HEK BE K
niEES  BEIERY Hast
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ANEEFT AEBEFT ANEEFT
153,107 - 153,107
33,136 - 33,136
16,238 - 16,238
- 8,249 8,249
- 362,945 362,945
202,481 371,194 573,675
202,481 371,194 573,675
202,481 - 202,481
- 371,194 371,194
202,481 371,194 573,675
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REVENUE (Continued) 5. WA #@

(i) Disaggregation of revenue for contracts with () PIHRELSHEA: (B
customers: (Continued)

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from UTFENEBEREGHWAEDEE R
contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed in FrigESEE < HER
the segment information.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_S—NE+A=+—HLEE

Adjustments

Segment and

revenue eliminations Consolidated
7 EBUA EEE-Ea k! e
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ABETT ABETT

Sale and distribution of merchandise 5 € 42 579 & 228,133 (25,652) 202,481
Provision of interior design and REEAFRE

building engineering services BETIER 371,194 = 371,194
Total revenue 42U A 599,327 (25,652) 573,675
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5. REVENUE (Continued)

(ii) Performance obligations for contracts with

214

customers

Sale and distribution of merchandise

The Group sells a range of building materials, home
improvement materials and furnishings to the wholesale
market and directly to customers through its own retail
outlets.

For sales of building materials, home improvement
materials and furnishings to the wholesale market,
revenue is recognised when control of the goods has
transferred, being when the goods have been delivered
to the wholesaler’s specific location (delivery). Following
the delivery, the wholesaler has full discretion over the
manner of distribution and price to sell the goods, has
the primary responsibility when on selling the goods and
bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the
goods.

The Group generally allows a credit period ranging from
0 days to 360 days upon delivery, depending on the type
of products sold. For those new customers, the Group
will request deposits from them who entered into the
sales contracts, this will give rise to contract liabilities at
the start of a contract, until the customers obtain control
of the goods. The amounts of deposits requested vary
amongst different contracts.

For sales of home improvement materials and furnishings
to retail customers, revenue is recognised when control
of the goods has transferred, being at the point the
customer purchases the goods at the retail outlet.
Payment of the transaction price is due immediately at the
point the customer purchases the goods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS M ER R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

REVENUE (Continued)

(ii) Performance obligations for contracts with

customers (Continued)

Sale and distribution of merchandise (Continued)

The wholesalers and retail customers have neither rights
of return nor rights to defer or avoid payment for the
goods once the goods are accepted by them. A contract
liability is recognised for sales in which revenue has yet
been recognised.

Interior design and building engineering services

The Group provides interior design and building
engineering services to customers. Such services are
recognised as a performance obligation satisfied over
time as the Group creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced.
Revenue is recognised for these services based on the
stage of completion of the contract using input method.

The Group's interior design and building engineering
service contracts include payment schedules which
require stage payments over the service period once
certain specified milestones are reached. The Group
requires certain customers to provide upfront deposits
ranged from 20% to 60% of total contract sum, when
the Group receives a deposit before interior design and
building engineering services commences, this will give
rise to contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until
the revenue recognised on the specific contract exceeds
the amount of the deposit.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #ZE T _ZFE+_HA=+—HLEE

5. REVENUE (Continued)

(ii) Performance obligations for contracts with

216

customers (Continued)

Interior design and building engineering services
(Continued)

A contract asset, net of contract liability related to the
same contract, is recognised over the period in which
the interior design and building engineering services
are performed representing the Group's right to
consideration for the services performed because the
rights are conditioned on the Group'’s future performance
in achieving specified milestones. The contract assets are
transferred to trade receivables when the rights become
unconditional. The Group typically transfer the contract
assets to trade receivables when the Group issued invoice
to the customers based on the value of work.

Retention receivables, prior to expiration of defect liability
period, are classified as contract assets, which ranges
from one to five years from the date of the practical
completion of the construction. The relevant amount of
contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables when
the defect liability period expires. The defect liability
period serves as an assurance that the interior design
and building engineering services performed comply with
agreed-upon specifications and such assurance cannot be
purchased separately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

5. REVENUE (Continued)

(ii) Performance obligations for contracts with
customers (Continued)

Interior design and building engineering services
(Continued)

The Group considers the promised amount of
consideration contain significant financing component
and accordingly the amount of consideration is adjusted
for the effects of the time value of money taking into
consideration the credit characteristics of the Group. The
Group applies a discount rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at the date of transfer of the associated
goods or services. The Group recognises interest income
during the period between the payment from customers
and the transfer of the associated goods or services.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #ZE T _ZFE+_HA=+—HLEE

5. REVENUE (Continued)

(ii) Performance obligations for contracts with

218

customers (Continued)

Online distribution and electronic marketing

The Group provides the online distribution and electronic
marketing service to its customers through the multi-
channel network. Throughout the contract period, the
Group will provide the advice on the product prices
setting, upgrade the interface of customers’ online sell
or live channels platforms, provide the training course on
online selling strategy, source the suitable key opinion
leaders for promoting customers’ products through the
online live channels, repair and maintenance customers’
online live channels. Revenue is recognised when the
services are rendered over time as those services provides
all of the benefits received and consumed simultaneously
by the customers. The performance obligation is satisfied
when the customers used the Group's advertising and
internet information services in their daily operations on
selling or promoting their owned products through the
different online platforms. The transaction price for the
services are charged at a predetermined fixed rate with no
significant variable consideration. Invoices are issued on a
monthly basis and are usually payable within 30 days.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MAMBERRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

5. REVENUE (Continued) 5. WA @
(iii) Transaction price allocated to the remaining (iii) PEEEEHERSUNNBRTREOSEE

performance obligation for contracts with MR BE
customers
The transaction price allocated to the remaining RIE_EFE+-_A=+—HKZ
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially Z—NF+ZA=+—H2EELR
unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December TRABE CREMITIDARER 2
2019 and the expected timing of recognising revenue are RZERTAHREDIRARBENT !
as follows:
At 31 December 2020 R-_E-_EF+°-HA=+—H

Provision of
interior design
Sale and and building

distribution of engineering
merchandise services Total

HER REENRHR
SEEm BETERS EHy
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ABETFT ARBFT ARETFT

Within one year —FR 21,000 344,215 365,215
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #ZE T _ZFE+_HA=+—HLEE

5. REVENUE (Continued) 5. WA @)
(iii) Transaction price allocated to the remaining (i) PEZEHEERSYNBRTEYEE
performance obligation for contracts with MR BE (&

customers (Continued)

At 31 December 2019

AZE—NE+ZA=+—8

Provision of

interior design

Sale and and building

distribution of engineering
merchandise services Total

HER REFEARK
D@ BREIRRE st
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
NEEFT ANEEFT NEBFT
Within one year — 3,180 288,761 291,941

More than one year but not more BiE—F
than two years BRBENE - 129,351 129,351
3,180 418,112 421,292
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. SEPEH
Information reported to the Chief Executive Officer of the BERABERRAARAEITHER BNET2LE
Company, being the chief operating decision maker (CODM), RERE) 2 BBRBPAIRXNERIFTIE
make decisions about resource allocation based on the HIRBZB/AELE BB RDEEZRTE
revenue by types of goods or services delivered or provided and TEREAMAEEERBUBRIFE RS -
reviews reports on the financial performance of the Group as FELSRAREMESAEMB LT
a whole. No other discrete financial information is reviewed by BRMUFTHAERRRE AL w27
the CODM for the assessment of performance of the Group. Hth BBk} o % B B 5l A LA T My E UL
Therefore, no other segment information is presented. The ARIRIERK -

Group is currently organised into the following two revenue

streams as follows:

1. Sale and distribution of merchandise 1. HERDHE®

2. Provision of interior design and building engineering

services
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MAMBERRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results

by reportable segments:

Year ended 31 December 2020

Segment Revenue
Segment Revenue
Less: Inter-segment sales

External sales
Segment cost of sales

Segment gross profit

SEEA
DEBUA
B D E R E

ShERSH &
DEPHE M

SEER

SEEH &

S ERUT A B 4R

FEBZWAREFERERDMBEIDZ

DU

BE_E-_EF+-A=+—HILFE

Provision of
interior
design and
Sale and building
distribution of engineering
merchandise services Total
REER
HER REt K
PiiER  BEIRBERS EEh
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARETFT AREFT
220,225 245,621 465,846
(15,217) (3,714) (18,931)
205,008 241,907 446,915
(192,391) (198,453) (390,844)
12,617 43,454 56,071
E—ZERBRATE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #ZE T _ZFE+_HA=+—HLEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2019

Segment Revenue
Segment Revenue

Less: Inter-segment sales

External sales
Segment cost of sales

Segment gross profit

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group's accounting policies described in Note 3.
Segment gross profit represents the gross profit earned by or
loss from each segment without allocation of other income,
other gains and losses, distribution and selling expenses,
administrative expenses, reversal of/provision for impairment
losses under expected credit loss model, net and finance costs.
This is the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of

SEBUA
D EBULA
DB E

MR EH &
S EBHE R A

S EREF

resource allocation and performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at costs.
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6. DIBEE B

SERRA R R (B

BE_ZT-—NFT+A=T—HLEE

Provision of

interior

design and

Sale and building

distribution of engineering
merchandise services Total

REER

HE KM HEt &
DiEEm  BRERIRERS KBSt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ABEFT ANEBIEFT ANRBETFT
228,133 371,194 599,327
(25,652) - (25,652)
202,481 371,194 573,675
(180,458) (316,329) (496,787)
22,023 54,865 76,888
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MAMBERRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEEH B

Segment revenues and results (Continued) REBUIA RS (B)

FELERRERBE DB KL EET
EHARK - I DBEERDBEE
DT BRRAFEQSERFTELERER

The CODM makes decisions according to operating results
of each segment. No analysis of segment asset and segment
liability is presented as the CODM does not regularly review

such information for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment. Therefore, only segment revenue
and segment gross profit are presented.

Geographical information

The Group's operations are located on the PRC (country of
domicile) and Hong Kong.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers is presented based on the location of the relevant
customers. Information about the Group’s non-current assets
is presented based on the geographical location of the assets.

DEKRKRBEIEEREREREN -

It (B2 5D BRRA KR D EEF]

HEEH

FEREEFUNDE GEREK REB-

ERAEERBINEZER ZWAZER

TR ER ZMEE Y - BRARERIF
MBEEZEN D REEMBUERY -

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets

RBHIBERZBA ERBEE
(Note)
(Hy5t)
2020 2019 2020 2019
ZECEE | ZE-hE | ZBI8E | ZF—hE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR | ARETT | ARETR | ARETT

The PRC H 446,915 573,675 195,548 110,933
Hong Kong 58 - - 1,976 2,743

446,915 573,675 197,524 113,676

Note: Vo2

Non-current assets excluded financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss, non-current other receivables and deposits and deferred tax assets.

FRBEETBERATEFAERNERE
B~ FEME E B UGB R 3 2 RO IEIR TH & E o
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZE_ZE_Z&+_H=+—HIEEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. 7EEH @)
Segment revenues and results (Continued) FEMA RS (&)
Information about major customers BREEERZEH
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years REEEE REEMAEEBIHEEE
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as 10% U EZ2ERZWANT :
follows:
2020 2019
—EIEE “E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT AERETT

Customer A ERA 182,451 257,388 !
Customer B EFB N/A FRiEB 85,8732
Customer C ZHC 57,843 N/A 73
' Revenue from provision of interior design and building engineering T ORBREHEARSRBREIERB M2
services segment. WA ©
2 Revenue from both sale and distribution of merchandise and 2 REBHERDHERUREHRERNRST X
provision of interior design and building engineering services BETREBRBOIZUA
segment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MAMBERRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

OTHER INCOME 7. HftgA
2020 2019
—E_EF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBETFT NEETFT
Interest income from loan receivables EWER ZF B WA 14,598 6,462
Bank interest income RITH BUA 69 170
Imputed interest income on BNEE/FEREES
contract assets/non-current deposits Z(HEF B WA 984 343
Rental income (Note) HEWA (B:) 805 419
Sundry income IR 60 720
16,516 8,114
Note: Ktat :

The amount represented rental income arising from operating leases of

investment properties in which the lease payments that are fixed.

E—IERERAR
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZE_ZE_Z&+_H=+—HIEEE

8. OTHER LOSSES AND GAINS

(Loss)/gain from changes in fair value of
investment properties (Note 18)
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses)

Write-off of property, plant and equipment
Gain on modification of convertible loan
notes (Note 29)

9. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank borrowings

Effective interest expense on convertible
loan notes (Note 29)

Interest on lease liabilities
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8. HfthEs#HKRIA

CEMEANTEES
(518) / Wik (H1E£18)
SIS R B U ES

(§518) #%58
WEEYDZE ~ BB R 1B
AR E R ERET WS
(H15#29)

9. B

IRITERA B

BB EREE Y
ERFERBX (#3229)
HEaEd s

4|

2020 2019

=t St T N
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFE | ARETT
(560) 1,298

139 (355)

(6,535) (28)
2,796 =
(4,160) 915
2020 2019
—g=®E | —z-as
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFE | ARKTT
9,641 7,787
15,428 7,377
1,125 1,200
26,194 16,364




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MAMBERRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

10. REVERSAL OF/(PROVISION FOR) IMPAIRMENT 10. FEHREEBIEERIET 2 REEIER
LOSSES UNDER EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS MODEL, Bl (&%) - 7F%8
NET
2020 2019
—EZEHF —E—hEF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFT ANEETT

Impairment losses reversed/(recognised) on Tt R IEREE],
(FE3R) 2 W {E k518

— loan receivables —ERER 11,472 (11,587)
— contract assets —BHEE (2,891) (4,862)
— trade receivables — B S EWIE (1,642) (1,663)
— amounts due from related parties — BB B 5 =r I8 (13) (184)
— other receivables and deposits —HMEWRIE KL (26) 24
6,900 (18,272)
Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note 38(b). BB BT HIEE38(b) ©
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #ZE T _ZFE+_HA=+—HLEE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. FRISMBIX

2020 2019
—EIEE “E-hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ANEETFT

PRC EIT PRI ZEFRER
— Current tax —BNERTR I8 7,696 11,566
— Qverprovision in prior years —BEFEEBREEE (8,033) (4,421)
(337) 7,145
Deferred tax (Note 32) IRIERR 1A (Hfa£32) 3,096 (3,486)
2,759 3,659

ARBDREREFREATEINHEEHS
MR AERRERAT B EMR
FEREFEMR-

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands and is exempted from the Cayman
Islands income tax.

ARENEBEREEZNE AT IR
BRBREUFESHEREHEATAEMAL
I BRI EB R REBPIER

The Company’s subsidiary in the BVI was incorporated under
International Business Companies Act of the BVI and is
exempted from the BVI income tax.

BELEENBFLEEG RESEEER
ZWANIFNBRELIREETE -

No provision for taxation in Hong Kong has been made as the
Group's income neither arises in, nor is derived from, Hong
Kong.

RERBEEZERERZE TREREIRZE)
REEFSMABRIZA  PEMNEAT
RMEFEZIREIGR25% 0

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MAMBERRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The income tax expense for the years can be reconciled to the
profit before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or

1. FREMRES @)

loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

Profit before tax

Tax at PRC EIT rate of 25%

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax
purpose

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax
purpose

Overprovision in respect of prior years

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Deferred tax effect of LAT in respect of

changes in fair value of the investment
properties located in the PRC

Income tax expense for the year

RIS AT )
BRABRTERERRE
25%5t B 2R
BARMBAZRBEE
AERAX ZMBEE

BEFEBRER

REESRIRIRRIEZ
MEBRE

E%EF$HZ&§%¥

2% /Jj SR8

FARERAX

FRMRIHRANH
El & %Zfﬁ?ﬁﬁum%'ﬁﬁ‘ﬁ%ﬁﬂ?

= A
ﬁ;'iii'l'l:l

m R EME

2020 2019
—EIEE —NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT ANEETT
13,219 16,729
3,305 4,182
(1,742) (270)
6,230 3,436
(8,033) (4,421)
2,999 771
- (39)
2,759 3,659
E—RRERAR
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #ZE T _ZFE+_HA=+—HLEE

12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

12. FREF

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

Directors’ remuneration (Note 13)

Other staff salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind

Retirement benefit scheme
contributions for other staff

Equity-settled share-based payment
expenses for other staff

Total staff costs

Auditor’s remuneration

Cost of inventories recognised as expenses

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (Note 16)

Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 77)

Equity-settled share-based payment
expenses for customers and consultants

Provision for/(reversal of) write-down of
inventories

Variable rental payments in respect of office
premises and retail stores
— Lease rental payment*
— Rental concession”

Gross rental income from investment
properties

Less: direct operating expenses incurred
for investment properties that generated
rental income during the year

EEF (WaE13)
Hh& T 2R K
BY)1E7r|
REMBTIEEHZ
RINAEH] 5B R
Hith8 T2 URRASZ L
R BERZIMAEX

BT A4EER

1% B4 B 3 B

ME- -BERREITE
(H1%16)

EREEEITE Wt17)

BERREMZ UBASE
R MHAERZ A

FsZ
WoRFERE, R

ﬁ%§¥ﬂ¥@§%¥)§zﬁﬁﬁ

—HE %H‘i\*
—MHEERR"

KREYEZHEZ AR

W ENEERSWAZ
REVMEELEZ
BEREEMRX

EESZW/ g Ty IR, GEA) U TR IERE

2020 2019
k- a3 3 —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETFT ANEETFT
2,718 2,966
5,977 6,062

253 943

49 28

8,997 9,999
1,369 1,897
174,975 180,482
7,210 7,111
1,669 2,022

1,303 3,152
152 (24)

653 1,130

(380) =

273 1,130
(805) (419)

163 72
(642) (347)

* The amount represents the short-term leases entered with lease term
ended within one year.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the amount represents
concession rental from a landlord in relation to the compensation
of outbreak of COVID-19 since January 2020. The Group elected to
early adoption of the Amendments to HKFRS 16 “Covid-19 Related
Rent Concession”, the rental concession does not constitute lease
modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS M ER R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES'’
EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
Directors’ and chief executives’ remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the application Listing Rules and the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2020

13. EE BREITHASRESHHM

() EXERESITHASRNHHN

EREFERBETHABNT
JIE R LR RE B A B
BT :

B AR
B

BE—_E-_ZH+-“HA=+—HL
FE

Retirement Equity-
Performance benefit settled
Salaries and related scheme share-based
Name of Directors Exty Fees allowances bonuses  contributions expenses Total
bARG s 3% £
BHEN  MURPAER
ik FERiEN  REEMEL B (JHEN ZR% Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF7T AREF7T AREF7T AREF7T AREFT AREF7T
Executive directors BiTES
Ms. Hou Wei EHLt 1,280 116 - - 12 1,408
Mr. Yang Baikang BREEE 213 97 - - 12 322
Mr. Liu Xianxiu ABREE 213 65 - 10 12 300
1,706 278 - 10 36 2,030
Non-executive director EdTES
Mr. Hou Bo BREE 213 - - - 12 225
Independent non-executive director BUFHRTES
Mr. Ho Hin Yip fAfTE%EE 213 - - - 12 225
Mr. Ye Yihui EREEL 107 - - - 12 19
Mr. Hou Lianchang BEHERLE 107 - - - 12 119
427 - - - 36 463
Chief executive officer THAEE
Ms. Deng Yiyi HERzt - 533 - 16 - 549
Total st 2,346 811 - 26 84 3,267
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HAEMBERME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #ZE T _ZFE+_HA=+—HLEE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES'’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

232

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Name of Directors

Executive directors
Ms. Hou Wei (Note ()
Mr. Yang Baikang

Mr. Liu Xianxiu

Non-executive director
Mr. Hou Bo

Independent non-executive director
Mr. Ho Hin Yip

Mr. Ye Yihui

Mr. Hou Lianchang

Chief executive officer
Ms. Deng Yiyi (Note (i)

Total

Notes:

(i) Ms. Hou Wei was the chief executive officer and was resigned

EEith

BiTES
e ((iE)
sl
BARE

FEHTES
RREE

BIEBITES
(EEGE i
RBERE

BEBLL (Wati)

rast

13. EE BREITHASRESHHM

(#)

(a) ESRERSTHASHNHRHN &

BE_ZT-NEF+"HA=+—HL

FRE
Retirement Equity-
Performance benefit settled
Salaries and related scheme share-based
Fees allowances bonuses contributions expenses Total
DR A
BHRER  URIDAER
ik HEREE  RREETL SRR pdi:52 st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANE#F ANE#F ANE#F ANEEFT NEEFT ANEEFT
1,272 121 = 25 28 1,446
212 - 177 - 28 417
212 97 - 18 28 355
1,696 218 177 43 84 2,218
212 - - - 28 240
212 - - - 28 240
106 - - - 28 134
106 - - - 28 134
424 - - - 84 508
- 44 = - - 44
2,332 262 177 43 196 3,010

as the chief executive officer on 29 November 2019.

(i) Ms. Deng Yiyi was appointed as the chief executive officer on

29 November 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(Continued)

Performance related bonuses is recommended by
the remuneration committee of the Company and is
approved by the board of directors, with reference to the
Group's operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

The executive directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments
shown above were mainly for their services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company and
the Group. The non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of
the Company and its subsidiaries, if applicable. The
independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were mainly for their services as directors of the
Company.

In addition to the directors’ remuneration presented
above, the Group also provides other non-monetary
benefits (such as cars) to Ms. Hou Wei. During the year
ended 31 December 2020, depreciation of property,
plant and equipment in relation to these non-monetary
benefits amounted to approximately RMB418,000 (2019:
RMB381,000).

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or
as compensation for loss of office during both years.

There was no arrangement under which a director
or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during both years.

13. EE BREITHASRESHHM

(a) ESRERSITHRASHEHM (Z

REHEBTEABREARBFMNEZES
BER O UTHEFEHE ERE2E
FEBZEEXE BARRKAIE
EEER T 54 5T 8L ©

EXFIRZATESRESITEA
EZHMNEEZRERARSIEERR
BIRAEBEB ARG 25 £X
FImIFATESZHMARSIEME
FRBREMBAT WER EFZ
# o EXFRImZ B IFITEE#
MEBRARFETERADEFTZH
B o

bBr EXE2AEFHFMI AEE
NEAEBRLTREEMIESEEH
(BIENEE) - BHE S _ZTE+_
B=+—HILEEE BERzZSESE
BRI ZME -BERERBEINENAA
R#£418,0007T (ZE—HE | AR
381,0007T) ©

RMEFE AEESERESE (Y
il RGNS Y IINS:
BYEEBh S F A BERR AR (8 o

KWEFE  MESERHTEEEE
tbEA S SR = A R #T I = 2 HE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZE_ZE_Z&+_H=+—HIEEE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND EMPLOYEES’ 13. EE -BE1THRASRESNHM

EMOLUMENTS (Continued) #)

(b) Employees’ emoluments (b)

The five highest paid employees of the Group during year
ended 31 December 2020 included three directors (2019:
four directors) and one chief executive of the Company
(2019: Nil), details of whose remuneration are set out
in the disclosures above. Details of the remuneration for
the year ended 31 December 2020 of the remaining one
(2019: one) highest paid employee who is neither director
nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:

& = e

AEBRBEE_ZE_TE+_H
=t+—HLEEEZREERSHMNE
BEE=%EE CZT—hF M4
BF) RALB—HEBITHAER
(CE-NF B BEZFHMNES
BN X HBEFE- HE_S-F
F+_B=Z+—HILEE BT—%
TE-NF I —R) UIFEEFABE
ERARETHRABZRSHMNES
ZEBNEEIEAN T o

2020 2019
—E_EH —E—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT AERETT

Salaries, allowance and e R REMEYER
other benefits in kind 944 1,115
Equity-settled share-based expense MU A Z (AR 7
i - 29
Retirement benefit scheme BRIREA IR
contributions 16 16
960 1,160
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MAMBERRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES'’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments (Continued)

The number of the highest paid employee who is not
director nor chief executive officer of the Company whose
remuneration fell within the following bands:

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 BT E
1,500,000 7T

14. DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2020, nor
has any dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting
period (2019: Nil).

13. EE BREITHASRESHHM

(#)

(b) BEFE =)

WIIFARBDEFHITHREZERSD
#E RSB TSR AR

No. of employees

EE AR

2020
—E-EF

— TS — T

14. B2

HE-S-SE+-AST—ALEE
48 1 2 B) 2 AR R R A SR R 19
2R8> BREHREDEEFRRN 2

RECE-NE H)-

E—IERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZE_ZE_Z&+_H=+—HIEEE

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE 15.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

SR

ERBEEANEBEESRERRBERT
TR T EURSE

following data:

2020 2019
—EEE “E-nEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AEREFT ANEEFT
Earnings B
Profit for the year attributable to owners of  FistESREAR LG ER
the Company for the purposes of basic =T AATER A
and diluted earnings per share FE (5 4E 9 ) 9,911 13,070
2020 2019
—ECEE —E-NEF
‘000 ‘000
Fig FiE
Number of shares iR &H
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Ftst EESRERBFIMS
for the purpose of basic earnings per share 2 BB S 722,343 691,218
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: ~ B##&EHZER 2T E .
Share options BE RS 1 7,115 7,513
Contingent issued shares KBESEITRD 18,340 -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Sttt EESR#ERANMS
for the purpose of diluted earnings per 2 EIBR I
share 747,798 698,731

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
convertible loan notes had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic
earnings per share and were ignored in the calculation of
diluted earnings per share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MAMBERRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ME -BERRE

Furniture,
fixtures
Owned Motor and office Leasehold  Construction
properties vehicles equi%nent improvements  in progress Total
ﬂ “
EERER
BENE RE WAERE HExRE TEIE st
RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
NEEFT  ANRETT ABETT AEEFTT ARETT AEEFT

cosT 1723
At 1 January 2019 RZE2—NE—F—H 50,605 4,026 1,666 25,878 4,547 86,722
Additions NE - 683 108 - 11 802
Write-off b 6 - (56) (33) = = (89)
Transfer to investment properties ~ ERZEREYE
(Note 18) (H15£18) (13,608) - - - = (13,608)
Exchange realignment EREE - 85 - - - 85
At 31 December 2019 and RZIZ—N%F
1 January 2020 +ZA=+—-Bk
—ECEFE-F—H 36,997 4,738 1,741 25,878 4,558 73,912
Additions e 482 184 77 3,916 - 4,659
Arising from acquisition of EFBUERB AT
subsidiaries (Note 36) (H7:236) - = 122 = = 122
Write-off MisH (7,037) (275) (7) (2,068) = (9,387)
Transfer to investment properties ~ ERZEREYE
(Note 18) (H15£18) (712) - - - = (712)
Exchange realignment [ERHE = (226) = = = (226
At 31 December 2020 RZE_E%
+=RA=+-H 29,730 4,421 1,933 27,726 4,558 68,368
DEPRECIATION i
At 1 January 2019 RZE-h&E—HA—H 13,263 1,508 606 12,918 - 28,295
Provided for the year (Note 12) FREE (Iat12) 1,703 435 327 4,646 = 7111
Eliminated on write-off B 35 B 41 85 - (26) (35) - - (61)
Transfer to investment properties B EREYE
(Note 18) (Hz#18) 4217) - = = S 4.217)
Exchange realignment EREE - 21 - - = 21
At 31 December 2019 and RZIZ—NE
1 January 2020 +ZA=+-Bk
“ETE2E-A—H 10,749 1,938 898 17,564 - 31,149
Provided for the year (Note 12) EREE Wat2) 1,304 449 234 5,223 = 7,210
Arising from acquisition of EXBlERBAR
subsidiaries (Note 36) (H1:#36) = = 32 = = 32
Eliminated on write-off i =l (1,436) (139) ) (1,270) = (2,852)
Transfer to investment properties ~ EREREYE
(Note 18) (Hz#18) (114) - = = S (14)
Exchange realignment EREE = (84) = = = (84)
At 31 December 2020 RZZZEF
+-B=+—-H 10,503 2,164 1,157 21,517 - 35,341
CARRYING AMOUNT IRE(E
At 31 December 2020 R-E_E&%
+=RA=+-H 19,227 2,257 776 6,209 4,558 33,027
At 31 December 2019 RIB—NE
+-B=+—H 26,248 2,800 843 8,314 4,558 42,763
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"“ECTEFR 237



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HAEMBERME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZE_ZE_Z&+_H=+—HIEEE

16.

17.

238

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated, after taking into account of their estimated
residual values, on a straight-line method, at the following
rates per annum:

3.3%
5% to 10%
5% to 10%
5% to 10%

Owned properties

Motor vehicles

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment
Leasehold improvements

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group leased
out certain properties located in the PRC to independent
third parties and transferred owner-occupied properties
to investment properties. The total carrying amounts of
the properties at the respective dates of transfer were
approximately RM598,000 (2019: RMB9,391,000).

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

16. M BB K= (@

Lt BERREBEB N REME
FABEBEREGEUTIIERITE :

BEME 3.3%
"B 5%Z%10%
RE\EBERERMAZRE 5%%10%
HEEE 5%Z10%

BE _Z_ZF+_HA=+—HLEE>
AEBHBURTERZETYETS
UE=ZF UHBRAVESREREY
E-YMERSERHBZEEDBRENS
AR®598,000T (ZE—HFE: ARKE
9,391,0007T) °

At 31 December 2019 and RIE-h%F
1 January 2020 +ZA=+—Bk
“E"Z5-H—H
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2020 AZEZEE
+ZB=+—-H
Carrying amount REE

17. EREEE

offices

Leasehold premises and
lands retail stores Total

MREMER
et EEHE 25t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETFT ANEEFT ANEEFT
1,390 6,496 7,886
6,800 6,186 12,986

JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2020




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MAMBERRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 17. ERESE &)

During the year, major items included in the movement of

FRTERECEERAREEZEHU
right-of-use assets as followings: T

2020 2019
—B=®F | —3-AF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARKEFT ARETFT

Depreciation charge (Note 12) WEER Wat12) 1,669 2,022
Additions to right-of-use assets fERESEEMN 6,777 204
Transfer to investment properties (Note 18) BB EILEYZE (H/5£18) 68 1,114
Arising from acquisition of subsidiaries EFXBRERB AR

(Note 36) (Ht5£36) 62 -

FRMERPSETEEZ RS R G

During the year, total cash outflow for leases under financing

activities as followings: mE
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT ANER#FT
Total cash outflow for leases HEZIRSRHABEE 8,766 2,380
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HAEMBERME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #ZE T _ZFE+_HA=+—HLEE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 17. ERESE &)

For both years, the Group leases various offices premises and
retail stores for its operation. Lease contracts are entered
into for fixed term of 1 year to 10 years with fixed payment.
The Group does not have the option to purchase the leased
properties at a nominal amount at the end of the relevant lease
terms or any extension/termination options which are solely at
the Group's discretion. The Group's obligations are secured by
the rental deposits for such leases. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. The Group determines the lease period
to be the non-cancellable period based on the contractual
terms of the contract.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for retail
booths. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the portfolio of
short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of short term leases
to which the short-term lease expense disclosed above.

The above items of right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line method over the lease term.

During the year, the Group with four independent third parties
("Business Partners”) bided the land use right with total
amount of RMB57,700,000 which is situated at Shenzhen
in the PRC. The portion invested by the Group amounted to
approximately RMB5,591,000, which represented to 9.69% of
the total consideration. All acquisition costs of land use right
were fully paid by the Group and Business Partners. During
the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group and Business
Partners entered into the Land Transfer Agreement with the
local government for the usage of the land use right with a
period for 30 years from 15 September 2020. Up to the date
of these consolidated financial statements are authorised for
issue, the land use right certificate is yet to be issued.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

w8 /R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

The directors of the Company are of the view that the land use
right will be obtained given that the issuance of land use right
certificate is only an administrative procedure. As a result, the
Group recognised the partial land use right in accordance to
its contribution of approximately RMB5,591,000 as addition of
right-of-use assets during the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Group has entered into Memorandum of Understanding
Agreement with Business Partners, a commercial building will
be constructed and developed on the abovementioned land
and the Group will be the main constructor for the whole
construction project. The directors of the Company expected
that parts of the properties will be used as owned office
and the remaining parts will be leased out for earning rental
income when the commercial building completed.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group leased
out certain properties located in the PRC to independent
third parties and transferred right-of-use assets to investment
properties. The total carrying amount of the right-of-use assets
at the date of transfer was approximately RMB68,000 (2019:
RMB1,114,000).

Restrictions or covenants on leases

In addition, lease liabilities of approximately RMB10,786,000
(2019: RMB11,585,000) are recognised with related right-
of-use assets of approximately RMB12,986,000 (2019:
RMB7,886,000) as at 31 December 2020. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the
lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

Details of the lease maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set
out in Notes 31 and 38(b).

17. EREEE @

AATEERARES LR BE
B LHER B ER BT RER F
I BEZF-BE+-AZT—BILE
B A BRI B AR A R 455,591,000
TERERED S L BRI » 1F 4 A A
B

FEBEHEGCFBHAREREBHET
Bk RS LA IR RS K B & —E RS
FEFT MAERRIFAREREEREEN
FTERRE -AARNEFEY MoEF
MERSRBIERBERER  HEHORRN
BEBRTE TR HHELERIGEEZA

BE_E-_EF+_A=+—HIEE"
AEBEAETURTRZYET B
Bo=H O UREAREESEELEY
EoREEBHR FHRBEEZEREE
K& NEH68,000T (ZE—HEF AR
1#1,114,0007T) ©

T S PR X 258

sy R -2 ZE2F+ B =+—HER
#KIANR#12,986,00070 (ZEBE—HLE: AR
d1’17 886,0007T) 2 A RE A EEMRE
EEEHNARK10,786,0007T (ZEE—AH
F 1 AR#11,585,0007T) BrEHEATE
HMEBE KPR HERHEL &
MERZRE -HEEEFNSRIEABRZ
EIRRERo

HEaE s ME
31)5’138( )o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HAEMBERME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #ZE T _ZFE+_HA=+—HLEE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. EME

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the BE T TETFERE—-—NEFE+IAH
Group leases out commercial property units under operating —t+—HLEFE AEBREBELEHRE
leases with rentals receivable monthly. The leases typically run MEENEEBEW HEABRKER-HE
for an initial period of 1 year to 15 years and no unilateral — R ABPIFEE1F > AEB KA
rights to extend the lease beyond initial period held by the AN mE R EEMNR P EFHBILER
Group and lessees. Majority of the lease contracts contain ME KEDHEAHLHEEEABATFELER
market review clauses in the event the lessee exercises the EERR Z mIBmET R o

option to extend.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result AEETEABELCHMARINE R
of the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in FRBREHEIUEREREBEZY
the respective functional currencies of group entities. The EEEBEHE -HAOTEHEE R REBERER
lease contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and/ B/ RAEABARBHRERGEEME
or lessee’s option to purchase the property at the end of lease EEiEREo

term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MAMBERRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

18. IREME ©&)

RMB’000
ANEEFT
At 1 January 2019 N ZE—-NF—HB—H 9,454
Transfer from property, plant and equipment (Note 76) EREME -BEREE
(Htzt16) 9,391
Transfer from right-of-use assets (Note 17) ERETREEE
(Htz£17) 1,114
Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss (Note 8) RIERAER 2 A FE
1gh0 (fa£8) 1,298
Increase in fair value recognised upon transfer from BYME - -BEREEUR
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets FRAEEEBEERE
to investment properties in other comprehensive MERREMEZERE
income NS Z A FEIE 37,783
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 RIZZE—NF
+-A=+—HR
—EEF—HF—H 59,040
Transfer from property, plant and equipment (Note 16) EEEYE BERRE
(Hizt16) 598
Transfer from right-of-use assets (Note 17) BEBGHAEEE
(Hizt17) 68
Decrease in fair value recognised in profit or loss (Note 8) RIEHEAER 2 A TFE
L (H1528) (560)
Increase in fair value recognised upon transfer from BME - -BEREEUR
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets FRAEEEBEERE
to investment properties in other comprehensive MERREMZERE
income WSS Z A FEIE I 1,984
At 31 December 2020 H-ZE-E5+=AH
=+—H 61,130

AEBRRZZZEF+ZRA=+—H.Z
E—HEFE+B=+—BAEEAHAZ
REMERLNFETRAZEARTEE
RAE (M3h5)) (AREE N EEE B
UEEREXEGEN RAERMEIZ&E

professional valuer not connected with the Group. EXo

The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 31
December 2020, 31 December 2019 and the date of transfer
has been arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out
on the respective dates by Messrs Vincorn Consulting and
Appraisal Limited (“Vincorn”), an independent qualified
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #ZE T _ZFE+_HA=+—HLEE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 18. IR EBYE &)

In determining the fair value of the investment properties, the
Group engages the independent qualified professional valuer
to perform the valuation. The management of the Group
works closely with them to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model and explain the cause of
fluctuations in the fair value of the investment properties to
the board of directors.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use. The fair values
of certain investment properties have been adjusted to exclude
prepaid or accrued operating lease income to avoid double
counting.

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of these investment properties are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used) at the end
of reporting period.

Valuation
technique and
Investment properties
EEsER
RENE ATEER EXBAYE
Commercial property Income approach
units located in the PRC Level 3
2020: RMB61,130,000
2019: RMB59,040,000

(0G4 SYE -] WAL
ZEIFF 1 ARH61,130,0007T 3R

“Z2—h%E : AE59,040,0007C

fair value hierarchy  Significant input(s)

Gross monthly rental income ranged from
RMBB800 to RMB189,000 (2019: ranged
from RMB1,000 to RMB189,000) Term yield:
2.75% (2019: 2.75%) Reversionary yield:
3.25% (2019: 3.25%)

FARSWALENFARB00TE
AEK#189,000t (CT2—h%:
NEARE1,0007cE AR #189,0007T)

REBERBEMELTER  AEEEZES
YEERBXRMGLEMETHRE FEEE
BEERHZEAF UREBEMGERE
RGAREZHH THEFSHERE
MERTFERNZREA

RIEsHIELTFER X ZESRRE
RaRAEEMAR - ETREMEZAF
BEEFREE UMFRM RS EEEE
WA BRERFE -

TREHEBRUNMANBEHMREEXS
REMERAFTEZEN (LEZEERE
R PR R8I A BUB) o

Relationship of
inputs to fair value
BARERA
AT{ERRE

A slight increase in the term
yield and reversionary yield
used would resultin a
significant decrease in fair
value, and vice versa

FBZEHBRmERERK
HREMENEERAT
ERERD R2ZTAe

FHRGEE 2.75% (CE—HE 1275%)
ERKEER 325% (CE—HE 1325%)

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year
(2019: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR S I 5 R R I 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

19. GOODWILL

For the purposes of impairment testing on goodwill,
management allocated goodwill to the Group's cash-
generating unit (“CGU") identified. The Group's goodwill
arising on acquisition of the subsidiaries, as detail in Note 38,
during the year ended 31 December 2020 was allocated to
the online distribution and e-marketing services and home

19. BHE

MEBERENEmE

EEERBEDR

EERENAERREELENU ((REeE

HEEAL)

ME-T-F

= —<

F+=A=+—

HIEFE > ZEBRWERB AR MESL
e GFERMEE38) ENEEELR LD
B e AR A B PR TS WA e SR S B B o

decoration.
Online
distribution
and Home
e-marketing decoration
services CGU CcGU Total
RESHER
PR ERIRTE RERMHRES
REELEN EEE 25t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETFT AEEFT ANEEFT
Cost %N
At 1 January 2020 N 2T F—HF—H = = =
Arising from acquisition of EFXBWENEAT
subsidiaries (Note 36) (Ha#36) 37,411 15,797 53,208
At 31 December 2020 NZEIEREF
+ZHA=+—H 37,411 15,797 53,208
Accumulated impairment losses & 5tiRi {EE518
31 December 2020 “EBCERE
+-A=+—H = . _
Net carrying amount IREREE
At 31 December 2020 RZBTRE
+ZA=+—H 37,411 15,797 53,208
E—ERBRAT
ZECEFFHR 245



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HAEMBERME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #ZE T _ZFE+_HA=+—HLEE

19. GOODWILL (Continued) 19. BE ®)

Online distribution and e-marketing services

The goodwill was arisen from a number of factors including
the expected fast growing on the multi-channel network in
the PRC, digital transformation on the traditional distribution
channels, internet sales channel and assembled workforce of
the acquired business. These benefits were not recognised
separately from goodwill because they did not meet the
recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.

Home decoration

The goodwill was arisen from a number of factors including
the expected growing on the home interior design for
residential properties in the PRC and assembled workforce of
the acquired business. These benefits were not recognised
separately from goodwill because they did not meet the
recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.

None of the goodwill of the CGUs recognised is expected to
be deductible for income tax purposes
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

w8 /R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

19. GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment assessment

Online distribution and e-marketing services

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation with reference to a
professional valuation performed by Vincorn, an independent
firm of professionally qualified valuers for the year ended 31
December 2020. The calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the projection
period are extrapolated using an estimated growth rate of 3%
per annum. The pretax rate used to discount the forecast cash
flows is 23.8% per annum.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no provision for
impairment loss on goodwill arising from online distribution
and e-marketing services was recognised.

Home decoration

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation with reference to a
professional valuation performed by Vincorn, an independent
firm of professionally qualified valuers for the year ended 31
December 2020. The calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the projection
period are extrapolated using an estimated growth rate of 3%
per annum. The pretax rate used to discount the forecast cash
flows is 19.3% per annum.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no provision for
impairment loss on goodwill arising from home decoration
was recognised.

19. @& #)

BT g
AR LD R E RS

BEBICEREEMBEMLT 2 FEE
HE BEZEIEF+A=+—HL
FE LBz JWEIEBERIBEERER
HEAEMEE 8 AEZRBARERE
EA UBEEH ERERAFHENMETE
HARZE - BBBABZREREEAM
I REESEI%ELE -FERARESRER
ARG IR K B F23.8% °

BETZZHF+_A=+—HLEEE"
WARRERR LD HREEEERBEE
ZEHBREBERER-

KL

BEBULCEREXGEMLRZER
HEBE_Z_EF+_A=1+—HL
FE LBz EOERRECRAEER
StERZEMBRE stETAFKARERE
TR DUEEEHERE L FHANM A
ERnEE -BREMAMZESRAEERM
STERESFEINHEH -FRARESRER
AR BT F19.3%

BE-_S-_SE+_A=+—BLEE
o B8R R R A A 7 B R A5 9
o
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"“ECTEFR 247



20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS

F+_A=+—HLFE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HAEMBERME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #Z_—Z"F

20. MAFEGFARHENEHMEE

2020 2019

—ECEH —E-NEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ANEEFT

Unlisted equity security (Note) JE LR AES (Wat) 18,087 19,407

Note:

The amount represents investment in Xinfeng Culture as disclosed in Note
4.

Pursuant to the investment agreement, with reference to the
Long Stop Date is 31 December 2021, the directors of the
Company have classified the investment as current asset as at
31 December 2020.

The movie invested by Xinfeng Culture was presented and
distributed in early January 2021, the calculation of the Target
Net Profit and Net Cash Flow is still in a progress and yet
to be concluded. The amount of the first consideration of
HK$21,320,000 is being covered by the personal guarantee
arrangement by the two shareholders of vendor.

Details of the valuation techniques and key inputs adopted for
their fair value measurement of the investment at the end of
the reporting period are disclosed in Note 38(c).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS M ER R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

21. INVENTORIES

Finished goods &k

Inventories represent goods held for resale and interior design
and building engineering projects.

The provision for write-down of inventories is generally made
on those inventories which are sold subsequently with the
prices lower than the carrying amounts while the reversal of
provision for write-down of inventories is only recognised for
those inventories which are sold subsequently with the prices
higher than the carrying amounts.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, provision for write-
down of inventories amounted to approximately RMB152,000
(2019: reversal of approximately RMB24,000) was recognised.

21. 78

2020 2019
—E_EF —E—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ANEETT

15,920 12,068

FEERFBREZERKREARTRE
ETIEEB-

MATFENRAERSIZBERUERKRE
THRZERHEZFES R MlURFE
BEZRNERBRESNRESER
ERHEZFERR-

BHE_E_ZEFE+_A=+—HILEEE>
EREIHMRTEERELN ARK152,0007
(ZE—NF : #OWAREE24,0005T) ©

E—IERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47 5 B 5 R R Y 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZE_ZE_Z&+_H=+—HIEEE

22. CONTRACT ASSETS

Services contracts for provision of interior
design and building engineering
Less: allowance for credit losses

Analysed as
Non-current
Current

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group's right to
consideration for work completed and not billed because the
rights are conditioned on the Group's future performance
in achieving specified milestones at the reporting date on
construction works. The contract assets are transferred to
trade receivables when the rights become unconditional.

Contract assets, that are not expected to be settled within the
Group's normal operating cycle, are classified as current and
non-current based on expected settlement dates. The non-
current contract assets is measured at amortised cost using

interest rate of 6.96% per annum.
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22. AEE
2020 2019
—E_EH —E—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT NEWEF
REEFANRRERTIR
ZRBEH 351,923 278,253
B EEEERE (7,753) (4,862)
344,170 273,391
paR v
JERED 1,363 3,987
TRED 342,807 269,404
344,170 273,391

BRNEETZRAEEMS TR ARE
HERE A TRWELERNEF AR RE
PBZERANBORRAEB RN ERE B
BETREERIEE ERERPIRIRKRIE H
ZERARAEFRF MEHNEEERESE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS M ER R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

22. CONTRACT ASSETS (Continued)

Typical payment terms of services contracts for provision of
interior design and building engineering which impact on the
amount of contract assets recognised are as follows:

e The Group's services contracts include payment schedules
which require stage payments over the construction
period once certain specified milestones are reached.
The Group requires certain customers, other than the
local government or with long term relationship, to
provide upfront deposits ranged from 20% to 60% of
total contract sum as part of its credit risk management
policies. When the Group receives a deposit before
interior design and building engineering services
commences, this will give rise to contract liabilities at the
start of a contract, until the revenue recognised on the
specific contract exceeds the amount of the deposit.

e The Group also typically agrees a retention period ranging
from one to five years for 3% to 5% of the contract
value. As at 31 December 2020, the retention receivables
amounted to approximately RM45,438,000 (2019:
RMB41,035,000) are included in contract assets until the
end of the retention period as the Group’s entitlement to
this final payment become unconditional upon expiration
of the defects liability period and are transferred to trade
receivables.

e The Group classifies contract assets as current when the
Group expects to realise them in its normal operating
cycle.

22.

REEARFIRBEIBRZRB SN
—RAARER EREFERZE
EBEE)WH

BNEE @

N

FEBENRBENEEMMERR
—BEIETHEEERM BAR
1t T HA 8 1F L B B AT "R o AR SR B 23K
ATER (EMBTHE RBREARL
ZRRN) RENF EHEER20%E
60% 2RIl  FREEERKRE
BERZ—BD RNEEERENR
StRERETRERBHGANERE
R RRENREREESNERE
EEMBESORIZWABL I
TR

AEBTEERERMEOEEZI%
ES% B FINTF—EZERFEZREBH
R _EBE_EF+_A=+—B FEK
REB &4 N R K45,438,0007T (Z &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47 5 B 5 R R Y 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZE_ZE_Z&+_H=+—HIEEE

22. CONTRACT ASSETS (Continued)

Movement in the contract assets and the contract liabilities
balances during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019

are as follows:

At 1 January

Rights of consideration for works amplitude
but not yet billed

Transfer from the contract assets recognised
to trade receivables

Less: allowance for credit losses

At 31 December

Details of the impairment assessment are set out in Note 38(b).
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BE"S-SHER-Z-—NE+ A
St AlEEANEERANEME

BRZ EENWT -
2020 2019
—E_EH —E—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT NEWEF
w—A—H 273,391 194,312
ORI BRAKRZ
TREERE R 229,485 208,383
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR S I 5 R R I 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

PREPAYMENTS

Trade receivables from contracts with
customers:
Due from third parties:
— sale and distribution of merchandise
— interior design and building engineering
services
Due from a related party:
— sale and distribution of merchandise

Less: allowance for credit losses

Other receivables

Contract performance deposits (Note (a))
Project tender deposits (Note (b))

Other deposits (Note (c))

Other tax recoverable

Rental deposits

Others (Note (e))

Prepayments

Prepayments for purchase of goods and
provision of services (Note (d))

Prepayment for acquisition of investment
properties (Note ()

Trade and other receivables and
prepayments

Analysed as
Non-current
Current

23. B5 RHEMEWRIEARFEFRIE

ERAHNE R BRI

WS =718
—HERDHEm
—ERRFIRERIRE

A7

P& WS Tt 75 RO

—HERDHE M

B EEREEE

H{th U shIa
BHNBNEE Wita)
TiRBREE (W2 b))
=itz (Hatc)
HtheJ Ui [el i 18
HERE

A (#752(e))

FAfIIRIE
BEERAEHREZ
FANRIA (HfaE(d))
Wk B X 2 AR

(i)

B 5 R Eth FE U R ITA A B
AR

it
IERE
R

2020 2019
—EZEHF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ANEBEFT
80,884 123,624
26,486 111,766

- 462
107,370 235,852
(6,278) (4,636)
101,092 231,216
1,521 4,871
1,657 1,293
4,778 4,556
7,404 11,639
271 559
31,063 7,519
46,694 30,437
349,491 73,125
35,810 -
385,301 73,125
533,087 334,778
35,810 6,722
497,277 328,056
533,087 334,778
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HAEMBERME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #ZE T _ZFE+_HA=+—HLEE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

254

Contract performance deposits are advanced to customers at the
beginning of interior design and building engineering services
contracts. The deposits are repaid to the Group based on the
progress of services and terms of the contract.

The contract performance deposits are expected to be recovered

within one year from the end of the reporting period.

Project tender deposits are advanced to potential customers during
the contract tendering period. The deposits are repaid to the Group
when the tendering process is completed.

The Group paid RMB5,000,000 to the Meizhou Housing and Urban
Rural Planning and Construction Bureau as a refundable deposit
to guarantee the fulfilment of wages payment to those immigrant
labours. The amount will be recovered upon completion of the
building engineering contracts and is expected to be recovered
over one year from the end of the reporting period. The deposit is
measured at amortised cost with carrying amount at 31 December
2020 of approximately RMB4,778,000 (2019: RMB4,556,000),
based on the present value of the estimated future cash outflow
discounted using the effective interest rate of 7% per annum and
the adjusted deposit at the date of inception was RMB4,350,000,
net of fair value adjustment of RMB650,000.

As at 31 December 2020, included in the balance of an amount
of approximately RMB237,174,000 represented a prepayment for
purchase of goods mainly for the new construction of a commercial
building (see Note 17) in the PRC. Subsequent to year ended 31
December 2020, approximately RMB74,695,000 has been repaid
due to the postponement of the construction project.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR S I 5 R R I 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(e)

As at 31 December 2020, included in the balance of an amount
of approximately RMB21,934,000 represents the receivable from
Tourmaline for the partial consideration of second step acquisition as
detailed in Note 4. Tourmaline is the consultant to assist the Group
in the step acquisition of Xinfeng Culture.

This was acquired in a business combination (see Note 36) of Sino
Legacy Group (as defined in below). The properties were in the
process of development of commercial premises by an independent
property developer. The properties are located in Meizhou in
the PRC and planned to be completed by September 2021. The
management intends to lease out the properties for earning rental
income when the properties are fully constructed. Full consideration
was paid before the acquisition of Sino Legacy Group and no cash
outflow is expected to be paid for the properties.

As at 31 December 2020, guarantee on certain receivables

provided by Ms. Hou Wei, a substantial shareholder of the

Company, is amounted approximately RMB259,108,000
(2019: Nil).

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net of

allowance for credit losses, presented based on the invoice

dates:

Within 6 months NMEBW
6 — 12 months NETZ@EA
1 -2 years —EME
Over 2 years BEME

23. B REMBKREREAGRE @)

He  (48)

() WIZEZZE+_A=+—H0 BREMAR
121,934,000 T BB BRI (EAE
FIRENE D NE GFRIEES) - BB
BAEBZE D WHEEEERERR -

f  IET3@BSIno Legacy Group (EER T K
¥% a0t (BHIsE36) MBS WEL
HEIYEREEREAEER - ZEY
EMRPREEN FER T —F AR
T-BEEBRPYESBEMRBREHRELU
BEENFE S IR o WgBESino Legacy GroupAi B
BHEZMNRE Bt ENZEMESRS
HEMH o

A TECERF+ZRB=+—H ' AREE
ERRERZIME TERFIERMGEZ
ERBEENA ARKE259,108,000 7t (ZF
—NF | o

UTRERERAHEINE ZEIR
(AER1E i%ﬁéﬂaﬁéfﬁ) AYBRES DA

2020 2019
—ECEHF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARWETFT ANEETFT
29,582 154,582
10,455 18,609
29,652 53,724
31,403 4,301
101,092 231,216

E—IERERAR
"“ECTEFR

255



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HAEMBERME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZE_ZE_Z&+_H=+—HIEEE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 23. B R HMEWFRIERFE(IFRIE (&)

PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, included in the Group's trade
receivable are debtors with aggregate net carrying amount
of approximately RMB61,055,000 (2019: RMB59,372,000)
which are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past
due balances, RMB35,299,000 (2019: RMB8,920,000) has
been past due 90 days or more and is not considered as in
default by considering the background of the trade receivables
and historical settlement arrangement of these trade
receivables. The Group does not hold any collateral over the
balances.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables are set out in Note 38(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS M ER R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

24. LOAN RECEIVABLES

As at 31 December 2019, the amounts represented loan
advances to independent third parties with aggregated
principal amount approximately RMB137,533,000 which
were carried at weighted average fixed interest rate at 8.3%
per annum, repayable within one year and guaranteed by
independent third parties. Except for the loan advance with
principal amount approximately RMB4,505,000 was secured
by properties owned by the borrower, the remaining loan
advance were unsecured. The directors of the Company are of
the view that there had been no significant increase in credit
risk nor default because the counterparties were able to settle
the interest in accordance the term of loan agreements. As
at 31 December 2019, the Group recognised an impairment
allowance of RMB11,587,000 on loan receivables. Details of
impairment assessment are set out in Note 38(b).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
has received the settlement of loan with principal amount
approximately RMB4,505,000 from one of the borrowers and
corresponding secured properties were released. Regarding
on the remaining balances with the aggregate amount
of RMB133,028,000, the loans were made to two of the
Group's suppliers who are engaged in the interior design and
engineering service. Pursuant to the loan agreements, the
loan receivables should be repaid on or before 31 December
2020. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
and these two suppliers have mutually agreed to terminate
the loan agreements and the outstanding balances are used
for future settlement of purchase of construction materials.
Accordingly, the Group reversed the allowance for credit
losses of RMB11,472,000 when the loan receivables were
derecognised and recognised the outstanding balances as
prepayment for purchase of goods at the gross amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47 5 B 5 R R Y 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZE_ZE_Z&+_H=+—HIEEE

25. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 25.

The bank balances, including time deposits with original
maturities less than 3 months, carry interest at prevailing
market rates which ranged from 0.01% to 0.3% (2019:
0.01% to 0.3%) per annum.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group performed
impairment assessment on bank balances and concluded
that the probability of defaults of the counterparty banks are
insignificant and accordingly, no allowance for credit losses is
provided. Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note
38(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS M ER R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

26. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES

The amounts due from related parties are non-trade related,
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

26. &R TRIR

PR RA B 75 ~RIE 2 JF B 5 18R ~ KR
EEKRBIMEREE -

Maximum amount
outstanding during the
year ended 31 December

#E+-R=+—-8
HEEZREHKREHIEE
2020 2019 2020 2019
ZECEE | ZENE| ZBIEF | ZFIEF
Related parties BB RMB000 | RMBO0O | RMBGO0 |  RMB000
AERBTR | \E®Tx| ARBTR| AEBTR
Tourmaline, an entity with Ms. Deng Yiyi, 22 (KREBTHAEH
the Chief Executive Officer of BRBZTAES
the Group, as director’ ZER = 23,637 23,820 23,820
Meizhou Xikang Construction Company  #§MN g 2SR
Limited* (“Meizhou Xikang") IRAERRAT*
(IEMNHERRETIRERAR), (e MERl)
an entity significant influenced by SRYERLLRE
a close family member of Ms. Hou Wei TRV E AT ZH
—RER) 918 667 918 668
Mr. Wen Jingfeng, the son of ik 6z Sivias
Ms. Deng Haiming (BEBLLZF) - 16 16 16
918 24,320

" During the year ended 31 December 2020, Ms. Deng Yiyi, the
Chief Executive Officer of the Group resigned as the director of
Tourmaline, accordingly the amount is reclassified to other receivable
as at 31 December 2020 (see Note 23(e)).

* The English name is for identification purpose only

Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note 38(b).

*

BE_S_TZFE+_B=+—HIEEE K
EETHERTERLIHEIEEES
R -_ZE_TE+_B=+—0 ' ZSE=E
oAz HmERIE (RMEE236)) ©

EXEEEHAT

BT Z 5F BB A MY 5E38(b)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZE_ZE_Z&+_H=+—HIEEE

27. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables B ENRIE
Bills payables ERENRIE
Other payables H{thFE(TFRIE

I #rE k8 TEF
BWERTIERBEE

Salaries and staff welfare payables
Deposits received for
building engineering services

Accrued construction costs FESTREE A
Other tax payables HihfENIRI1E
Withholding income tax in respect of BRIKNEREZ
dividend payment TRHFT1ETR
Other payables HAME 1A

BEERRBEMARIEUR
HthFE 7R IH

Trade and bills payables and
other payables

The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills payables
presented based on the invoice date.

Within 6 months NMEA R
6 to 12 months NETIZEA
Over 1 year BiB—E
The credit periods on purchases of goods and subcontracting BE
services ranged from 0 to 180 days. 180
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27. B 5 REHEEM IR R E R
MIE

2020 2019
—g-®E | —=-nf
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFR | AREFT
69,388 83,639

= 10,000

69,388 93,639
1,613 894
1,080 5,808
4,284 4,795
9,897 9,514
16,000 16,000
9,477 685
111,739 131,335

UTHEREZAMENZEZ RERE
PR RIEZ BRES D #fT

2020 2019
—EEE —ENEF
RMB000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT
31,530 42,233
5,981 20,933
31,877 30,473
69,388 93,639

RDBBRBZEEMNFOE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Secured fixed-rate bank borrowings
(note (a))
— Within one year or on demand
— After one but within two years
— After two but within five years

Unsecured loan from a shareholder

(note (b))
— Within one year or on demand

Total bank and other borrowings

Less: Loans due within one year or on
demand classified as current liabilities

AR S I 5 R R I 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

28. SRIT R HAth(E

BIRHEERNEIRITER
(Hizta)
——FERFRER
——FBREXMERN
—MERBBRAEER

RE—BRRZEHRITE
R (H15E©b))
——FRIHER

IRTT R H M AT 2R

B DESRSaR—F
WEZEREHRZ G

=

2020 2019
—E_EF —E—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ABREFT NE¥ETT
56,000 113,400
109,000 -
4,223 -
8,356 -
177,579 113,400
(64,356) (113,400)
113,223 -
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28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

262

As at 31 December 2020, the bank borrowings were secured by
property, plant and equipment, investment properties, land use right
in PRC recognised as right-of-use assets and the property in the PRC
held by Chief Executive Officer.

As at 31 December 2019, the bank borrowings were secured by
property, plant and equipment, investment properties and land use
right in PRC recognised as right-of-use assets.

The bank borrowings were also jointly guaranteed by Ms. Hou Wei
and Mr. Deng Jianshen, husband of Ms. Hou Wei.

The secured fixed-rate bank borrowings are denominated in RMB.

Details of charges over the bank borrowings are disclosed in Note
39.

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to
contracted interest rates) on the Group's bank borrowings are as
follows:

=

Effective interest rates (per annum): BIRFE (
Bl F) AR

&
ﬁ

Fixed-rate borrowings

The loan from a shareholder is unsecured, repayable on 3 June 2021

and interest-bearing at 2.5% per annum.
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28. SRITREMERR (@)
Hist -
(@ R-T-BE+-A=+—0 RTERS
ME - BEREHE REANE BB ES

(b)

E E Z T L it R DR AT AR PR
R (FIRIR

RI=E

—hE+_ﬁj+—E » SRITERE
WME BB Rkt REMEURER S ®
ﬁﬁ@zﬁézqﬂﬂiiﬂlﬁﬁﬁkfﬁ&ﬁc’

IR BERABERL T RBERLE (BHR
THISER) BEER-

BRAEEFNXFRITERUAREE

RITIETR BT BB M FE39

REBIBTERZERIZE HBER ST
X)SEEWT :

2020 2019
—EIEE ZENF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT N

4.85% - 12.00% 5.44% - 12.00%

ﬂ&@—%ﬁ&‘%zgﬁ’%ﬁ?mﬁ VAR ZE
T —FERB=ZHER WREFE2 5%t
Bo



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

29. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES

On 25 June 2019, the Company issued convertible loan notes
in an aggregate amount of HK$102,100,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB89,817,000), bearing coupon interest of
6% per annum to eight independent third parties (the “CB
holders”). The convertible loan notes are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars. The convertible loan notes entitle the CB
holders to convert them into ordinary shares of the Company
at any time during the conversion period at a conversion
price of HK$1.0 per convertible loan note, which is subject to
the adjustments pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
convertible loan notes as follows:

(i) a maximum of not more than one-third of the principal
amount of the convertible loan notes held by such CB
holders may be converted into conversion shares from
the twelfth month after the issue of the convertible loan
notes;

(i) a maximum of not more than one-third of the principal
amount of the convertible loan notes held by such CB
holders may be converted into conversion shares from the
fourteenth month after the issue of the convertible loan
notes;

(iiiy all the remaining of the principal amount of the
convertible loan notes held by such CB holders may be
converted into conversion shares from the sixteenth
month after the issue of the convertible loan notes.

29. AR ERERE

A TE-AERBZ+TRB AATBN
LEUE=F (MRESFE AL &
1748%8102,100,0008 7t FHER I ARE
89,817,0007T) (FEERE%H6%) BRI
BERER - ERERLUBTEE
MR ERERRFAIMKRESFAEA
AP SRPERNEAREZERRES
HEMAR ERERE1.08 7T (FIRE R
ERMEBRZ B REGRE) SoRkE
NERERARRBZERAOT

() ZFAIBRRESFFHEAFTAEZAR
REREET REFABB=D2Z—
WAZEA NPT RRERERET
‘BT _EREBRATIARD ;

(i) ZFARRESFHEAFTAEZAR
REREET REFABB=D2Z—
WAZEA NPT RRERERET
BB+ IUEREERATIARD ;

(i) ZFABRRESFFHEAFTAEZAR
REREBEPHFAAGR TAZEN
RABRBRERERETERSE I/ E
BRESBRARIRM

E—IERERAR
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29. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (Continued) 29. AR ERER (&

The convertible loan notes shall mature on the date falling
eighteenth month after the date of issue. The Company may,
at any time prior to the maturity date, redeem all or part of
the outstanding convertible loan notes at the redemption
price of 105% of the outstanding principal amount of the
convertible loan notes before the first anniversary of the date
of issue and 108.5% of the outstanding principal amount of
the convertible loan notes after the first anniversary of the date
of issue, together with the accrued interest incurred before the
period from the redemption date and interest for the period
from the redemption date to the maturity date at the rate of
6% per annum, by giving a prior notice of not less than thirty
days to the CB holders of such convertible loan notes subject
to the terms and conditions of the convertible loan notes.
Any convertible loan notes outstanding on the maturity date
shall be redeemed by the Company subject to the terms and
conditions of the convertible loan notes.

At the maturity date (i.e. 24 December 2020), if the
convertible loan notes have not been converted or redeemed,
they will be redeemed at 108.5% of par, unless the CB holders
and the Company mutually agree to extend the maturity
date to 24 June 2021 (“Extension Period”). CB holders shall
exercise the conversion right to convert the convertible loan
notes into conversion shares during the Extension Period at the
conversion price of HK$1. Interest of 6% will be paid quarterly
up until the settlement date.

At initial recognition, the equity element of the convertible
loan notes amounted to approximately RMB2,811,000, net
of the transaction cost attributable to equity component of
approximately RMB16,000, was recognised separately from
the liability component. The equity component is presented
in equity heading “convertible loan notes equity reserve”. The
early redemption option is considered as closely related to the
host debt. The effective interest rate of the liability component
is 16.50% per annum.
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29. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (Continued)

On 24 December 2020, 37,429,167 convertible loan notes
with principal amount of approximately HK$37,429,000
(equivalent to RMB34,136,000) were converted into
conversion shares at the conversion price of HK$1 and the
remaining convertible loan notes of 64,670,833 are extended
to 24 June 2021 after mutually agreed by the Company and
CB holders. Except for the above, all the other terms and
conditions remain unchanged.

Details are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 10
May 2019 and 24 December 2020.

As at the date of modification, taking into account the terms
of the extension, the fair value of convertible loan notes was
amounted to approximately HK$66,875,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB56,214,000), of which the fair values of
liability component and equity component were amounted to
approximately HK$66,842,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB56,186,000) and approximately HK$33,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB28,000) respectively. As a result, the
Group recognised a gain on modification of convertible loan
notes of approximately RMB2,796,000 in the consolidated
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
and transferred the amount of approximately RMB1,798,000
from “convertible loan notes equity reserve” to “retained
profits” in the consolidated statements of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The effective interest rate of the liability component for the
extended convertible loan notes is 16.09% per annum.

29.

AJRRERER @

RZEZEF+ZHEZ+HEB X%
849 %37,429,0008 0 (HHER AR
34,136,0007T) A37,429,16710 BI AR B
EREREREIBTRRARIRRS
&k 764,670,833 A AR ERZIFILE
TET—FRABZHHA @A RQBFHET
MR ESFHE ARRBERE) o bR LM PR
BEMER AR RIT A& -

BN AT HBEA_S-NERA
+HRZEZEF+"_A"+HmAEZA

H
= °

PRIEETH R Rt RIERIKRARE > AR
BREMREZ AFEHN766,875,000%8
7T (FBE R ARS6,214,0007T) » H
mEaERIREGBDZAFESD R
#7366,842,0008 7t HERHO AR
56,186,0007T) K& #933,0008 70 (HEERAY
AR #28,0007T) AL AEENLRSIE
mRkEMEERERPERIBREER
BT EL AR KE2,796,0007T > Wi
# AR 181,798,0007cHI £ 88 (A1 AR &
NEEEGREI BREEE_SZF
+TZA=T—HIFEZGFEEREER
MREBEF) ©

KHEHAPT MR ERZE A BHBOZE
[RHEBFE16.09% ©
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29. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (Continued) 29. AR ERER (&

266

The movement of the equity and liability components of the FAMKREREBEERREEHRDZ
convertible loan notes for the year is set out below: gEEEIUWT
2020 2019
—ECEH —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ANEEFT
Equity component R EB D
Carrying amount at the beginning FYIREE
of the year 2,811 -
Proceeds at the date of issuance REITHZRERIE - 89,817
Liability component, at the date of issuance 21T HEIZ BEZD - (86,990)
Transaction costs attributable to e (N S A ) N
equity component — (16)
Transfer to retained earnings RRIMBEREFRERT
upon conversion (985) -
Transfer to retained earnings upon extension A iEEE E =R BB A (1,798) -
Carrying amount at the end of the year FRIREE 28 2,811
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MAMBERRMEE

29. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (Continued)

Liability component

Carrying amount at the beginning of
the year

Issuance of convertible loan notes on
25 June 2019

Transaction costs attributable to
liability component

Interest charge (Note 9)

Interest paid

Converted into shares

Gain on modification of convertible loan
notes (Note 8)

Exchange realignment

Carrying amount at the end of the year

29. ATRRERERE ©®

I=REEPa

FYERE(E

R _T—NENB-+HAH
BITOMRENER
BEMDEBIEZRZ A

F B (a29)

[SENEIPS)

RIBRMN

PR EMEFEST W
(Hfa£8)

PES SR

FREREE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

2020 2019
—E_EF —E—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ABREFT NE¥ETT
91,496 -
- 86,990
- (506)
15,428 7,377
(6,928) (4,508)
(34,136) -
(2,796) =
(6,816) 2,143
56,248 91,496
E—ERARAT
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30. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Deposits received from customers in
relation to:
— Sale and distribution of merchandise
— Provision of interior design and
building engineering services

As at 1 January 2019 and 1 January 2020, the contract
liabilities amounted to RMB2,811,000 and RMB7,541,000 are
recognised as revenue in profit or loss during the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2020, respectively. The directors
of the Company considered that contract liabilities would
be realised within one year based on the Group's earliest
obligation to transfer goods or services to the customers and

are classified as current liabilities.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities recognised are set out in Note 5(ii).
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30. Y AaE

2020 2019
—E-EF “E—NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AR HEFT
B TIEEARZ
BEFUWEES !
—tHE KD IHE @ 3,352 3,180
—REEANRFT KBS
TR 7,046 4,361
10,398 7,541

S

BamAREBABA -ARFAEERR &
NEERRBEAEERNETRBRERT
BB zERFEEN—FRER > WHED
nEaRe

RZIE—NEF—HA—RARZIEZZEF—
B—B a8/ AR2,811,000t & A
K #7,541,0007T 7 B i &

—EE

E-ET—NF

F+-A=+—BLEEZ

TEMERZENEETERZ —RUN
TARRRE S B EES (i)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

LEASE LIABILITIES

Within one year

Within a period of more than one year but
not more than two years

Within a period of more than two years but
not more than five years

Within a period of more than five years

Less: Amount due for settlement within
12 months shown under current liabilities

Amount due for settlement after 12 months
shown under non-current liabilities

DEFERRED TAX

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred
tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities

31. HE&FE
2020 2019
—ECEHF —_E—NE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANBETFT NEEFT
—FRN 1,967 1,589
BB —EEBAZHRMEZ
AR 1,682 1,351
BBMEBARASHRAEEY
ARSI Y 5,486 6,992
B8 A F 2 B R 1,651 1,653
10,786 11,585
B omEAasE R
+_EARRNEHENZ
I8 (1,967) (1,589)
eIt =R =l
+-@EB%
EIER B 2 1B 8,819 9,996

32. JEIERIE

R G MBI RES
MEEEKREREHREH M BHHREM
B IRERIBERHZ DA ¢

5 ATIEL

2020 2019
—EZF —E-NEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ANEBEFT

RIERIBEE 2,886 6,122
RIERIBEE (20,911) (19,642)
(18,025) (13,520)

E—ERERAT
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32. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

32. IRIEFRIE (&)

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets
recognised and movements thereon during the current and

UTB/REAFERAMEFEZBERE
PREEEENRBEEREED !

270

prior years:
Revaluation
Accrued of Allowance Unrealised
rentaland  investment ECL for profit in
payroll  properties provision inventories  Tax losses inventories Total
Eitie REWEZ - BHEE RER
RIE ENfiE  BERE 2 GREE 0 WESE  #8EY R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANEEFT ANEETFT ARBETT ARETT AREFT ABEFT ARETT
At 1 January 2019 RZE-h&E—F—H (89) 4,163 (886) (251) (718) (406) 1,813
Charged/(credited) to BE&I% (AR
profit or loss (Note 77) (hizt11) 89 286 @.471) 6 198 406 (3,486)
Charged to other BEMEERETR
comprehensive income - 15,193 - - - - 15,193
At 31 December 2019 and RIZ2-NE+ZB=1+—H
1 January 2020 kRZE-25—-F—H - 19,642 (5,357) (245) (520) - 13,520
Arising from acquisition of ErBUENBAR (i36)
subsidiaries (Note 36) - 550 - - - - 550
(Credited)/charged to profit or lossBE 8z (AR /41
(Note 11) (Waz11) S (140) 2,877 - 359 - 3,096
Charged to other comprehensive B E 2 E I Mk
income - 859 - - - - 859
At 31 December 2020 “ZE-F%+-A=+-H - 20,911 (2,480) (245) (161) - 18,025

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has estimated
unused tax losses of approximately RMB18,188,000 (2019:
RMB6,192,000) available for offset against future profits. A
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of such losses
amounting to RMB3,938,000 (2019: RMB2,080,000) during
the year ended 31 December 2020. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included
in unrecognised tax losses are losses of RMB14,250,000
(2019: RMB4,112,000) that will expire from 2021 to 2025
(2019: 2020 to 2024). Other losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.
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32. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the
Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC from 1 January 2008
onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary
difference attributable to the retained profits earned by
the subsidiaries in the PRC amounting to approximately
RMB161,705,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
RMB100,671,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Under the Provisional Regulations of LAT ({2 A R HF1E
T IR EREITIRMA])) effective on 1 January 1994, and the
Detailed Implementation Rules on the Provisional Regulations
of the PRC on LAT ({RZE AR HME + #MIZEREITIR
B EHE4AHEI)) effective from 27 January 1995, all income
from the sales or transfer of state-owned land use rights,
buildings and their attached facilities in the PRC is subject to
LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% of the
appreciation value, being the proceeds of sales of properties
less deductible expenditures in relation to the gains arising
from sales of properties in the PRC effective from 1 January
2004. Deferred taxation of LAT has been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of appreciation
value of investment properties located in the PRC.

32, IRIEFRIBE (&)

RIEFPETEMBIRE BZEZNE—
B—Hi sEAEERENE AT B
Z2aMPNBEERKREBHMTBIIR N
EIEFE+TR=+—H REaMBHRE
W2k B Bl A B BY /B8 A B P B B AR B8 i )
MERFEZEEHARE161,705,0007t (ZF
—hE  AR#100,671,0007T) {EHIEIE
MIEHRE REAREETENZEGR
EFRNEOIRRE URZEEREREA
R HRA K AT BE#E[D] o

BER—ANOAE—B—BHERZ(PE
AR HFE L # I8 ERETIEAE ) MUK
R—AhEE—BZ+tBEMz(PE
A B H B 4 #h 38 E 8 17156 8 HE AR
Y A EEEHE N EEEAE T ME
B EFREWERE A WASE
BAFAEEE EIYEHEMIRIER
BRANRTEBEEYEFES WS Z BT
MBESZ) 30%E60% 2 RER T4 1
MER B ZSENE—A—BEER
ERGEMBERRAMUNFEZRE
MEZABEEBEFHREIMIZERR
T o
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33. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised ordinary shares at
HK$0.1 each

At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 and
31 December 2020

Issued and fully paid ordinary shares
at HK$0.1 each

At 1 January 2019

Exercise of share options (Note (a))

At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020

Exercise of share options (Note (a))

Issuance of consideration share upon
acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 36)

Conversion of convertible loan notes
(Note (b))

At 31 December 2020

Notes:

During the year ended 31 December 2020, share option holders

F+_A=+—HLFE

33. g4

SRNVBRTZEELER

Kiv —hF—RB—H>
—NF+ZR
_+ AN—Z_ZF
+ZRB=+—H
FRON1BTZEBHITRE
il
S “E-NEFE—HA—H

TR (Hat))

RZE-NE
+ZRA=+—Hk
—E_®E—A—H

TR (Hata)
RSB B AR R ET
BRI (W/a£36)
BT ENER

(Hfztb))

N_E_EF+_"4
=+—H

et -

exercised their rights to subscribe 200,000 (2019: 200,000)
ordinary shares in the Company at HK$0.704 (2019: HK$0.704)
per share with net proceeds of approximately RMB125,000
(2019: RMB127,000) and resulted in the increase in share capital
of RMB18,000 (2019: RMB18,000) and share premium of
approximately RMB133,000 (2019: RMB135,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, CB holders exercised

their rights to convert the convertible loan notes into 37,429,167
ordinary shares of the Company at HK$1 per share with net
proceeds of approximately RMB34,136,000 and resulted in the
increase in share capital of approximately RMB3,146,000 and share

premium of approximately RMB30,990,000.
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Number of Share
shares capital

i3yt 4= &N
RMB’000

NEETFT

5,000,000,000 609,650
691,200,000 58,190
200,000 18
691,400,000 58,208
200,000 18
86,246,154 7,630
37,429,167 3,146
815,275,321 69,002
RBEE_Z_ZF+_B=+—HLHF

= E%Hﬂ%ghﬁ)\ﬁ@ﬂﬁg%l % &0%0.704
BT (CE—HE 0.70487T) BEAAT
200,0008% (ZZ— £ : 200,000/%) Z4&
B FRS s IE R 884 A AR #125,0007T (=
T—NE ARKE127,0007T) » L REAIE N
AR&18,00070 (ZE—HE . ARHE18,000
7o) KRR ASE B N4y A R #133,0007t (=
Z—N%F . AR135,0007T) ©

REEZZF+_A=+—HIEHFE"
AR ESFEE ATHEEEFZIBTEA
BMRERER R 537,429,167 Z @A
FriSsnIg 3B A4 AR H34,136,00070° %
Hymi‘nuﬁﬁ/\ﬁ%3,146,0007z)§zﬁy$,m1,a
#0149 A R #30,990,0007T °
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34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company

In order to provide incentives and rewards to eligible
participants for their contribution or potential contribution to
the Group, the Company adopted share option scheme on
6 October 2015. The total amount of shares and any other
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 36,000,000
shares.

On 2 November 2018, the Company granted 36,000,000
share options to certain directors, senior management,
employees, consultants and customers of the Group. These
share options have exercise price at HK$0.704 with exercise
period of 3 years starting from 7 months after the grant date.
Under the plan, participants are granted options which only
vest subject to grantees continuing to be an employee of the
Group or providing service to the Group through each vesting
date. Details are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 2 November 2018.

34. BRBHBERZTRZH

AT AT 42 AR s 8

ARAEER2HEENREHLEEB T
B BTE SRR S B R 22 E A A B
TE-HFETAABIRMEBREE R
PBREBERARNB ZEREMBERESE
T 1518B1336,000,0008% °

RIZE—NE+—BZH xATAELE
EETES - SREEE -BE BEMEEK
& F 2 136,000,000/ B IR HE - Z L HER
BT EEA0.7048 7T (THEEBEA3E B
RHEEH®B7ESRG Rzt 24
EERBERE EFARAREZREBEH
BERALAEERENARERRHR
o BB st RHN AR HEAAZ
TE-NE+—HBZHzZRE.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZE_ZE_Z&+_H=+—HIEEE

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company
(Continued)

The following table discloses movements of the Company'’s
share options held by directors, senior management,
employees, consultants and customers during the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019:

34. URINBERZ(ARRS @

T AT T Z AR (2

TREEEE ST _EEL_E—HFE
+_B=+t—HIEFEEE SHhEE
EB-EBE BEEMRERFTBEZARTER
T2 B8

Number of share options
fleE#E
Granted Exercised Lapsed
during At during during
Options Vesting period At 1.1.2019 the year 31.12.2019 the year theyear  At31.12.2020
RZE-h&E —E-hE ZEIEE
fRiRtE RER —-RA—H F£REY +ZRA=+-H FERITE FER%® +-A=+-H
Directors EZ
Tranche 1 02.11.2018-01.05.2019 700,000 (200,000) 500,000 (200,000) (300,000) -
4t “Z2-\F+-BZHE
“Z-A%F1R-H
Tranche 2 02.11.2018 - 01.05.2020 700,000 700,000 - - 700,000
i “Z-\F+-BZHE
“2”Z£1R-H
Tranche 3 02.11.2018 - 01.05.2021 700,000 700,000 - - 700,000
= “Z-\f+-AZHE
“2”-%1A-H
2,100,000 (200,000) 1,900,000 (200,000 (300,000) 1,400,000
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 34. URInHERZAMRES &
(CONTINUED)
Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company TATIUREZ (G ZEBREHND (&
(Continued)
Number of share options
YA
Granted Exercised Lapsed
during At during during
Options Vesting period At 1.1.2019 the year 31.12.2019 the year theyear  At31.12.2020
7 i®
RZE-h&E —E-hE ZECEE
i 134 FES —B-H FERiRE +=B=+-A EnfT /%% +=BA=+-A
Senior management BREEE
Tranche 1 02.11.2018-01.05.2019 100,000 - 100,000 - (100,000) =
g “2-\E+-RAZHE
“Z2-NFLA-H
Tranche 2 02.11.2018 -01.05.2020 100,000 - 100,000 - - 100,000
B “Z-\E+-AZHE
“2°ZF1R-H
Tranche 3 02.11.2018 - 01.05.2021 100,000 - 100,000 - - 100,000
F=H# “Z2-\F+-BZHE
—Z”-FnR—H
300,000 - 300,000 - (100,000) 200,000
Employees 3
Tranche 1 02.11.2018-01.05.2019 400,000 - 400,000 - (400,000) -
g4 “Z-\F+-AZHE
“Z-NERR-H
Tranche 2 02.11.2018 - 01.05.2020 400,000 - 400,000 - - 400,000
FH “2-\F+—BZHE
“22ZFRAH
Tranche 3 02.11.2018 - 01.05.2021 400,000 - 400,000 - - 400,000
F-H “Z-\E+-AZHE
“E2-%1R-H
1,200,000 - 1,200,000 - (400,000) 800,000
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34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 34. URRinHERZAMES @
(CONTINUED)
Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company AT (G ZEBRENE (&
(Continued)
Number of share options
fEleEHE
Granted Exercised Lapsed
during At during during
Options Vesting period At 1.1.2019 the year 31.12.2019 the year theyear At 31.12.2020
RZE-h&E —E-hE ZECEE
falRtE FES —B-H FERiRE +=B=+-A EMTTE ER%X¥ +=A=+-A
Consultants V7]
Tranche 1 02.11.2018-01.05.2019 5,433,333 - 5,433,333 - (5,433,333) -
g4 “Z-\F+-AZHE
“2-NF1A-H
Tranche 2 02.11.2018 -01.05.2020 5,433,333 - 5,433,333 - - 5,433,333
N “F-\f+-RZRE
“2”Z#£1RA-H
Tranche 3 02.11.2018 - 01.05.2021 5,433,334 - 5,433,334 - - 5,433,334
=it “Z-\E+-AZHE
“F_-%1R-H
16,300,000 - 16,300,000 - (5,433,333) 10,866,667
Customers 5F
Tranche 1 02.11.2018-01.05.2019 5,366,667 - 5,366,667 - (5,366,667) -
g4 “Z-\F+-AZHE
“2-NF1A-H
Tranche 2 02.11.2018 -01.05.2020 5,366,667 - 5,366,667 - - 5,366,667
i “Z-\E+-AZHE
“2”Z#£1A-H
Tranche 3 02.11.2018 - 01.05.2021 5,366,666 - 5,366,666 - - 5,366,666
s “Z-\E+-AZHE
“F_-F1R-H
16,100,000 - 16,100,000 - (5,366,667) 10,733,333
36,000,000 (200,000) 35,800,000 (200,000 (11,600,000) 24,000,000
Exercisable at theend of ~ FAREHAKAI{TME
the reporting period 11,800,000 12,000,000
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34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company
(Continued)

The estimated fair value of the options granted on 2
November 2018 was HK$6,953,000. The Binomial model
had been used to estimate the fair value of the options. The
variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of
the share options were based on the directors’ best estimate.
The value of an option varied with different variables of certain
subjective assumptions.

The key inputs of the model for Tranche 1 to 3 were as follows:

Share price AR EH
Exercise price TEE
Risk-free rate mE A =R
Dividend yield 3=y
Expected volatility TEHER IR
Time-to-maturity FIHABFER

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company'’s share price over the previous 18
to 42 months. The Group recognised the total expense of
RMB1,436,000 (2019: RMB3,376,000) for the year ended 31
December 2020 in relation to share options granted by the
Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, share options
amounting to approximately RMB1,499,000 (2019: Nil) was
lapsed and were transferred from share-based payment
reserve to retained profits.

34. URINBERZ(AMIS @)

FABRURSZ T2 EikEE (@)

A ZE-N\F+—BZHEHZERRE
Z 155t AF{E %A6,953,0005 75 —IETIE
BERREEREZ ATE. %Jr%:ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
BAFEMERNEREE RBRERTY
MBS REMEe ﬁ%ﬁﬂ&ﬁ@ﬁﬁ%%?
FHEEBEINFEEEMBTARRE -

B—E-HREZTEHARBENT

Tranche 1 Tranche 2 Tranche 3
SE—Ht BTt E=#
HK$0.69 HK$0.69 HK$0.69
0.69787T 0.69787T 0.69787T
HK$0.704 HK$0.704 HK$0.704
0.704% 7t 0.70478 7T 0.7047% 7T
2.02% 2.18% 2.25%
0% 0% 0%
43.4% 43.7% 46.1%
1.5 years 2.5 years 3.5 years
1.55 2545 354

FEHEEERALATDRENRBEISE
NRERZEFFRBEE - HEZTE
F+_B=1+—BHLEE > KEFRE:D
BRALNBIBHEREZRZEEA
R#81,436,000c (ZE—HE: AR
3,376,0007T) °

BE_Z_ZET_A=+—HIEEER
FERIEM ARY,499,0000T (ZE—N
F ) BRMC B UKD BERZ R
ﬁ%%@;%&f%ﬁ B Al o
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35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS 35. BREFIETE

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of trustees. The Group contributes of 5%
of eligible employees’ relevant aggregated income with a cap
of HK$1,500 per employee per month, which contribution is
matched by employees.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiary is
required to contribute a certain percentage of payroll costs to
the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme is to make the specified contributions.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of RMB263,000
(2019: RMB986,000) represents contributions payable to
these plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the
plans.
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36. BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 4 June 2020, the Group and the two independent third
parties (the “Vendors”) entered into the sale and purchase
agreement, pursuant to which the Vendors have agreed to
sell and the Group has conditionally agreed to acquire the
sale shares, representing 100% of the issued share capital of
Sino Legacy Investments Limited (“Sino Legacy”), which is
principally engaged in investment holding with its subsidiaries
(collectively as “Sino Legacy Group”) engaged in the business
of online distribution and electronic marketing service and
provision of interior design and home decoration services in
the PRC. On 26 August 2020, the acquisition was completed
(the "Completion Date”).

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement, the
consideration is satisfied by issuance of shares in two tranches
(the "Consideration Shares”) in the following manner:

(i) The first tranche of Consideration Shares, being
86,246,154 ordinary shares of the Company (the “First
Tranche Consideration Shares”), which were allotted and
issued on the date of completion; and

(i) The second tranche of Consideration Shares, being
51,993,846 ordinary shares of the Company (the
“Second Tranche Consideration Shares”), will be allotted
and issued on or before 30 April 2021 if the aggregate
audited net profit after tax for the financial year ended
31 December 2020 of the operating subsidiaries in Sino
Legacy Group will not be less than RMB4,000,000 (the
“Minimum Profit”). In the event that the Minimum Profit
could not be met, no Second Tranche Consideration
Shares shall be allotted.

36. ¥EAH

N ZEZEFRANB AEEEMA
BugE=r (&A1) IJIEEHZE &
b BFRARHERAERFHRERE
W BB 8 € B& 17 > BNSino Legacy Investments
Limited (TSino Legacy)) (EERELRE
RS R HME AR (@R Sino Legacy
Groupl) * RHABIRER EDERETF
HRBURRBERERAR ST RREBE ﬁﬂiﬂﬁ
BHER NE2BPEETRE - RIEZ
ZENAZ+<H (ZHBH) - WES
HE T °

RIEEEHRE RNEBR TSN D MERE
TG (MBS ) 2 A FUE(

() E—8HALERMD  BBXRQF
86,246,154k ZimR (7 (ME—HH
Bi{p1) > ERCSER B IR AC 3% K 2
(-4

iy B_HRKER®HD  BBEARQF
51,993,846 E @M I 17 (T35 ZHAX
BRM) BRI —FOEB=+
B3z RIAC3E /2517 2 1ESino Legacy
GroupZENBABIBE_ZTZF
+ A=+ HIERREEZLSE
REREBANMEREERFDORA
E 64,000,000t (MERfE&EF]) o (e
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36. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) 36. ¥ 5H @)

As at the Completion Date, the First Tranche Consideration
Shares and Second Tranche Consideration Shares are
representing to 10.34% and 6.32% of the enlarged ordinary
shares of the Company, respectively.

At the Completion Date, the directors of the Company were
of the opinion that the Minimum Profit would be met and that
the Second Tranche Consideration Shares would be issuable
under the contingent consideration share arrangement.
In view of such, the fair value of the Second Tranche
Consideration Shares was determined using share price of the
Company at the Completion Date.

The fair value of the First Tranche Consideration Shares and
Second Tranche Consideration Shares were valued using the
share price of the Company at the Completion Date.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to RMB356,000 have
been excluded from the cost of the acquisition and have been
recognised directly as an expense in the year and included in
the “administrative expenses” line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as the amount is not material to overall performance of the
Group.
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36. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Sino
Legacy Group at the Completion Date was as follows:

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Prepayment for acquisition of investment properties

Inventories
Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposit paid and other receivables

Cash and bank balances
Trade payables

Accrual and other payables
Receipt in advance
Contract liabilities

Lease liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities
Non-controlling interests

Goodwill on acquisition

Considerations satisfied by:
Consideration shares issued at fair value

Net cash inflow arising on acquisition
Cash and bank balances acquired

36. ¥ 5H @)

ERBEZATFENT

Y ERN G4
EHAEEE
WK B EZ FRIRUR
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Sino Legacy GroupFr5enl HERZ ml &R &

RMB'000
ARETT

90
62
35,810
1,834
352
1,845
196
(440)
(2,481)
(1,131)
(193)
(65)
(550)
(24)

35,305

53,208

88,513

88,513

196
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36.

37.

282

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Sino Legacy
Group contributed approximately RMB12,358,000 to the
Group's revenue and profit of approximately RMB4,241,000
to the Group's results in aggregate for the period from the
Completion Date of acquisition to 31 December 2020.

If the acquisition of Sino Legacy Group had been completed
on 1 January 2020, the Group's revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2020 would have been approximately
RMB459,488,000 and profit for the year ended 31 December
2020 would have been RMB14,973,000. The pro forma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of operations
of the Group that actually would have been achieved had
the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2020, nor is it
intended to be a projection of future results.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts,
which includes bank and other borrowings, convertible
loan notes and lease liabilities disclosed in Notes 28, 29 and
31, respectively, net of bank balances and cash and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital and other reserves.
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Jg o

s W BESino Legacy GroupB R - - T4
—B—HEMAEEBEEZZZZEF
+ZA=+—BLEEFEZHRARBHOA
R #5459,488,0000  #E T T F+Z
B=+t—BLEFEZRMNEABAR
14,973,0007t o EE B RMEER AR
TARRKER _E_FF—H—HS5
RZBERTAEBREBERNE 2 W aE
A& TRIERREBZ ZTEA 0

BEAERERE

AEEEEHERADEREAEEANER
RESEEERERECE AKBEBET
BB RER FEBRRGREAEIR 4
SR ERRA I —FEMERTE-

rEBZEARECEZEE HEED
BRI 5E28 ~ 29K 31 BB 2~ SR1T M EL &
MR EREEREEAE KR
THEERIREURKTACHE AEGLER
(BRBETRAREMERE) o



37.

38.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 37.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as
the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 38.

(a) Categories of financial instruments

BEFERERE @)

KABDEEEBFF—REBERELRB F
RZBERZz BN EFEEERENE
KZEXRREREEAR - REEFZE
ZAEEREBRMRE RGO #ET
R EIBURETHEFSNERIRA
B THEEREARE-

TWMIA

(a) £ T AR

Financial assets EMEE

Financial assets at FVTPL BATFEFABGDZ
SRIEE

Unlisted equity securities JE MR AES

Financial assets at amortised cost FEIE R AT AR 2
ERIEE

Financial liabilities oA =R

Amortised cost 3721 DN

2020 2019
—E_EF —E—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ABREFT NEWETT
18,087 19,407
146,013 424,489
331,439 305,028
E—ERARAT
—ETEFR 283



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HAEMBERME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZE_ZE_Z&+_H=+—HIEEE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

284

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include financial
assets at FVTPL, trade and other receivables, loan
receivables, amounts due from related parties, bank
balances and cash, trade and bills payables and other
payables, bank and other borrowings, convertible loan
notes and lease liabilities. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency risk
and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. M T H &)

(b) MFBEREEBRRER (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Market risk G kR
(i) Currency risk () EEE

Several subsidiaries of the Company have the foreign
currency bank balances which exposes the Group to
foreign currency risk. The carrying amounts of the

ARBETHE LT ZINER
ITRREAERRZINE R -
AEBRRREHARLUNESE

Group's foreign currency denominated monetary ZEBEBEEZREABELT !
assets at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
Assets
BE
2020 2019
—ECEHF “E—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ANEHFT
HK$ BT 1,151 9,646

The Group currently does not have a foreign
exchange hedging policy. However, the
management of the Group monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign exchange exposure should the
need arises.

In the opinion of management of the Group, the
expected change in foreign exchange rate will not
have significant impact on the carrying amount of
the foreign currency denominated monetary assets,
hence sensitivity analysis is not presented.

AEE B A EINE R EER
A AEEBEIEEERIMER
BRENBERFEZBHPTEKX
s LBz o

AEAEEERH AL EE
ERBETEHUSNEHEZ
EREEREEEREALE

|

BRI e I 5 2 5 SRR D AF ©

E—IERERAR
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

286

Market risk (Continued)

(ir)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to loan receivables as disclosed in Note 24,
bills payable as disclosed in Note 27, lease liabilities
as disclosed in Note 31, fixed-rate bank and other
borrowings as disclosed in Note 28 and fixed-rate
convertible loan notes as disclosed in Note 29. The
Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate bank balances as disclosed
in Note 25. The Group manages its interest rate
exposures by assessing the potential impact arising
from any interest rate movements based on interest
rate level and outlook.

The Group currently does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.
However, the management will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need
arise.

JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2020

38. M T H &)

(b) MFBEREEBRRER (&)
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. M T H &)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Total interest income from financial assets that are
measured at amortised cost is as follows:

Other income HAUr A
Financial assets at amortised cost 2248 84 B} 2<%/ (& >
SRIEE

Interest expense on financial liabilities not measured

at FVTPL:
Financial liabilities at FEE R RS E 2
amortised cost SRaE

No sensitivity analysis was presented as the
management considers that the exposure to cash
flow interest rate risk for variable-rate bank balances
are insignificant.

(b) MFBEREEBRRER (&)

G EEE

(i) FIEEE &)

REBIHNAFEZTHEET

BWABREENT :
2020 2019
“EEHF —_E-NE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ANEETT

15,651 6,975

WIFRAFESFABRTEZ

TRBEZH SRS -
2020 2019
—EZEE —ENEF
RMB000 RMB'000

ARKEFT AREFT

26,194 16,364

AREEBR A FHFXRRT
MR REREMNKEARIL T
BEXRBUESINERRHEDHN

E—IERERAR
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

288

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s
counterparties default on their contractual obligations
resulting in financial losses to the Group. The Group’s
credit risk exposures are primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables, loan receivables, contract assets,
amounts due from related parties and bank balances and
cash. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements to cover its credit risks associated
with its financial assets, except that the credit risks
associated with one of the loan receivables is greatly
reduced because such is secured by the properties owned
by the borrower.

The Group performed impairment assessment for
financial assets under ECL model. Information about the
Group’s credit risk management, maximum credit risk
exposures and the related impairment assessment, if
applicable, are summarised as below:
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from
contracts with customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits and credit approvals and to
determine any debt recovery action on those delinquent
trade receivables arising from contracts with customers.
Before granting credit to these customers, the Group
reviews the credit quality and defines credit limits by
these customers. Limits attributed to these customers are
reviewed once a year and each customer has a maximum
credit limit. The Group maintains a defined credit policy
to assess the credit quality of these customers and seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables
so as to minimise credit risk. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group's credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 26%
(2019: 34%) and 64% (2019: 74%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group's largest customer
and the five largest customers respectively.

38. M T H &)

(b) MBREREEBRREBE (@)

1EEm R EFE (E)

ERGNELZEGBRTERE
HEE

mRERREERAR AEEEER
EZkEKEEEEEERBAKRE
BHtE WREHRNEF GHEENE
RE 5 EURIBEFHERBHER
TEF-RAXREEFREEGR &
EREREGEEERRAEZTE
FREERE 2ETEXFEERES
FET—RE BEBLEREER
AEEREB-AEEREREEEH
RUFLZSERZEEER IR
DEAR G H B R E BB UWRRIE YU
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AEFERARNTEBRNEERARERX
MR REAE
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

38. M T H &)

(b) MFBEAREEBRRER (&)
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(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from
contracts with customers (Continued)

In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment
under ECL model on trade balances based on provision
matrix. Except for those trade receivables with significant
outstanding balances or credit-impaired, which are
assessed for impairment individually, the remaining trade
receivables and contract assets are grouped under a
provision matrix based on shared credit risk characteristics
by reference to the ageing, repayment history and/or
past due status of trade receivables and contract assets.
Impairment of RMB1,642,000 (2019: RMB1,663,000)
and RMB2,891,000 (2019: RMB4,862,000) is recognised
for trade receivables and contract assets, respectively
during the year. Details of the quantitative disclosures are
set out below in this note.

Loan receivables

The directors of the Company estimate the estimated
loss rates of loan receivables based on historical credit
loss experience of the debtors as well as the fair value
of the collateral pledged by the customers to the loan
receivables, if any. Based on assessment by the directors
of the Company, the loss given default is low in view of
the estimated realised amount of ultimate disposal of the
collaterals and/or guarantees provided by independent
third parties. Reversal of impairment of RMB11,472,000
(2019: provision of RMB11,587,000) is recognised during
the year for those loan receivables without the collaterals.
Details of the quantitative disclosures are set out below in
this note.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. M T H &)

(b) MBREREEBRREBE (@)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Amounts due from related parties and other receivables
and deposits

For amounts due from related parties and other
receivables and deposits, the directors of the Company
make periodic individual assessment on the recoverability
of these amounts based on historical settlement records,
past experience, and also quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportive forward-
looking information. The directors of the Company
believe that there are no significant increase in credit risk
of these amounts since initial recognition and the Group
provided impairment based on 12m ECL. Impairment
of RMB13,000 (2019: RMB184,000) is recognised for
amounts due from related parties and impairment of
RMB26,000 (2019: reversal of RMB24,000) is recognised
for other receivables and deposits during the year. Details
of the quantitative disclosures are set out below in this
note.

FERERETG (&)
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

292

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Bank balances

Credit risk on bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are reputable banks with high credit
ratings assigned by credit agencies. The Group assessed
12m ECL for bank balances by reference to information
relating to probability of default and loss given default of
the respective credit rating grades published by external
credit rating agencies. Based on the average loss rates,
the 12m ECL on bank balances is considered to be
insignificant.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. M T H &)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HFERAIGEEBIEREE &)
(Continued)
EEmEREEFE ()

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

AEBNWAPEERRSRTEE

LR

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

Trade receivables and

Internal credit rating Description contract assets Other financial assets

ARIEETE Fiat BEPRWREREHNEE 2 HMEmMEE

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of Lifetime ECL - 12-month ECL
default and does not have any past- not credit-impaired
due amounts

i9EN HFFMENEREELEETMNAE 2BEHEEERE REREREEHE
T — i M IRE ERE

Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due Lifetime ECL — 12-month ECL
dates but usually settle in full not credit-impaired

BRaE EBALERIBERER BRE 2HBHEEESE 12 F BHEEEE
g G — i B IREERE

Doubtful There have been significant increases  Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
in credit risk since initial recognition not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
through information developed
internally or external sources

RER BBNBELEZEHIIMNIERR EHREHESEHEE 2HREREERE
R BT ERUR FEREE — i M IRE ERE —WEHREERHE
BBEEM

Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is  Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired

B8 ERBETEEACHREERE 2BEHEEHEE 2HRREERE

—BHREERE —BHRESHE

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the  Amount is written off Amount is written off
debtor is in severe financial difficulty
and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery

G| BERBENEFABAREMHE  SERIME R

¥ mASEILEERIE BN
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

38.

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

294

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The table below details the credit risk exposures of

the Group's financial assets, which are subject to ECL

assessment:

Financial assets at amortised cost

REERAIE EHEE
Trade receivables from

contracts with customers
RRaKz ERRNE

Loan receivables

EHER

Amounts due from related parties
B ARE

Other receivables and deposits

Rt ERREREE

Bank balances
RiTER
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23

24

26

23

25

Internal
credit rating

HEERITG

(Note 1)

(zE1)

(Note 2)
(Mzk2)
(Note 2)
(Mzk2)

(Note 2)
(MzH2)

(Note 2)
(HE2)

12-month or
lifetime ECL

1288214
LR 5

Lifetime ECL
(provision matrix)
HRHEERR
(BtaEmE)
Lifetime ECL-
not credit-impaired
SHBREERE-
UREREGHE
Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired
PHRREEHE-
BHREERE

Lifetime ECL-
not credit-impaired
EHEBEERE-
bENREGHAE

12-month ECL
ERRREEES

12-month ECL
12BAEBEESR

12-month ECL
NEEBHEESE

EMTR @

(b) MFBEREEBRRER (&)

1S E BB R BTG

TRFVAETERRAEEBRENG
ZREEEMEEZEERR !

2020
ZECEE

Gross carrying
amount

REAE
RMB000
ABBTFR

RMB'000
ABRFR

85,502

21,868

= 107,370

1,115

31,375

4,713

146,606

2019
“E-nE
Gross carrying
amount
RE2E
RMB'000 RMB 000
ANEEFT  AEEFT
27316
208,536
- 235,852
137,533
24,504
19,345
24,209
441,443
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

38. M T H &)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Internal

Notes  credit rating

M AERERTR

Contract assets 22 (Note 1)

alEE (M)

Notes:

12-month or
lifetime ECL
128821
FHEESHE

Lifetime ECL
(provision matrix)
LHEREERE
(e
Lifetime ECL - not
credit-impaired
SHRHREERE-
IREREGRHE

(b) MBREREEBRREBE (@)

FERERETG (&)

2020 2019
“82%% “ENE
Gross carrying Gross carrying
amount amount
IREAE REAE
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
AERFR  ABEFR | ARETT  ARETT
247,021 12,493
104,902 351,923 265,760 278,253
Wiat -

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has
applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure
the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors with
significant outstanding balances or credit-impaired, the Group
determines the ECL on these items by using a provision matrix,
grouped by internal credit rating.

As part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group
applies internal credit rating for its customers. The following
table provides information about the exposure to credit risk for
trade receivables and contract assets which are assessed based
on provision matrix within lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired).
Debtors with significant outstanding balances or credit-
impaired with gross carrying amounts of RMB126,770,000
and Nil respectively as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
RMB474,296,000 and Nil) were assessed individually.

REZRBARERENEEMS &
EEEEAEBVBREERFEIRZ
BERDERERRRAEERIESEH
BEB - REREHREMCERNE
RIREEREZEBRRRIN RER
ERBEGEEEEEZSHEEEMEE
B8 WA BB EE TR DA

EALEBEERREEZ XD
rERBEREFERARBEET R
TRIEHREHEZRUFERENE
EFERRKRZER BRAENE2H
FEHEEFE CTEHREEREB A
CEHEEFG R E_TE+
B=+—8B BEXREHREMEHR
BEHIBEEREZ ERER 242
BB ARYE126,770,0007c K% (=
T —NE . NEHEAT74,296,0007T K )
BETE BT o
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

38. M T H &)

(b) MFBEREEBRRER (&)

1S E BB R BTG

izt o (#)

1. (Continued) 1. (#8)
Gross carrying amount EREAEE
2020 2019
—BIEE “E-NE
Average Trade Contract Average Trade Contract
Internal credit rating WEME SR loss rate receivables assets loss rate receivables assets
TOEHEE ERRKME ANEE THBEREEX BIRUAA BNEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ANEEFT ANEEFT
Low risk RER 1.90% 39,916 185,015 0.37% 19,113 6,451
Watch list BgeE 2.25% 19,027 58,208 1.29% 7,306 1,735
Doubtful RER 9.04% 26,559 3,798 3.23% 897 4,307
Loss B - - - - - -
85,502 247,021 27,316 12,493

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical

observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors

and are adjusted for forward-looking information that

is available without undue cost or effort. The grouping

is regularly reviewed by management to ensure relevant

information about specific debtors is updated. The contract

assets have substantially the same risk characteristics as

the trade receivables for the same type of contracts. The

Group has therefore concluded that the loss rates for trade

receivables are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for

contract assets.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. M T H &)

(b) MBREREEBRREBE (@)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
EERMERBEFE (&)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Notes: (Continued) et (&

(Continued)
Gross carrying amount (Continueq)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
provided RMB5, 165,000 (2019: RMB1,633,000 was reversed)
and RMB3,598,000 (2019: RMB110,000) impairment
allowance for trade receivables and contract assets
respectively, based on the provision matrix.

Impairment allowance of RMB3,523,000 (2019:
RMB4,437,000 were made) were reversed on debtors with
significant balances and impairment allowance of Nil (2019:
RMB1,070,000) were reversed on credit-impaired debtors
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Impairment allowance of RMB707,000 (2019: RMB4,681,000
were made) were reversed on contract assets with significant
balances during the year ended 31 December 2020.

(4&)
IREAE (B)

HE_Z-_EF+_-_A=+—H1L
FEE > AEBRRBEBEEEEMESE
BHBEBRENEEDAFRARE
5,165,0007C (ZZ—H 45 : EO AR
1,633,0007T) K 5112 A R #3,598,0007T
(ZZ2—NF : AR¥110,0007T) ZH
ERE

BHE_Z-ZTHF+ZA=+—HIt
FE OMAKRBARZ ERERRE
ElEE#E ARYE3,523,000T (ZF
—NE  FHEAR4,437,0007T) » i
EHMEHIREEREZ EUARREE
BEEBLDAREST (CTZ—NFE: A
ER#£1,070,0007T) °

HE_ T+ _B=+—HIE
B ERMAKREAERZENEERD
BEEE AREE707,0000 (ZB—H
£ 1 5HE AR %4,681,0007T) ©
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)
1. (Continued)

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that

38. M T H &)

(b) MBREREEBRRBE @)

1EEm R EFE (&)

Mzt &

1. (&

has been recognised for trade receivables and contract assets: ERRz2BEREEHENE
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
- provision - individual - individual
matrix assessment assessment
(not credit- (not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) impaired) Total
21 21 21
FHEERE TWHEESE BEHEESRE
—REIER — (BB T fE —{BIRY T fE
(it % 3R (LR (BHR
fEEiA{E) fEEiR{E) EERE) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETT ARETFT AREFT AREFT
At 1 January 2019 RZE—-h&E—B—H 1,903 = 1,070 2,973
Changes due to financial ARZ2—NF
instruments recognised as —B—HERZ
at 1 January 2019: ERITAMES !
~ Impairment losses recognised ~ — B SRR ERE 110 9,118 = 9,228
~ Impairment losses reversed —BERAESE (1,633) = (1,070) (2,703)
As at 31 December 2019 RZB-NE
and 1 January 2020 +ZA=1t—Hk
ey SRS 380 9,118 - 9,498
Changes due to financial RARZEZ2F
instruments recognised as —B—HERZ
at 1 January 2020: SHTAMmME
- Impairment losses recognised  — BRI ERHE 8,763 = = 8,763
— Impairment losses reversed —BRERERE - (4,230) = (4,230)
At 31 December 2020 RZEZEF
+ZA=+—-H 9,143 4,888 - 14,031
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. M T H &)

(b) MBREREEBRREBE (@)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
EERMERBEFE (&)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Notes: (Continued) izt (&)

(Continued)

Changes in the loss allowance for trade receivable are mainly
due to the recognition of impairment allowance for trade
receivable with a gross carrying amount of RMB107,370,000
(2019: RMB235,852,000) during the year ended 31 December
2020.

The Group writes off trade receivables when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g.
when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or when the trade
receivables are over five years past due, whichever occurs
earlier. None of the trade receivables that have been written
off is subject to enforcement activities.

The Group assessed the loss allowance for loan receivables,
amounts due from related parties and other receivables and
deposits on 12m ECL basis. In determining the ECL, the Group
performs periodic review on the financial position of the
debtors, its settlement status and other contractual conditions
to ensure it is financially viable to settle the receivables. The
Group has applied ranged 0.19% to 8.68% of credit loss rates
and concluded that adequate impairment loss is made for
irrecoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HAEMBERME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #ZE T _ZFE+_HA=+—HLEE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. ERMTH ®
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) AFEEAIGEREHEREE &)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EERBRRBEEG (&
Notes: (Continued) Kzt : (&
2. (Continued) 2. (#B)
The following tables show reconciliation of loss allowances TEBERDMEKRS S EthERZ
that has been recognised for loan receivables, other TERIRS R EURE S S IBREE > 6
receivables and deposits and amounts due from related B~ HWIE
parties:
12m 12m
ECL ECL
- individual - individual
assessment assessment
(not credit- (not credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
12{E1 B FEHA 12181 B FaHH
E8E518 85548
— & B EF & — (B8R G
(6 #% 37 (It % 3R
EERE EERE HEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AREFT AREFT

At 1 January 2019 WZE—h&E—H—H 571 = 571
Changes due to financial AR —E—NE—A—H
instruments recognised as BRI EESY Y
at 1 January 2019: BhE)
— Impairment losses recognised —BRERRESE 184 11,587 11,771
- Impairment losses reversed —BEEREEE (24) = (24)
As at 31 December 2019 RZE—hEF 731 11,587 12,318
and 1 January 2020 +=ZB=+—BR=Z%
—E¥5—A—H
Changes due to financial ARZZEZE2F—HF—H
instruments recognised as BRI EESY Y
at 1 January 2020: BhE)
— Impairment losses recognised —BRERRESE 13 - 13
— Impairment losses reversed —BEEREEE 26 (11,472) (11,446)
At 31 December 2020 ATRIEF 770 115 885
+ZH=+—H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MAMBERRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. M T H &)

(b) MBREREEBRREBE (@)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

1EEm R EFE (E)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Notes: (Continued) KizE - (#8)

(Continued)

Changes in the loss allowance for loan receivables, other
receivables and deposits and amounts due from related parties
are mainly due to the receipt of loan receivable amounting to
RMB4,505,000 and transfer the remaining balance amounting
to RMB133,028,000 to prepayments for purchase of goods
and provision of services for the new construction contracts in
the PRC under trade and other receivables (2019: advance of
RMB137,533,000) during the year ended 31 December 2020.

For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the
Group has applied the general approach in HKFRS 9 to
measure the loss allowance at 12m ECL as there is no
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. The
Group determines the expected credit losses for bank balances
by assessment of probability of default. During the year
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, in view of the nature of
the balance and historical default rate and forward looking
information, the Group considers the provision of impairment
allowance for the bank balances are insignificant.

(#)

FEWER EMEWRRIEBERE S RE
WRAB A RIEZ BREBEEEH I EE
HREE_ZE-ZF+-"8B=+—H
IFFE W E FE I & s A R 154,505,000
TR B EREE A K #5133,028,0007T
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NBEREOEEE R RIEERBEZ
EMNREBE (CE—NF  2TARK
137,533,0007T) FREL ©

MABEERBREEMS  AEED
FEREBMBREENFSRN—KA
A ENEAEREEFENEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HAEMBERME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #ZE T _ZFE+_HA=+—HLEE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

302

(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of bank balances and cash deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation of
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group's remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from weighted average
interest rate at the end of reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MAMBERRMEE

“EE+_RA=+—HLEEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #HZE_Z

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity table

At 31 December 2020

38. &M T H &)

(b) HERAKEERERBE (&

REBZEE ()

REEEXK

R-ZEZEE+=ZA=+—H

Weighted
average  On demand Total
interest  or less than 1-3 3 months 1-5 Over5 undiscounted Carrying
rate 1 month months to 1year years years  cash flows amount
mE  RERH FERRE
FgRE  DMER 1838 fERE1E 1555 BiBsE  HERE Ik
% RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
% AREFR ARBFT ARBBFT ARBEFT AREFT  ARETT  ARETR
Non-derivative financial liabilities JEf74% SR & &
Trade and other payables S REAMETTE - 86,826 - - - - 86,826 86,826
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER 6.46 36,698 3,792 27,284 121,81 - 189,055 171,579
Convertible loan notes EREREE 16.50 - 814 5,684 - - 60,498 56,248
Lease liabilities HEaE 10.00 361 716 1,929 9,370 1,710 14,086 10,786
123,885 5322 88,807 130,651 1,710 350,465 331,439
At 31 December 2019 A ZE-hEF+ZA=+—H
Weighted
average  On demand Total
interest  or less than 1-3 3 months 1-5 undiscounted Carrying
rate 1 month months to 1 year years cash flows amount
e BERY KRR E
TERE DMEAR 1£3AF  3EAEIE 1E55F MEMRE FEE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
% ANEEFT ARETT AEEFn AREFT AEETT AREFT
Non-derivative financial liabilities FiEemas
Trade and other payables BS REMENTIE - 90,132 - - - 90,132 90,132
Bills payables EEE 0.05 = = 10,050 = 10,050 10,000
Bank and other borrowings RITREAER 7.02 - - 121,358 - 121,358 113,400
Convertible loan notes REREE 16.50 1,380 1,380 103,940 - 106,700 91,496
Lease liabilities HERE 10.00 247 716 1,693 13,107 15,763 11,585
91,759 2,096 237,041 13,107 344,003 316,613
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HAEMBERME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #ZE T _ZFE+_HA=+—HLEE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

304

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets and
financial liabilities.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are measured
at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The directors
of the Company are responsible to determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level
1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The directors
of the Company works closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs to the model. The management reports the
valuation committee’s findings to the board of directors
of the Company to explain the cause of fluctuations in the
fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

w8 /R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Investment in the unlisted entity securities classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group assessed the minimum recoverable amount of
the investment will be covered by the personal guarantee
arrangement on the basis that the guarantors have
sufficient assets to support their personal guarantee (see
Note 4). In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that no fair value change had been recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2020 and as of the
date, the investment is amounted to approximately
RMB18,087,000.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group assessed
the investment in the unlisted equity securities of
approximately RMB19,407,000 by discounted cash flow
to capture the present value of the expected future
economic benefits that will flow to the Group and
recoverable amount under guarantee arrangement,
discounted at a rate that reflects the credit risk of
counterparty. A significant increase in the expected future
economic benefits that will flow to the Group would
result in a significant increase in fair value, and vice versa.
The fair value of financial assets was classified as level 2
fair value measurement.

38. M T H &)

() EMIAZATEHE @)

EHEATFEH B EA LA
EHATHE

FLELTRAESFSKEDERRAT
Bt ABEERMEE

A& B {58 B RE T W [0l & 28
BEEAERZETWE FIRGA
AERAGEERCEERBREZ
@A#ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ@oﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ@
BEERAEE_T-_ZTE+_H
:+—E¢¢§%%wﬁﬁ®$ﬁ
#H) MBEZH REBNVAAR
#18,087,0007T ©

E:; NWE+ZA=+—8 &%
BRI EMEFENIELT
&xﬁ%mﬁﬁﬁAE%mAwpm
70 UEEUR R A A & B B TR HR R 2k
REMNGNIREUARERZHET
ARElIEEE MITRERERZHF
HEERRE - RAREBHTERE
KRB mPNABIENEER QT
BEARBEN RZITA-cHMEEZ
NEEDEAE 2R AFESE

E—IERERAR
:@:@ﬂiéiﬁ 305



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HAEMBERME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #ZE T _ZFE+_HA=+—HLEE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

306

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
(Continued)

There were no transfers in different levels of the fair value
hierarchy during the reporting period.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a recurring
basis (but fair value disclosures required)

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values based on
discounted cash flows analysis.
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39.

40.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR S I 5 R R I 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

CHARGES ON ASSETS 39.
The Group has the following charges on assets for bank
borrowings as set out in Note 28 at the end of the reporting
period:

Property, plant and equipment ME-BERZE
Investment properties KEMZE
Right-of-use assets FERREE
RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 40.

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows

from financing activities.

BEKR

PR EHR - SEB LM 28 8 2 IR1T
ERBUTEERM !

2020 2019
—E_EF —E—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ANEETT

19,227 26,248
61,130 59,040

1,262 1,390
81,619 86,678

MEEHEENEANHR

TRFIRMETHELENEAERERE
7 8RR RIIFRTEH RETHE
ENERMHEBESRENAREETRE
REEBZERERENERDNBAME
mEAaE-

E—IERERAR
:@:@ﬂiéiﬁ 307



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #ZE T _ZFE+_HA=+—HLEE

40. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 40.
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued)

MEZHEENRRIHER @

Bank Convertible
Lease and other loan
liabilities borrowings notes Total
$RITR CIE::-Y:
HE&R HthE™]R BERER W
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ANREFT ANEBFT ANEEFT ANREFT
At 1 January 2019 A _E—-hE—A—H 12,561 103,000 - 115,561
Financing cash flows (Note) MERESRE W) (2,380) 2,613 81,976 82,209
Non-cash transactions: FERERH .
New leases entered/lease SIUHRE B
modified ZHE 204 - - 204
Exchange adjustments B R R = = 2,143 2,143
Interest expenses SR 1,200 7,787 7,377 16,364
At 31 December 2019 and RIZ—NE
1 January 2020 +ZA=1t—8K&
e 11,585 113,400 91,496 216,481
Financing cash flows (Note) MERESRE (W2 (8,766) 53,978 (6,928) 38,284
Non-cash transactions: FERERG
Gain on modification of BT AR ERERE
convertible loan notes ol - = (2,796) (2,796)
Converted into conversion BIARIRRHN
shares - - (34,136) (34,136)
Avrising from acquisition of ELBIERE AT
subsidiaries 65 - - 65
New leases entered HIVE RN 6,777 = = 6,777
Exchange adjustments FER % = 560 (6,816) (6,256)
Interest expenses MERL 1,125 9,641 15,428 26,194
At 31 December 2020 R-Z2-ZEF+ZAH
=+—8 10,786 177,579 56,248 244,613

Note: The financing cash flows mainly represent net proceeds on
issue of convertible loan notes, proceeds from bank and other
borrowings, repayment of lease liabilities, repayment of bank and
other borrowings and interest paid and excluded proceeds from

exercising of share options.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the Group has following transactions and

balances with related parties:

(@) Transactions with related parties

4. FMAERS

BRI S A MR IR 2 B At 20 5P R
BES AEEREHHEUT LR RS
B

(a) BRAEES 52

Year ended 31 December

#E+_B=+—HILEFE

2020 2019

—EEHE —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ANEHFT

Sales to Meizhou Xikang mEMNERELZHE - 79

Provision of building engineering service A& {EEIRMHEZR

to Meizhou Xikang Ti2ARF = 1
Expense related to short-term lease ERfRRMEBLEESZ G2

paid to Mr. Wen Jingfeng FHATE SR 24 43
Labour costs charged by Meizhou EINERWEN 2 B TS

Xikang - 190

(b) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of executive directors, being the key
management personnel, are set out in Note 13, which
is determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

(b) XEEEASHHM

HITEE (RIEEEAS) UFEE
RHEE13 HThBEFHFMEEEKEER
BAALTRBERTHEBMETE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47 5 B 5 R R Y 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & ZE

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY

FoBE+-A=—HILER

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the

Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below.

Place of incorporation/

Name of subsidiary establishment/operation

MR
B AEHE EEHE
Directly held subsidiaries:
ERRAEZHBAR
Zhan Yun Holdings Limited ~ BVI
REERERAT HEERUES
Sino Legacy Investments BVI
Limited+
HEERUES
Indirectly held subsidiaries:
MEREZHBAR:
Jiyi Investments Limited Hong Kong
E—REERAT &E
Jiyi Entertainment Limited ~ Hong Kong
E-FEREBERRT &8
Win Giant Limited+ Hong Kong
B
Guangdong Jiyi Household ~ The PRC
Building Materials Chain
Co. Ltd.*
("Guangdong Jiyi")
BERE-REEMEH  PE

BRRAT (BRRE—))

JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Issued and

fully paid share
capital/Paid-up
registered capital

BRTRBERS

BEEmES

UsD50,000
50,000%7%

UsD50,000

50,000%7%

HK$1
18T

HK$1
1A%

HK$1
BT

RMB161,600,000

AR
161,600,0007%

42. ZRBEEMBATFHE

ARBRBREMREEREREFAEZN
BATERFIERYAT -

Proportion ownership

interest held by
the Company
FARFAEZ
FRA etz Lt
2020 2019
—ECEE | ZENF
% %
100% 100%
100% N/A
AEA
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% N/A
100% AEA
100% 100%

Proportion of

voting power held by
the Company
FARFEZ
REMELH
2020 2019
ZEIBE | ZE K
% %
100% 100%
100% N/A
TEMA
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% N/A
100% TEMA
100% 100%

Principal activities

TREE

Investment holding
K&K

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding
BEER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding
K&K

Sales of household
building materials

HEREEM



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MAMBERRMEE

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

MEARSAME

Meizhou Jisheng Household
Building Materials
Company Limited*
("Meizhou Jisheng”)

IBINTEBREREM
BRAT (HEINER)

Guangdong Jiyi Xinya
Decoration and Design
Construction Company
Limited*

("Jiyi Xinya")

BRE—(EHENRS
IRBRAT

(rE—2%)

Zhongshan Jiyi Household
Building Materials
Company Limited*
("Zhongshan Jiyi")

RUTE-REEM
BRAF (MALE—)

Jiyi Industrial Group
(Shenzhen) Co. Ltd.*
(“Shenzhen Jiyi")

E—BEEE (F)
ARARe (CFRIIE—)

Place of incorporation/
establishment/operation

ML L
EEME

The PRC

T

The PRC

T

The PRC

T

The PRC

HE

Issued and

fully paid share
capital/Paid-up
registered capital

BRTRBERT
BEEmEE

RMB2,000,000

AE#2,000,0007T

RMB10,100,000

AE#10,100,0007%

RMB1,300,000

AE#1,300,0007T

RMB 10,000,000

AE#10,000,0007T

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &%=

Proportion ownership

interest held by
the Company
FARFEZ
FRE LA
2020 2019
ZEIRE | ZENE
% %
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

— 5 —

—=—=

Proportion of
voting power held by

the Company
TARR/EZ
FELH
2020 2019
“ECEE | ZF0F
% %
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

E—IERERAR
"“ECTEFR

EFE+_A=1+—HLEE

42, ZATEEMEBATFE =

Principal activities

TEEH

Investment holding

REER

Provision of
interior design
and building
engineering
services

RUENR T KE
HIERE

Sales of household
building materials

HERERM
Investment holding

REER
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47 5 B 5 R R Y 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & ZE

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

Name of subsidiary establishment/operation

SEMARSL R
WEATAE HEN
Xinjiale Cloud-based The PRC
Decoration Technology
Co., Limited*
AT REERR HE
BARA
Meizhou Xinjiale Enterprise  The PRC
Limited*
NG ESE HE
BRAFH

Xinjiale Cloud-base Gaofeng The PRC
(Meizhou) Decoration
Engineering Company
Limited*

WREZREDTE (8N) FE
EMmIRERAR
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=

= =

Issued and

fully paid share
capital/Paid-up
registered capital

BRTRBERS
BEEMES

RMB35,000,000

AE#35,000,0007T

RMB1,000,000

AE#1,000,0007T

RMB306,000

AR #306,0007T

F+_A=+—HLFE

Proportion ownership

interest held by
the Company
LYNGIE TSP
FRE L)
2020 2019
= e
% %
100% N/A
100% AEA
100% N/A
100% ABR
51% N/A
51% AEA

Proportion of
voting power held by

the Company
TARR/EZ
BERELLA

2020 2019
ZEIEE | ZEhF
% %
100% N/A
100% TEMA
100% N/A
100% TEHR
51% N/A
51% ENGYE

42, ZATIEEMBATFE @

Principal activities

TEEH

Provision of home
decoration and
online distribution
and electronic
marketing
services

RERERE LD
R AR E R
%

Provision of home
decoration
RERE

Provision of home
decoration

REHRE
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

42. ZREEFEMBARFE @

COMPANY (Continued)
Issued and
fully paid share Proportion ownership Proportion of
Place of incorporation/ capital/Paid-up interest held by voting power held by
Name of subsidiary establishment/operation  registered capital the Company the Company Principal activities
AR RS BETRERRE FARFEZ TRARFEZ
MEAEHRE BEME BRAMES FRA e fE s Ll REELG TEEH
2020 2019 2020 2019
ZEIFE ([ ZENF | ZB2%E | ZENE
% % % %

Xinjiale Cloud-base Qinyang The PRC RMB600,000 51% N/A 51% N/A~ Provision of home
(Meizhou) Decoration decoration
Engineering Company
Limited*

%ﬁ%f%‘@%é%ﬁ () HE AR #600,0007T 51% B 51% TER RERE

K IRERAT

Meizhou Xingju Culture The PRC N/A 51% N/A 51% N/A Provision of

Media Company Ltd.* electronic
marketing
services

1B E R FE ~ER 51% AEM 51% TER RHEEREHERE
BEERAS"

* The English name is for identification purpose only

s Established as a wholly foreign owned enterprise in the PRC

# Established as a limited liability company in the PRC

The subsidiary was deregistered during the year ended 31 December

2020.

& The subsidiary was acquired during the year ended 31 December
2020.

All the principal subsidiaries operate predominantly in their
respective places of incorporation/establishment.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected
the results or net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting
at the end of the reporting period or at any time during the
reporting period.

* o EXTBERER

°  RPBRIZINEEERE

’ HAEPIﬂiZEEE’Aﬂ

t O ZNBRRERBE_Z_EF+_-A
=+—HLEFEHHEER-

v ZNBRAABERBEZETE+A
=T —HIEFEERE-

FFETEMBARHIENKREZEZ
SEMRBARIL PRIt R EE

ERITAERBDESHBAIBERELE
BEXENEEFECAERNWBAT &
ERR RHEAMMBAR ZFBERER
B EREER TR

BENBASDEEIAEHBESNERSH
REER & EAEME RIS FE 7748 o

E—IERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZE_ZE_Z&+_H=+—HIEEE

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Non-current assets
Investment in a subsidiary
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Right-of-use assets

Current assets
Amounts due from subsidiaries

Amount due from a related party
Prepayments and other receivables

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Other payables
Convertible loan notes
Lease liabilities

Net current assets

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

314 JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
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43. RFEMFHRR R FEFEHRER

2020 2019
%% —=—ngE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFR | AREFT
254,468 165,951
76,874 78,862

= 226
331,342 245,039
241,665 253,983
22,183 23,637
855 825
1,089 13,401
265,292 291,846
352 365
56,248 91,496
791 231
57,391 92,092
207,901 199,754
539,243 444,793
69,002 58,208
470,241 386,585
539,243 444,793




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS M ER R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 HZEZE_ZE_ZH&+_H=+—HILEE

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

43,

FATMBERRBREREERR @)

Movement in the Company'’s reserves TATEEZEE
Convertible Share-
Contingent loan notes based
Share  consideration equity Translation payment  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserves reserve losses Total
ARRER
Ed v ER LURHAER 23t
RHEE  RARERE et it PAGER: ]| i ot
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NEETFT NEEFT NREFT ANREFT ANREFT ANREFT AREFT
At 1 January 2019 RIZ-hn&E—A—H 363,001 S - 22,828 946 (14,249) 372,526
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - (4,289) (4,289)
Other comprehensive income ~ EREM2EKE

for the year - - - 12,052 - - 12,052
Recognition of equity-settled  HESBMARAER 2 MRRIH

share-based payments AEBRT (Wit34)

(Note 34) - - - - 3,376 - 3,376
Issue of convertible loan notes  #{TAREFNZHE

(Note 29) (Hiz229) - - 2,827 - - - 2827
Transaction costs attributable — EATA AR EREERELL

to issue of convertible ZRBMA

loan notes - - (16) - - - (16)
Exercise of share options BRI (122336)

(Note 33(a)) 135 - - - (26) - 109
At 31 December 2019 RZB-h%E

+-A=+-H 363,136 - 2,811 34,880 4,29 (18,538) 386,585
Loss for the year FREB - - - - - (15,591) (15,591)
Other comprehensive income ~ EREM2EKE

for the year - - - (14,171) - - (14171)
Arising from acquisition of ELENERBAR

subsidiaries 47308 33,577 - - - - 80,885
Conversion of convertible loan B BRENZH

notes (Note 29) (Ha229) 30,990 - (985) - - 985 30,990
Extension of convertible EEMBRRENRE

loan notes (Note 29) (H1z229) - - (1,798) - - 1,798 -
Exercise of share options TERBRE (1336)

(Note 33(a)) 133 - - - (26) - 107
Lapse of share options E-T0 ER - - - - (1,499) 1,499 =
Recognition of equity-settled BV ESEpAN )

share-based payments AEBRR (Wat34)

(Note 34) - - - - 1,436 - 1,436
At 31 December 2020 RZEZEE

+=ZB=+-H 441,567 33,577 28 20,709 4,207 (29,847) 470,241

44. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 44, {EHREERIA
EARNBHEAEBNR _E_BEE+_A
—t+—HBEEAFRHPTESEH
EREREREIE

There is no other material subsequent event undertaken by the
Company or by the Group after 31 December 2020 and up to
the date of this annual report.

E—IERERAR
"“ECTEFR
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
IEMBIRE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #ZE T _ZFE+_HA=+—HLEE

AEERBEAERCERREMBRERZ
BELAMBREHAZGESEZE BERER

The consolidated results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial reporting periods as extracted from the audited

consolidated financial statements of the Group are summarised — #EZ0F :
below:
RESULTS E
For the year ended 31 December
BE+-BA=1+—HLEFE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—v—vE <_j-LﬂE ::_/\E :;——tﬂf _i—/\ﬂf
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFrT |\EEFT ANEEFT AREFT AEREFT
Revenue WA 446,915 573,675 599,478 415,968 382,835
Profit before tax PRI AR A 13,219 16,729 18,451 14,698 26,187
Income tax expenses PRSI (2,759) (3,659) (6,159) (5,717) (8,590)
Profit for the year EREF 10,460 13,070 12,292 8,981 17,597
Total comprehensive income A2 EUALEEE
for the year 14,645 35,167 15,394 8,043 19,162
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERAR
At 31 December
BK+-BA=+—H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—7—7$ <_j_L£E :;_/\E ::;—‘tﬂf _T—/\ﬂf
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT |\EEFT AEEFT ARETT AEEFT
Total assets BEMRE 1,080,132 929,930 743,963 507,770 487,313
Total liabilities BEREE 405,691 394,368 250,241 172,846 160,432
Total equity RERHEEE 674,441 535,562 493,722 334,924 326,881
316 JIYI HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2020
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